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Meeting of the Joint, Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee on 3 
March 2016 at 11am, in the Reception Room, Police HQ, Ripley. 
 
AGENDA:  Reports attached 
ITEM SUBJECT 

 
Presented 

by 
1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

.  
CHAIR 

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (IF ANY) 
 

ALL 

3  MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE JARAC HELD 
ON 17 DECEMBER 2016 
 

CHAIR 

4  REVIEW OF ACTIONS  
 

CHAIR 

5  VERBAL UPDATE ON JARAC MEMBER 
RECRUITMENT  
 

CHAIR  

6  EXTERNAL AUDIT  
6A 
 

External Audit Plan 2015/16  EXTERNAL 
AUDIT 

6B External Audit Progress Report and Technical Update EXTERNAL 
AUDIT 

7  INTERNAL AUDIT   
7A 
 

Internal Audit Progress Report February 2016 
- Appendix A: Audit Progress Report 
- Annex A: Procurement 
- Annex B: Proceeds of Crime Act Cash Seizures 
- Annex C: Victims Code of Practice  
- Annex D: Follow Up of Previous Audit 

Recommendations  
 

INTERNAL 
AUDIT 

7B Strategy for Internal Audit 2016/17: Internal Audit 
Assignments  
 

INTERNAL 
AUDIT  

8.  INTERNAL CONTROL AND GOVERNANCE   

8A HMIC Value for Money Profiles 2015 DAN FERN  

9.  FINANCIAL REPORTING   

9A Summary report on the budget and precept process 
2016/17 

HELEN 
BOFFY  

9B 2015/16 Year End Accounting Arrangements and 
Accounting Policies  

DAN FERN  

10.  ASSURANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT  

10A Governance and Assurance Mapping – Collaboration: 
verbal update  

HELEN 
BOFFY  
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MINUTES of a meeting of the JOINT AUDIT, RISK AND ASSURANCE 
COMMITTEE held at the Derbyshire Police Headquarters, Butterley Hall, Ripley 
on 17 December 2015 

P R E S E N T 
 

Miss K Alcock (in the Chair)  
 
Mr M Carrington, Mr S Cook, Ms S Hart, Mr A Salt 
 
OPCC Present:  Mrs H Boffy, Ms L Kelly,  
Constabulary Present:  Mr T Neaves  
Internal Audit:  Mr M Clarkson and Mr B Welch    
External Audit:  Mr A Cardoza 
 
 
44/15 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
  

31.1 No declarations of interest were declared.   
 
 RESOLVED: 

1. To note that no members declared any personal or prejudicial 
interests.  

 
45/15 MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE JARAC HELD ON 24 

SEPTEMBER 2015  
 

45.1  Minute 35/15.  A tentative date of 14 July had been considered to 
replace the June 2016 meeting and this date was agreed. The 
meeting dates 2016 will be amended accordingly.   

 
45.2 Minute 43/15.  The JARAC minutes had been considered at the 

meeting of the Strategic Governance Board in November and the 
Commissioner had questioned the JARAC with regard to gaining 
assurance that sexual crimes are being dealt with appropriately.  It 
was agreed that the wording of the minute was inaccurate as the 
committee do not want to dig down inappropriately. It was agreed 
that the resolution be reworded as follows:  “Assurance was taken 
that this area of business is being managed efficiently and 
effectively, subject to a further report from the Director of 
Finance. 

 
45.3 Minute 43/15 continued.  Mr Neaves was able to provide an update 

on sexual crimes and advised that the reason for the drop in 
compliance was due to a move from the requirement to record within 
24 hours instead of 72 hours and of 37 compliance audit failures 33 
had failed as they had not recorded within the timeframe.  Mr 
Neaves admitted that the Force are struggling to achieve compliance 
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in this area due to the new ruling, however this is being looked into 
and every effort to improve is being made.   Mr Neaves suggested 
that the high rates of compliance achieved previously may not be 
possible for the future.   

 
 RESOLVED: 

1. The Minutes of the meeting of the JARAC held on 24 September 
2015 were confirmed by the Committee.  

 
46/15 REVIEW OF ACTIONS 

 
46.1 17 December 2013.  Internal Audit Progress Report 
 This action relates to the previous Internal Auditors, it was therefore 

agreed that this action be removed.   
 
46.2 23 September 2014.  Data Protection Audit by the Information 

Commissioner 
 Members questioned whether they had received the explanatory 

email sent on 14 October.  It was agreed that this be re-sent to all 
members.   

 
46.3 24 September 2015.  Network Security 
 Mr Neaves provided members with a confidential update on 

progress made against the audit recommendations in relation to 
network security.  

 
46.4 24 September 2015. JARAC Meeting dates 2015/16 
 The date of 14 July was agreed instead of the original June date.  
 
46.5 24 September 2015.  NCRS and NSIR Compliance report 
 Mr Neaves provided an update on sexual crimes (refer minute 45 

above). 
 
46.6 Any Other Business 
 The Chair of the Police and Crime Panel had been invited to attend 

a meeting of the JARAC.  It was agreed the Chair be added to the 
distribution list to receive an electronic version of the agenda for 
future meetings.  

 
RESOLVED: 
1. The actions were noted.  

 
47/15 HMIC INSPECTION ACTIVITY 
 

47.1  Mr Neaves presented the report and informed members of HMIC 
activity within force over the past 12 months.  
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47.2 The Force had been subject to six HMIC inspections in the past 12 

months and in relation to the following inspections, a further update 
was provided at the meeting:  

 
   Stop People 
   The Stop and Search action plan was attached at Appendix A.  
   Members noted that many actions contained within the plan were 

actions for the Home Office, College of Policing or the Government 
and as such asked how assurance could be gained that these 
actions are being implemented.  Mr Neaves advised that the Force 
have no power to require external bodies to implement actions and 
therefore were out of the Force’s control.  

 
   PEEL Efficiency 
   Overall the Force received a ‘good’ grading and members were 

informed that whilst there is one level higher than good this is very 
difficult to attain, the grade achieved therefore was considered 
acceptable as many other Forces had been graded ‘inadequate’. 

 
   It was noted that the Commissioner had examined what the Force 

would need to do to achieve an ‘outstanding’ grading and members 
were informed that this would require more collaboration and more 
cost.  The good grading was considered to be a very reasonable 
position, coupled with sound finances and good VfM and the spread 
of ‘Goods’ was a very positive indicator that the Force take a 
balanced approach.  

 
   Vulnerability 
   Subsequent to the report being written Derbyshire had received a 

grading of good which was outstanding as only three other forces in 
the Country passed this inspection and achieved this grade. 

 
   Crime 
   Paragraph 2.8 it was noted that the PEEL assessment for 2015 is 

expected to be published in February 2016 NOT 2015.  
 
47.3  Referring to Appendix B, the Action Plan for the HMIC Domestic 

Abuse inspection, members queried at action 7 how big the backlog 
of DASH risk assessments was.  Mr Neaves advised that there is still 
some backlog however, this is much improved and to provide some 
reassurance he advised that the cases are graded low, medium and 
high, which are then dealt with appropriately and according to the 
grading. 

 
47.4  In considering the recommendation, members raised the issue of 

getting assurance that third parties had implemented their actions 
and therefore requested an amendment as follows:  Direct 
assurance was gained that there is a process in place, to implement 
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where relevant, HMIC recommendations but note that there are 
matters beyond the Forces’ control as some recommendations 
sit with third parties. 

 
 RESOLVED: 

1. Direct assurance was gained that there is a process in place to 
implement where relevant, HMIC recommendations, but note that 
there are matters beyond the Forces’ control as some 
recommendations sit with third parties.  

 

48/15 FORCE RISK MANAGEMENT  

48.1 As detailed within the report, a total of 65 risks now exist, two risks 
have a high score, 14 medium and 49 risks have a low score. Detail 
on the high risks and changes to risks were included in the update.  
The following risks were discussed:  

 
48.2 Noting the closed risks detailed within the report members queried 

whether these remain on the risk register as a ‘watching brief’.  It 
was agreed that Mr Neaves would ask the Risk Manager how closed 
risks are dealt with and report back to the Board.  

 
RESOLVED: 
1. Direct assurance was gained that this area of business is being 

managed efficiently and effectively.  
 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC JOINED THE MEETING AND WERE 
WELCOMED BY THE CHAIR 
 
49/15 ANNUAL STRATEGIC RISK BRIEFING 

49.1 The report on the outcome of the Annual Strategic Risk Briefing 
presented to the Strategic Governance Board on 14 December was 
attached at Appendix A for members’ information.  

 
RESOLVED: 
1. The update on the current force strategic risks was received and 

assurance was gained that this area of business is being managed 
efficiently and effectively. 

 
 
50/15  GUIDANCE ON THE APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS 
 

50.1 Mr Cardoza presented the report highlighting that the police audit 
contracts will be extended by one year to incorporate the audit of the 
2017/2018 financial year.  After this date the Commissioner and the 
Chief Constable will have the power to appoint their own auditors.  A 
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briefing on the changes to the audit appointment process was 
attached to the report at Appendix A.  

 
50.2 It was noted that a process for appointment must be agreed by the 

end of 2016 with the development of a procurement strategy.  It was 
agreed that this be added to the JARAC actions so that progress can 
be monitored and noted.  

 
 RESOLVED: 

1. The briefing on the appointment of external auditors was received 
and noted.  

 
51/15 ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2014/15  

 51.1 Mr Cardoza presented the report and referred to the Annual Audit 
letter, attached at Appendix A. 

 
 51.2 Mr Cardoza congratulated the Force Finance team for preparing a 

good set of complicated accounts which were materially free of 
errors.   

 
 51.3 The Chair thanked Mr Cardoza and his team, Mrs Boffy, Mr Neaves 

and the Constabulary and OPCC finance teams for their work, whilst 
acknowledging the complexity of the accounts.  

  
 RESOLVED: 

1. The Annual Audit Letter for 2014/15 was received and assurance 
was taken once again, that arrangements by Derbyshire police for 
financial reporting, value for money and external reporting were 
satisfactory.  

2. The committee noted that the Commissioner and the Chief 
Constable received the Annual Audit letter for 2014/15 at the meeting 
of the Strategic Governance Board on 14 December 2015. 

 
52/15 PROGRESS REPORT DECEMBER 2015  

52.1 Mr Welch, Internal Auditor presented the progress report on their 
work to date during this financial year.  The report was attached at 
Appendix A.  

 
52.2 The summary table on page 2 (para 2.1) showed that four final 

reports had been issued, each with a satisfactory audit opinion and a 
note of the recommendations, none of which were fundamental.  
There had also been two audit memorandums where an assurance 
opinion had not been given as neither audit was risk based.  In 
addition, the audit in respect of Procurement has recently been 
completed and an audit in respect of the Victims Code has recently 
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commenced.  The Audit of Estates will be deferred to 2016/17.  
Further detail relating to each audit was contained in Appendix A1.  

 
52.3 Noted at para 2.5 was the assurance mapping exercise that Baker 

Tilley had been commissioned to undertake in relation to 
collaboration.  Mrs Boffy advised that the final report had been 
received and this would be reviewed early in the New Year.  After 
this has been fully reviewed it is hoped that the audits can be scoped  
and shared with members.  

 
52.4 Members welcomed the format of the report and agreed that, for the 

future, each main report be attached as an appendix to the summary 
report and a recommendation should be included to address each 
separate internal audit report.  To provide a full picture it was agreed 
that the summary page include the findings on risk management and 
VfM.  

 
RESOLVED: 
1. Assurance was taken that the internal audit plan addresses relevant 

matters and is being delivered as expected.  

AS A CONFIDENTIAL APPENDIX HAD BEEN RECEIVED TO SUPPORT THE 
REPORT ON ASSURANCE MAPPING, IT WAS AGREED THAT THIS ITEM BE 
DISCUSSED AS THE FINAL AGENDA ITEM, IN A PRIVATE MEETING. 

  
53/15 INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT:  HR TRANSACTIONAL 

53.1 The full report was attached at Appendix A, which stated that the 
organisation can take satisfactory assurance that the controls upon 
which the organisation relies to manage this area are suitably 
designed, consistently applied and effective.  There were 3 
significant and 4 housekeeping recommendations as a result of the 
audit.  

 
RESOLVED:  
1. Assurance was taken that the controls upon which the organisation 

relies to manage this area are suitably designed, consistently applied 
and effective.  

 
54/15 INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT:  DATA QUALITY – COMPLAINTS 

HANDLING 
 

54.1 The full report was attached at Appendix A, which stated that the 
organisation can take satisfactory assurance that the controls upon 
which the organisation relies to manage this area are suitably 
designed, consistently applied and effective.  There were 3 
significant and 4 housekeeping recommendations as a result of the 
audit.  
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54.2 Noting at para 4.6 that a case must be closed within 120 days, 

members asked what happens if a case does go over the 120 day 
time limit.  Members were advised that should this occur it would be 
red flagged to ensure this was examined as a priority.  

 
54.3 Members noted on page 1 that for the period 1 January – 30 June 

2015 239 complaints were recorded.  14 of these resulted in an 
investigation and 56 were resolved locally, the remainder are still live 
and in progress.  Comparatively the previous year was 222 recorded 
of which 102 were investigated and 83 resolved locally.  To gain an 
accurate comparison on the previous year members requested sight 
of the final figures for the calendar year 2015 to include the numbers 
recorded, the numbers investigated and the numbers resolved 
locally.  

 
 RESOLVED: 

1. Assurance was taken that the controls upon which the organisation 
relies to manage this area are suitably designed, consistently applied 
and effective.  

 
55/15 INTEGRATED OFFENDER MANAGEMENT 

 55.1 The full report was attached at Appendix A, which stated that the 
organisation can take satisfactory assurance that the controls upon 
which the organisation relies to manage this area are suitably 
designed, consistently applied and effective.  There was 1 significant 
recommendation as a result of the audit. 

 RESOLVED: 
1. Assurance was taken that the controls upon which the organisation 

relies to manage this area are suitably designed, consistently applied 
and effective.  
 

56/15  INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT:  CORE FINANCIALS 

 56.1 The full report was attached at Appendix A, which stated that the 
organisation can take satisfactory assurance that the controls upon 
which the organisation relies to manage this area are suitably 
designed, consistently applied and effective.  There were 2 
significant recommendations as a result of the audit. 

 RESOLVED:  
1. Assurance was taken that the controls upon which the organisation 

relies to manage this area are suitably designed, consistently applied 
and effective.  
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THE PUBLIC MEETING CONCLUDED AND MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
WERE ASKED TO LEAVE. 

 

57/15  INTERNAL ADUIT REPORT:   ASSURANCE MAPPING  

 57.1 Mr Welch presented the report on assurance mapping which was 
accompanied by two framework dashboard, circulated under 
separate cover as they were not for publication as the Constabulary 
Risk Register is not in the public domain. 

 57.2 In considering how this should be presented for the future an 
oversight report was suggested, but this will be discussed and 
agreed upon in due course.  

 57.3 As noted in the findings on page 3 of the annex, areas for audit will 
need to be prioritised and it was noted that there may also be a need 
to audit areas outside of the risk register.  

 57.4 It was agreed that a draft of the Internal Audit plan be sent to 
members ahead of the meeting of the Committee in March when a 
draft plan is presented and will be discussed in a private meeting, to 
enable possible additions and alterations to the recommendations.  

 RESOLVED: 
1. The Committee received the Internal Audit Assurance Maps and 

approved their consideration for planning for internal audit activities 
for 2016/17. 

58/15  ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

 58.1 To allow members time to read and digest the VfM profiles being 
presented to the Committee in March, Mrs Boffy agreed these would 
be sent earlier, under separate cover to the agenda.  

 58.2 Noting that the budget report will be presented to the Strategic 
Governance Board in January, it was agreed that members receive, 
a copy of this report by email.    

 

 MEETING CLOSED AT 12:30PM 
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JOINT AUDIT, RISK AND ASSURANCE COMMITTEE 
 
REVIEW OF ACTIONS  
 

Agenda 
Item  

Report Title and Action Required Responsible 
Officer 

Progress 

Meeting of JARAC 23 September  
6B Data Protection Audit by the Information Commissioner (IC)  

Ensure the difficulty in achieving the recommendations within the 
deadlines as set out in the ICs report are contained within the 
Constabulary Risk Register.  
 

 
Mr Neaves 

Explanatory email 
received and re-
sent to members on 
17 December 2015  

7A OPCC Risk Register – mid year review 2014 
Commentary be added to the Risk Register for any high/red risks or any 
other risks in which added narrative would improve an understanding of 
the risks or movement of risks.  
 

 
Mrs Boffy  

 
Ongoing 

10A Internal Audit Progress Report 
Internal Audit to provide an update on the scoping of ICT Mobile 
Devices for the meeting of the Committee in December.  
 

 
Internal Audit  

 
Deferred to 2016/17 
at the earliest. 

Meeting of JARAC 12 March 2015 
7A Value for Money Profiles 

For future meetings, reporting on the VfM profiles should provide a 
summary (not the full report) including the outliers and the evidence of 
any actions arising as a result.   
 

 
Terry Neaves 
 
 

 
Noted – Ongoing 
 
 

8A Revenue Budget and Precept Report 2015/16 
For future reports the JARAC committee should receive a summary to 
evidence that due process has been followed.  
 
 

 
Helen Boffy  

 
Noted – ongoing  
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8B Statement of Accounting Policies 
Where the Statement of Accounting Policies is presented to the JARAC 
committee for the future, both appendices should be attached to the 
report but with a covering table to show any additions, deletions or 
alterations thus allowing a simple compare and contrast of the 
documents.  
 

 
Terry Neaves  

 
Noted – ongoing  

Meeting the JARAC 16 July 2015 
7D Internal Audit:  Draft Internal Audit Strategy 2015/16 to 2018/19 and 

2015/16 Internal Audit Plan 
To draw up a timeline to accompany the audit approach. 
 
Members to be involved in the scoping for a limited number of audit 
areas.  
 

 
 
Mazars 
 
Helen Boffy 

 
 
Complete on this 
agenda.  

Meeting of the JARAC 24 September 2015 
8B Statement of Accounts 

To amend next years’ Statement Accounts,  page 75, para 9.2 
‘Delivering the Governance Framework’, which states “The Joint Audit 
Risk and Assurance Committee has oversight over the full range of 
audit and inspection activity undertaken across the Commission” to 
provide greater clarity of the role of the JARAC. 
 
To amend the committee Terms of Reference to reflect that the 
committee provide appropriate scrutiny in line with advice from the 
External Audit associated with risk.   
 

 
Helen Boffy 
 
 
 
 
 
Helen Boffy 

 
Noted and carried 
forward 
 
 
 
 
Noted and carried 
forward 

9A OPCC Risk Register:  Mid Year Review 2015 
Referring to page 14, PCC 5.3 ‘Risk and threat process abandoned’, 
members queried when they might expect to receive a copy of the mid-
year review.  Mrs Boffy would check and report back to members. 
 

 
Helen Boffy 

Update sent to 
members on 9 
February.  Full risk 
review expected 
2016.  
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 ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
It was agreed that the Chair of the Police and Crime Panel be 
personally invited to attend a public meeting of the JARAC (either 
December or March).  

 
Helen Boffy 

The PCP Chair has 
been added to the 
JARAC Distribution 
list. 
 

Meeting of the JARAC 17 December 2015  
6A FORCE RISK MANAGEMENT 

Noting the closed risks detailed within the report members queried 
whether these remain on the risk register as a ‘watching brief’.  It was 
agreed that Mr Neaves would ask the Risk Manager how closed risks 
are dealt with and report back to the Board. 
 

 
Terry 
Neaves 

 
Mr Neaves Update:  
The Board have 
decided to keep the 
risk around 
corruption open and 
took on board the 
issues raised by the 
Audit Committee.  
 

7A GUIDANCE ON THE APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS 
It was noted that a process for appointment must be agreed by the end 
of 2016 with the development of a procurement strategy.  It was agreed 
that this be added to the JARAC actions so that progress can be 
monitored and noted. 
 

All March Update:   
A plan is being 
developed. .  

9A PROGRESS REPORT DECEMBER 2015 
Members welcomed the format of the report and agreed that, for the 
future, each main report be attached as an appendix to the summary 
report and a recommendation should be included to address each 
separate internal audit report.  To provide a full picture it was agreed 
that the summary page include the findings on risk management and 
VfM. 

 
Internal 
Audit 

 
On this agenda.  

9D INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT:  DATA QUALITY – COMPLAINTS 
HANDLING 
Members noted on page 1 that for the period 1 January – 30 June 2015 

 
 
Terry 

 

- 3 - 



AGENDA ITEM 4 
JOINT, AUDIT, RISK AND ASSURANCE COMMITTEE 

 3 MARCH 2016 

239 complaints were recorded.  14 of these resulted in an investigation 
and 56 were resolved locally, the remainder are still live and in 
progress.  Comparatively the previous year was 222 recorded of which 
102 were investigated and 83 resolved locally.  To gain an accurate 
comparison on the previous year members requested sight of the 
figures for the calendar year 2015 to include the Numbers recorded, the 
numbers investigated and the numbers locally resolved.  
 

Neaves 

 ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
  
To allow members time to read and digest the VfM profiles being 
presented to the Committee in March, Mrs Boffy agreed these would be 
sent earlier, under separate cover to the agenda.  
  
Noting that the budget report will be presented to the Strategic 
Governance Board in January, it was agreed that members receive, by 
email a copy of this report.    

 
 
Helen Boffy  
 
 
 
Liz Kelly  

 
 
Hard copy sent.  
 
 
 
 
Budget report sent.  
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JOINT REPORT OF THE TREASURER AND THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 

6A: EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2015/16 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 To advise the Committee of the proposed external Audit Plan for the financial 

year 2015/16 and the audit of the statements of accounts. 

2. INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS 

2.1 An External Audit Plan covering the work that will be carried out to support the 

Audit opinion for the Statements of Accounts for 2015/16 has been provided 

and reviewed by the two statutory financial officers.  

2.2 The plan details the audit approach which covers planning, the control 

evaluation, substantive procedures and other audit matters. A copy of the plan 

is attached as APPENDIX A to this report. 

2.3 The fee for the activity is £46,035. This is split into £15,000 for the Chief 

Constable and £31,305 for the Commissioner. This is a saving of £15,345 on 

the previous year. 

2.4 The plan identifies one audit risks relating to assurance over regional 

collaboration accounts and transactions.   

2.5 There are two other areas of audit focus - the new payroll system introduced 

by the service provider and accounting for LLP transactions.  Both these 

issues are reflected in the internal audit plan to a certain extent.  

2.6 Mr Cardoza, the Director, KPMG, will be present to talk to this paper and 

answer Members’ questions. 

3. RECOMMENDATIONS 

i. To receive the External Audit Plan 2015/16 

        Part I -                 
For Publication  
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ii. To raise any matters of further concern with the Audit Director. 

4. IMPLICATIONS 

All implications are assessed and scored to the table below.  
HIGH – supporting explanation and narrative required and to be contained 
within the report 
MEDIUM – narrative to be contained within the report at the discretion of the 
author  
LOW – no narrative required 
 

 LOW MEDIUM HIGH 

Crime & Disorder √   

Environmental √   

Equality & Diversity √   

Financial  √  

Health & Safety √   

Human Rights √   

Legal  √  

Personnel √   

 

Contact details  
in the event  
of enquiries 

Name: Helen Boffy  
External telephone number: 0300 122 6005 
Email address:  Helen.boffy.4808@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk  

BACKGROUND PAPERS NONE 

ATTACHMENTS 

Appendix A. External audit plan 2015/16 KPMG 
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Our team is:

■ Andrew Cardoza – Director

■ Simon Lacey – Audit Manager

■ Anita Pipes – Assistant manager

More details are on page 11.

Our work will be completed in four phases from January to September and our key 
deliverables are this Audit Plan and a Report to those charged with Governance as 
outlined on page 10.

Our fee for the audit of the Police and Crime Commissioner is £31,035 (£41,380 
2014/2015) and our fee for the audit of the Chief Constable is £15,000 (£20,000 
2014/2015).  See page 9.

Headlines

Financial Statement Audit Value for Money Arrangements work£

There are no significant changes to the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 
in 2015/16, which provides stability in terms of the accounting standards the bodies 
need to comply with.

Materiality
Materiality for planning purposes has been based on last year’s expenditure and set 
at £3m for both the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable.

We are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those 
which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance and this has been set 
at £150k for both the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable.

Significant risks
Those risks requiring specific audit attention and procedures to address the 
likelihood of a material financial statement error have been identified as:

■ Joint collaboration assurance statements.

Other areas of audit focus
Those risks with less likelihood of giving rise to a material error but which are 
nevertheless worthy of audit understanding have been identified as:

■ The introduction of a new payroll system at the service organisation and the 
impact on internal controls; and

■ The LLP accounts.

See pages 3 to 5 for more details.

Logistics

£

The National Audit Office has issued new guidance for the VFM audit which applies 
from the 2015/16 audit year. The approach is broadly similar in concept to the previous 
VFM audit regime, but there are some notable changes:

■ There is a new overall criterion on which the auditor’s VFM conclusion is based; and

■ This overall criterion is supported by three new sub-criteria.

Our risk assessment is ongoing and we will report VFM significant risks during our 
audit.

See pages 6 to 8 for more details.
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Financial Statements Audit

Our financial statements audit work follows a four stage audit process which is identified 
below. Appendix 1 provides more detail on the activities that this includes. This report 
concentrates on the Financial Statements Audit Planning stage of the Financial 
Statements Audit.

Value for Money Arrangements Work

Our Value for Money (VFM) Arrangements Work follows a five stage process which is 
identified below. Page 6 provides more detail on the activities that this includes. This report 
concentrates on explaining the VFM approach for the 2015/16. 

Introduction

Background and Statutory responsibilities

This document supplements our Audit Fee Letter 2015/16 presented to you in April 2015, 
which also sets out details of our appointment by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd 
(PSAA).

Our statutory responsibilities and powers are set out in the Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014 and the National Audit Office’s Code of Audit Practice. 

Our audit has two key objectives, requiring us to audit/review and report on your:

■ Financial statements (including the Annual Governance Statement): Providing an 
opinion on your accounts; and

■ Use of resources: Concluding on the arrangements in place for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources (the value for money 
conclusion).

The audit planning process and risk assessment is an on-going process and the 
assessment and fees in this plan will be kept under review and updated if necessary. 

Acknowledgements

We would like to take this opportunity to thank officers and Members for their continuing 
help and co-operation throughout our audit work.
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Financial statements audit planning

Financial Statements Audit Planning

Our planning work takes place during January to February 2016. This involves the 
following key aspects:

■ Risk assessment;

■ Determining our materiality level; and 

■ Issuing this audit plan to communicate our audit strategy.

Risk assessment

Professional standards require us to consider two standard risks for all organisations. We 
are not elaborating on these standard risks in this plan but consider them as a matter of 
course in our audit and will include any findings arising from our work in our 
ISA 260 Report.

■ Management override of controls – Management is typically in a powerful position to 
perpetrate fraud owing to its ability to manipulate accounting records and prepare 
fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be 
operating effectively. Our audit methodology incorporates the risk of management 
override as a default significant risk. In line with our methodology, we carry out 
appropriate controls testing and substantive procedures, including over journal 
entries, accounting estimates and significant transactions that are outside the normal 
course of business, or are otherwise unusual.

■ Fraudulent revenue recognition – We do not consider this to be a significant risk for 
local authorities as there are limited incentives and opportunities to manipulate the 
way income is recognised. We therefore rebut this risk and do not incorporate specific 
work into our audit plan in this area over and above our standard fraud procedures.

The diagram opposite identifies, significant risks and other areas of audit focus, which we 
expand on overleaf. The diagram also identifies a range of other areas considered by our 
audit approach.

£
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Significant Audit Risks

Those risks requiring specific audit attention and procedures to address the likelihood 
of a material financial statement error.

Other areas of audit focus

Those risks with less likelihood of giving rise to a material error but which are 
nevertheless worthy of audit understanding.

Financial statements audit planning (cont.)

Assurance over Regional Collaboration Accounts and Transactions

■ The level of collaborative work with other forces across the East Midlands has 
increased significantly over the past few years. This level of collaboration 
brings with it the need to ensure that appropriate governance arrangements 
are in place for each arrangement and that the necessary assurances are held 
over the completeness and accuracy of the financial information being 
provided to the PCC and CC for consolidation into its accounts.

■ We will review your governance arrangements over each aspect of regional 
collaboration and, more specifically, over the assurances you have sought in 
respect of the completeness and accuracy of the year end figures 
consolidated into your financial statements.

New Payroll system introduced at your service provider and new overtime 
system for officers

■ Payroll is outsourced to Leicestershire Police. We understand that a new 
financial system has been introduced at this service organisation during the 
year. This may bring with it new documentation or controls at Derbyshire Police 
which we will need to understand and document. In addition we understand the 
police overtime authorisation process will change towards the year end.

■ We will review the controls in operation over payroll expenditure as part of our 
work at both the interim and final accounts audit. We will also document any 
changes to the overtime processes.

Accounting For LLP transactions

■ The new joint HQ being built for the Police and Fire Service is accounted for via 
a LLP which is led by Derbyshire Fire Authority. As the build progresses capital 
expenditure will become more material and we will need to ensure that the 
correct accounting approach has been taken within your accounts.

■ We will review your arrangements for accounting for all LLP transactions and the 
assurance you have obtained over the completeness and accuracy of the year 
end figures provided by the LLP. We will liaise with the audit team responsible 
for Derbyshire Fire Authority to ensure a consistent approach to the audit of 
these figures.

£
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Financial statements audit planning (cont.)

Materiality

We are required to plan our audit to determine with reasonable confidence whether or not 
the financial statements are free from material misstatement. An omission or misstatement 
is regarded as material if it would reasonably influence the user of financial statements. 
This therefore involves an assessment of the qualitative and quantitative nature of 
omissions and misstatements.

Generally, we would not consider differences in opinion in respect of areas of judgement
to represent ‘misstatements’ unless the application of that judgement results in a financial 
amount falling outside of a range which we consider to be acceptable.

Materiality for planning purposes has been set at £3m for both the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and the Chief Constable, which equates to 1.5 percent of the group gross 
expenditure for the prior year.

We design our procedures to detect errors in specific accounts at a lower level of precision.

Reporting to the Audit Committee

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are material to 
our opinion on the financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless report to the Joint 
Audit and Risk Assurance Committee (JARAC) any unadjusted misstatements of lesser 
amounts to the extent that these are identified by our audit work.

Under ISA 260(UK&I) ‘Communication with those charged with governance’, we are 
obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those which are 
‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. ISA 260 (UK&I) defines ‘clearly trivial’ as 
matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually or in aggregate and 
whether judged by any quantitative or qualitative criteria.

For both the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chief Constable we propose that an 
individual difference could normally be considered to be clearly trivial if it is less than 
£150k.

If management have corrected material misstatements identified during the course of the 
audit, we will consider whether those corrections should be communicated to the JARAC to 
assist it in fulfilling its governance responsibilities.

£
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Value for money arrangements work

VFM audit risk assessment

Financial statements and 
other audit work

Identification of 
significant VFM risks (if 

any) Conclude on 
arrangements to 

secure VFM

No further work required

Assessment of work by other review 
agencies

Specific local risk based work

V
FM

 conclusion

Continually re-assess potential VFM risks

£

Informed 
decision 
making

Working 
with 

partners 
and third 
parties

Sustainable 
resource 

deployment 

Overall criterion

In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took 
properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and 

sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.

Background to approach to VFM work

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires auditors of local government bodies 
to be satisfied that the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable  ‘has made 
proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources’. 

This is supported by the Code of Audit Practice, published by the NAO in April 2015, which 
requires auditors to ‘take into account their knowledge of the relevant local sector as a 
whole, and the audited body specifically, to identify any risks that, in the auditor’s 
judgement, have the potential to cause the auditor to reach an inappropriate conclusion on 
the audited body’s arrangements.’

The VFM approach is fundamentally unchanged from that adopted in 2014/2015 and the 
process is shown in the diagram below. However, the previous two specified reporting 
criteria (financial resilience and economy, efficiency and effectiveness) have been 
replaced with a single criteria supported by three sub-criteria. These sub-criteria provide a 
focus to our VFM work. The diagram to the right shows the details of
this criteria.
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Value for money arrangements work (cont.)
£

VFM audit stage Audit approach

VFM audit risk assessment We consider the relevance and significance of the potential business risks faced by all local authorities, and other risks that apply specifically to the 
Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable. These are the significant operational and financial risks in achieving statutory functions and 
objectives, which are relevant to auditors’ responsibilities under the Code of Audit Practice.

In doing so we consider:

■ The Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable’s own assessment of the risks it faces, and its arrangements to manage and address 
its risks;

■ Information from the Public Sector Auditor Appointments Limited VFM profile tool;

■ Evidence gained from previous audit work, including the response to that work; and

■ The work of other inspectorates and review agencies.

Linkages with financial 
statements and other
audit work

There is a degree of overlap between the work we do as part of the VFM audit and our financial statements audit. For example, our financial 
statements audit includes an assessment and testing of the organisational control environment, including the financial management and governance 
arrangements, many aspects of which are relevant to our VFM audit responsibilities.

We have always sought to avoid duplication of audit effort by integrating our financial statements and VFM work, and this will continue. We will 
therefore draw upon relevant aspects of our financial statements audit work to inform the VFM audit. 

Identification of
significant risks

The Code identifies a matter as significant ‘if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that the matter would be of interest to the 
audited body or the wider public. Significance has both qualitative and quantitative aspects.’

If we identify significant VFM risks, then we will highlight the risk to the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable and consider the most 
appropriate audit response in each case, including:

■ Considering the results of work by the Police and Crime Commissioner, Chief Constable, inspectorates and other review agencies; and

■ Carrying out local risk-based work to form a view on the adequacy of the arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 
use of resources.
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Value for money arrangements work (cont.)
£

VFM audit stage Audit approach

Assessment of work by other 
review agencies

and

Delivery of local risk based 
work

Depending on the nature of the significant VFM risk identified, we may be able to draw on the work of other inspectorates, review agencies and other 
relevant bodies to provide us with the necessary evidence to reach our conclusion on the risk.

If such evidence is not available, we will instead need to consider what additional work we will be required to undertake to satisfy ourselves that we 
have reasonable evidence to support the conclusion that we will draw. Such work may include:

■ Meeting with senior managers;

■ Review of minutes and internal reports;

■ Examination of financial models for reasonableness, using our own experience and benchmarking data from within and without the sector.

Concluding on VFM 
arrangements

At the conclusion of the VFM audit we will consider the results of the work undertaken and assess the assurance obtained against each of the VFM 
themes regarding the adequacy of the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of resources.

If any issues are identified that may be significant to this assessment, and in particular if there are issues that indicate we may need to consider 
qualifying our VFM conclusion, we will discuss these with management as soon as possible. Such issues will also be considered more widely as part 
of KPMG’s quality control processes, to help ensure the consistency of auditors’ decisions.

Reporting We will report on the results of the VFM audit through our ISA 260 Report. This will summarise any specific matters arising, and the basis for our 
overall conclusion.

The key output from the work will be the VFM conclusion (i.e. our opinion on the arrangements for securing VFM), which forms part of our audit 
report. 
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Other matters 

Whole of government accounts (WGA)

We are required to review your WGA consolidation and undertake the work specified under 
the approach that is agreed with HM Treasury and the National Audit Office. Deadlines for 
production of the pack and the specified approach for 2015/16 have not yet been 
confirmed.

Elector challenge

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 gives electors certain rights. These are:

■ The right to inspect the accounts;

■ The right to ask the auditor questions about the accounts; and

■ The right to object to the accounts. 

As a result of these rights, in particular the right to object to the accounts, we may need to 
undertake additional work to form our decision on the elector's objection. The additional 
work could range from a small piece of work where we interview an officer and review 
evidence to form our decision, to a more detailed piece of work, where we have to 
interview a range of officers, review significant amounts of evidence and seek legal 
representations on the issues raised. 

The costs incurred in responding to specific questions or objections raised by electors is 
not part of the fee. This work will be charged in accordance with the PSAA's fee scales.

Our audit team will continue to be led by Andrew Cardoza, with Simon Lacey and Anita 
Pipes providing continuity at a day to day level. Appendix 2 provides more details on 
specific roles and contact details of the team.

Reporting and communication 

Reporting is a key part of the audit process, not only in communicating the audit findings 
for the year, but also in ensuring the audit team are accountable to you in addressing the 
issues identified as part of the audit strategy. Throughout the year we will communicate 
with you through meetings with the Deputy Chief Finance Officer and the JARAC. Our 
communication outputs are included in Appendix 1.

Independence and Objectivity

Auditors are also required to be independent and objective. Appendix 3 provides more 
details of our confirmation of independence and objectivity.

Audit fee

Our Audit Fee Letter 2015/2016 issued to you in April 2015 first set out our fees for the 
2015/2016 audit. This letter also sets out our assumptions. We have not considered it 
necessary to make any changes to the agreed fees at this stage. 

Police and Crime Commissioner - The planned audit fee for 2015/16 is £31,035. This is 
a reduction in audit fee, compared to 2014/2015, of £10,345 (25%).

Chief Constable - The planned audit fee for 2015/16 is £15,000. This is a reduction in 
audit fee, compared to 2014/2015, of £5,000 (25%).
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Appendix 1: Key elements of our financial statements audit approach

Driving more value from the audit through data and 
analytics
Technology is embedded throughout our audit approach 
to deliver a high quality audit opinion. Use of Data and 
Analytics (D&A) to analyse large populations of 
transactions in order to identify key areas for our audit 
focus is just one element. We strive to deliver new 
quality insight into your operations that enhances our 
and your preparedness and improves your collective 
‘business intelligence.’ Data and Analytics allows us to:
■ Obtain greater understanding of your processes, to 

automatically extract control configurations and to 
obtain higher levels assurance.

■ Focus manual procedures on key areas of risk and 
on transactional exceptions.

■ Identify data patterns and the root cause of issues to 
increase forward-looking insight.

We anticipate using data and analytics in our work 
around key areas such as non pay expenditure and 
journals. We also expect to provide insights from our 
analysis of these tranches of data in our reporting to add 
further value from our audit.
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Appendix 2: Audit team

Your audit team has been drawn from our specialist public sector assurance department. Our audit team consists of a mix of new and existing staff to enable both a fresh 
perspective to be made whilst ensuring a consistency in day to day staff involved in you audit

Name Andrew Cardoza

Position Partner/Director

‘My role is to lead our team and ensure the delivery 
of a high quality, valued added external audit 
opinion.

I will be the main point of contact for the JARAC 
and Chief Finance Officers.’

Andrew Cardoza
Director

0121 232 3869

andrew.cardoza@kpmg.co.uk

Name Anita Pipes

Position Assistant Manager

‘I will be responsible for the on-site delivery of our 
work and will supervise the work of our audit 
assistants.’

Anita Pipes
Assistant Manager

0115 945 4481

anita.pipes@kpmg.co.uk

Name Simon Lacey

Position Manager

‘I provide quality assurance for the audit work 
and specifically any technical accounting and 
risk areas. 

I will work closely with Andrew to ensure we 
add value. 

I will liaise with the S151 officers and other 
Executive Directors.’Simon Lacey

Manager

0115 9454484

simon.lacey@kpmg.co.uk

mailto:Andrew.cardoza@kpmg.co.uk
mailto:anita.pipes@kpmg.co.uk
mailto:simon.lacey@kpmg.co.uk
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Appendix 3: Independence and objectivity requirements

Independence and objectivity

Professional standards require auditors to communicate to those charged with governance, 
at least annually, all relationships that may bear on the firm’s independence and the 
objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff. The standards also place 
requirements on auditors in relation to integrity, objectivity and independence.

The standards define ‘those charged with governance’ as ‘those persons entrusted with the 
supervision, control and direction of an entity’. In your case this is the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and Chief Constable.

KPMG LLP is committed to being and being seen to be independent. APB Ethical Standard 
1 Integrity, Objectivity and Independence requires us to communicate to you in writing all 
significant facts and matters, including those related to the provision of non-audit services 
and the safeguards put in place, in our professional judgement, may reasonably be thought 
to bear on KPMG LLP’s independence and the objectivity of the Engagement Lead and the 
audit team.

Further to this auditors are required by the National Audit Office’s Code of Audit Practice to: 

■ Carry out their work with integrity, independence and objectivity;

■ Be transparent and report publicly as required;

■ Be professional and proportional in conducting work; 

■ Be mindful of the activities of inspectorates to prevent duplication;

■ Take a constructive and positive approach to their work; 

■ Comply with data statutory and other relevant requirements relating to the security, 
transfer, holding, disclosure and disposal of information.

PSAA’s Terms of Appointment includes several references to arrangements designed to 
support and reinforce the requirements relating to independence, which auditors must 
comply with. These are as follows:

■ Auditors and senior members of their staff who are directly involved in the 
management, supervision or delivery of PSAA audit work should not take part in 
political activity.

■ No member or employee of the firm should accept or hold an appointment as a 
member of an audited body whose auditor is, or is proposed to be, from the same firm. 
In addition, no member or employee of the firm should accept or hold such 
appointments at related bodies, such as those linked to the audited body through a 
strategic partnership.

■ Auditors and their staff should not be employed in any capacity (whether paid or 
unpaid) by an audited body or other organisation providing services to an audited body 
whilst being employed by the firm.

■ Auditors appointed by the PSAA should not accept engagements which involve 
commenting on the performance of other PSAA auditors on PSAA work without first 
consulting PSAA.

■ Auditors are expected to comply with the Terms of Appointment policy for the 
Engagement Lead to be changed on a periodic basis.

■ Audit suppliers are required to obtain the PSAA’s written approval prior to changing any 
Engagement Lead in respect of each audited body.

■ Certain other staff changes or appointments require positive action to be taken by 
Firms as set out in the Terms of Appointment.

Confirmation statement

We confirm that as of February 2016 in our professional judgement, KPMG LLP is 
independent within the meaning of regulatory and professional requirements and the 
objectivity of the Engagement Lead and audit team is not impaired.
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This report is addressed to the Police and Crime Commissioner/Chief Constable and has been 
prepared for the sole use of the Police and Crime Commissioner/Chief Constable. We take no 
responsibility to any member of staff acting in their individual capacities, or to third parties. We draw 
your attention to the Statement of Responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies, which is available on 
Public Sector Audit Appointment’s website (www.psaa.co.uk).

External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibility for putting in place 
proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted in accordance with the law and 
proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used 
economically, efficiently and effectively.

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you have any concerns or are 
dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should contact Andrew Cardoza, the 
engagement lead to the Police and Crime Commissioner/Chief Constable, who will try to resolve your 
complaint. If you are dissatisfied with your response please contact the national lead partner for all of 
KPMG’s work under our contract with Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, Andrew Sayers, by 
email to Andrew.Sayers@kpmg.co.uk After this, if you are still dissatisfied with how your complaint has 
been handled you can access PSAA’s complaints procedure by emailing 
generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk by telephoning 020 7072 7445 or by writing to Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Limited, 3rd Floor, Local Government House, Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ.

mailto:Andrew.Sayers@kpmg.co.uk
mailto:generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk
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REPORT OF THE TREASURER  

6B: EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT AND TECHNICAL UPDATE 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 This report provides the Joint Audit Risk Assurance Committee (JARAC) with 

an overview on progress in delivering the external auditors responsibilities. 

1.2 The report also highlights the main technical issues which are currently having 

an impact in local government and policing. 

2. INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS 

2.1 An External Audit Plan covering the work that should be carried out to support 

the Audit opinion for the Statements of Accounts for 2015/16 has been 

considered on this agenda. The plan details the audit approach which covers 

planning, the control evaluation, substantive procedures and other audit 

matters.  

2.2 The detailed report attached at APPENDIX A covers four areas 

• A progress report 

• Details of a KPMG publication tilted: Value of Audit: Perspectives for 

Government 

• The technical update – where of particular interest are  

o changes arising as a result of the Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2015 

o exercise of public rights 

o the introduction of narrative statements 

o consultation on change to the scales of fees and charges for 

2016/17 (final scales expected in March) 

        Part I -                 
For Publication  
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• 2015/16 Audit deliverables with activities and due dates.  

2.3 Some external audit activity has already started and this is detailed in the 

attached APPENDIX A, (see Appendix 1). In particular KPMG have started 

planning for the audit of the financial statements and the Value for Money and 

Auditor opinion. 

2.4 Mr Cardoza, Director KPMG Public Sector Audit and Assurance, will be 

present to talk to this paper and answer Members’ questions. 

3. RECOMMENDATIONS 

i. To receive the External Audit Progress report 2015/16 

ii. To note the technical updates 

iii. To raise any matters of further concern with the Audit Director. 

4. IMPLICATIONS 

All implications are assessed and scored to the table below.  
HIGH – supporting explanation and narrative required and to be contained 
within the report 
MEDIUM – narrative to be contained within the report at the discretion of the 
author  
LOW – no narrative required 
 

 LOW MEDIUM HIGH 

Crime & Disorder √   

Environmental √   

Equality & Diversity √   

Financial  √  

Health & Safety √   

Human Rights √   

Legal  √  

Personnel √   
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BACKGROUND PAPERS NONE 
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Appendix A. External audit plan 2015/16 KPMG 
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External audit progress report and technical update – March 2016

This report provides the Joint 
Audit Risk Assurance 
Committee (JARAC) with an 
overview on progress in 
delivering our responsibilities 
as your external auditors.

The report also highlights the 
main technical issues which 
are currently having an impact 
in local government. 

If you require any additional 
information regarding the 
issues included within this 
report, please contact a 
member of the audit team.

We have flagged the articles 
that we believe will have an 
impact at the Authority and 
given our perspective on the 
issue:

 High impact

 Medium impact

 Low impact

 For info

PROGRESS REPORT

External audit progress report 2

KPMG RESOURCES

KPMG publication titled: Value of Audit: Perspectives for Government 3

TECHNICAL UPDATE

Financial sustainability of police forces  4 Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 – Exercise of 
public rights  7

Local Government Spending Review 
 5 Consultation on 2016/17 audit work programme and 

scales of fees  8

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 – Narrative 
statements  6 Proposed changes to business rates and core grant  9

APPENDIX

Appendix 1 – 2015/16 audit deliverables 10
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External audit progress report – March 2016

Commentary

Financial statements, 
Value for Money and 
Auditor Opinion –
2015/16

We have commenced our planning work in relation to our external audit of the 2015/16 financial 
statements.

We have met with Senior Officers and the finance team to discuss risks associated with the 2015/16 
external audit and we have prepared our 2015/16 plan which is included on the agenda with this report.

We will continue to work with Senior Officers and the finance team to review risks and accounting 
issues as they arise during the 2015/16 external audit.

We will complete our interim work on the  21st March 2016 reviewing your systems and processes that 
inform the production of the financial statements ahead of our final account work in the summer 
(commencing the 4th July 2016).

This document provides 
the Joint Audit Risk 
Assurance Committee 
(JARAC) with a high level 
overview on progress in 
delivering our 
responsibilities as your 
external auditors.

At the end of each stage 
of the audit we issue 
certain deliverables, 
including reports and 
opinions. A summary of 
progress against these 
deliverable is provided in 
Appendix 1 of this report. 
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KPMG resources

Area Comments

KPMG 
publication 
titled: Value of 
Audit –
Perspectives 
for Government

What does this report address?

This report builds on the Global Audit campaign – Value of Audit: Shaping the future of Corporate Reporting – to look more closely at the issue of 
public trust in national governments and how the audit profession needs to adapt to rebuild this trust. Our objective is to articulate a clear opinion 
on the challenges and concepts critical to the value of audit in government today and in the future and how governments must respond in order to 
succeed.

Through interviews with KPMG partners from nine countries (Australia, Canada, France, Germany, Japan, the Netherlands, South Africa, the UK 
and the US) as well as some of our senior government audit clients from Canada, the Netherlands and the US, we have identified a number of 
challenges and concepts that are critical to the value of audit in government today and in the future.

What are the key issues?

■ The lack of consistent accounting standards around the world and the impacts on the usefulness of government financial statements. 

■ The importance of trust and independence of government across different markets.

■ How government audits can provide accountability thereby enhancing the government’s controls and instigating decision-making.

■ The importance of technology integration and the issues that need to be addressed for successful implementation

■ The degree of reliance on government financial reports as a result of differing approaches to conducting government audits

The Value of Audit: Perspectives for Government report can be found on the KPMG website at https://home.kpmg.com/xx/en/home/insights.html

The Value of Audit: Shaping the Future of Corporate Reporting can be found on the KPMG website at www.kpmg.com/sg/en/topics/value-of-
audit/Pages/default.aspx

https://home.kpmg.com/xx/en/home/insights.html
http://www.kpmg.com/sg/en/topics/value-of-audit/Pages/default.aspx
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Technical update

Area Level of 
Impact

Comments KPMG 
perspective

Financial 
sustainability of 
police forces in 
England and 
Wales



Low

Further to the NAO report on the Financial sustainability of police forces in England and Wales, published in 
June 2015, and the hearing of the Public Accounts Committee (PAC) in July 2015 on the same topic, the PAC 
has now published its report on the matter.

The PAC report considers issues of devolution and accountability, and demand on police forces and the 
availability of information, and makes a number of recommendations. Forces may wish to be aware of the 
report in order to inform their planning considerations, particularly in relation to value for money arrangements.

The PAC report can be found here: 
www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201516/cmselect/cmpubacc/288/288.pdf

A copy of the original NAO report can be found here: www.nao.org.uk/report/financial-sustainability-of-police-
forces-in-england-and-wales/

The Committee 
may wish to seek 
assurances how 
their Force is 
addressing the 
issues raised in 
the reports. 

http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201516/cmselect/cmpubacc/288/288.pdf
http://www.nao.org.uk/report/financial-sustainability-of-police-forces-in-england-and-wales/
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Area Level of 
Impact

Comments KPMG 
perspective

The Local 
Government 
Association’s 
2015 Spending 
Review 
submission



Medium

In June 2015, the Local Government Association (LGA) set out proposals for the Government to consider as 
part of the Spending Review, aimed at streamlining public services, growth generating investment and social 
care and health – all while saving the public purse almost £2 billion a year by the end of the Parliament.
The submission focusses on five core issues originally highlighted in A Shared Commitment 
(www.local.gov.uk/documents/10180/6869714/L15-252+Spending+Review_WEB_new.pdf/3101e509-1e22-
4c26-91ac-8fd8a953aba5), published in early 2015. The LGA hopes that local government can work with 
central government to balance the nation’s books while improving public services and the local economic 
environment by delivering new, transformed and high-quality local services while at the same time reducing 
costs to the public sector.
The LGA believes the Spending Review should:
■ enable wider integration of social care and health services to deliver savings and improve outcomes This 

requires the annual £700 million funding gap in social care services to be closed and a transformation fund 
worth £2 billion in each year of the Spending Review period be created to allow new ways of working to 
become commonplace. The Spending Review should also implement a single place-based budget for 
delivering all local services through a Local Public Services Fund as part of at least five devolution deals;

■ promote growth and productivity by accepting the case for further devolution of powers and funding that 
stretches beyond 25 November. The LGA is calling for devolution of, or local influence over, more than £60 
billion of growth, skills and infrastructure funding over the Spending Review period, including:
‒ the components for an ambitious and effective Local Growth Fund with agreed settlements in devolution 

deals that last until 2020/21
‒ a central-local partnership to deliver effective and targeted skills and employment initiatives
‒ unlocking the ability of councils to contribute to the Government’s target of 275,000 affordable homes 

built over the lifetime of the Parliament.
■ help councils adequately resource and deliver high quality public services by transforming the business 

rate mechanism and providing a four year local government finance settlement; and
■ help councils focus on driving efficiency and value for money through an assessment of the impact of 

unfunded cost burdens that core council budgets are going to face over the Spending Review period.

The Committee 
may wish to seek 
assurances that 
the impact for 
their Authority is 
understood. 

Technical update

http://www.local.gov.uk/documents/10180/6869714/L15-252+Spending+Review_WEB_new.pdf/3101e509-1e22-4c26-91ac-8fd8a953aba5
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Technical update

Area Level of 
Impact

Comments KPMG 
perspective

Accounts and 
Audit 
Regulations 
2015 – Narrative 
statements 



Low

Authorities will need to be aware that the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require local authorities to 
produce and publish a narrative statement. Section 8 of the Regulations, which apply first from the 2015/16 
financial year, states:

Narrative statements

1) A Category 1 authority must prepare a narrative statement in accordance with paragraph (2) in respect of 
each financial year.

2) A narrative statement prepared under paragraph (1) must include comment by the authority on its financial 
performance and economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources over the financial year.

Authorities will need to publish the narrative statement along with the financial statements. The narrative 
statement does not form part of the financial statements and is therefore not subject to audit. As part of their 
audit work however, auditors will need to review the statement for consistency with their knowledge.

The narrative statement replaces the explanatory foreword and will need to be prepared in accordance with 
CIPFA/LASAAC’s Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting (the accounting code). The 2016/17 
accounting code will contain high level principles for authorities to follow when preparing their narrative 
statements. The principles set out in the accounting code will also be relevant to 2015/16 and we understand 
that CIPFA/LASAAC is likely to publish an update to the 2015/16 accounting code to clarify this.

The Committee 
may wish to seek 
assurances that 
their authorities 
have 
arrangements in 
place to meet the 
new 
requirements
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Technical update

Area Level of 
Impact

Comments KPMG 
perspective

Accounts and 
Audit 
Regulations 
2015 – Exercise 
of public rights 



Low

Authorities will be aware that the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (the Regulations) set out new 
arrangements for the exercise of public rights from 2015/16 onwards.

Paragraph 9(1) of the Regulations requires the responsible financial officer to commence the period for the 
exercise of public rights and to notify the local auditor of the date on which that period was commenced.

Paragraph 9(2) is clear that the final approval of the statement of accounts by the authority prior to publication 
cannot take place until after the conclusion of the period for the exercise of public rights.

As the thirty working day period for the exercise of public rights must include the first ten working days of July, 
this means that authorities will not be able to approve their audited accounts or publish before 15 July 2016.

The Committee 
may wish to seek 
assurances that 
the necessary 
arrangements 
are in in place for 
their Authority. 
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Area Level of 
Impact

Comments KPMG 
perspective

Consultation on 
2016/17 audit 
work 
programme and 
scales of fees



Low

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) has published its consultation on the 2016/17 proposed work 
programme and scales of fees.

The consultation sets out the work that auditors will undertake at principal audited bodies for 2016/17, with the 
associated scales of fees. The consultation documents, and list of individual proposed scale fees, are 
available on the PSAA website at www.psaa.co.uk/audit-and-certification-fees/consultation-on-201617-
proposed-fee-scales/

There are no planned changes to the overall work programme for 2016/17. It is proposed that scale fees are 
set at the same level as the scale fees applicable for 2015/16, set by the Audit Commission before it closed in 
March 2015. The Commission reduced scale fees from 2015/16 by 25 per cent, in addition to the reduction of 
up to 40 per cent made from 2012/13.

Following completion of the Audit Commission’s 2014/15 accounts, PSAA has received a payment in respect 
of the Audit Commission’s retained earnings.

PSAA will redistribute this and any other surpluses from audit fees to audited bodies, on a timetable to be 
established shortly.

The work that auditors will carry out on the 2016/17 accounts will be completed based on the requirements set 
out in the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and under the Code of Audit Practice published by the 
National Audit Office.

The consultation closes on Friday 15 January 2016. PSAA will publish the final work programme and scales of 
fees for 2016/17 in March 2016.

The Committee 
may wish to seek 
assurances on 
how their 
Authority have 
responded to the 
consultation. 

Technical update

http://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-and-certification-fees/consultation-on-201617-proposed-fee-scales/
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Technical update

Area Level of 
Impact

Comments

Proposed
changes to 
business rates 
and core grant



For 
Information

The Chancellor of the Exchequer has proposed some radical reforms of local government finance. The proposals are that by the 
end of the decade, councils will retain all locally raised business rates but will cease to receive core grant from Whitehall.

The Chancellor set out the landmark changes in a speech to the Conservative party conference in Manchester, saying it was time 
to face up to the fact that “the way this country is run is broken”.

Under the proposals, authorities will be able to keep all the business rates that they collect from local businesses, meaning that 
power over £26 billion of revenue from business rates will be devolved, he said

The uniform national business rate will be abolished, although only to allow all authorities the power to cut rates. Cities that choose 
to move to systems of combined authorities with directly elected city wide mayors will be able to increase rates for specific major 
infrastructure projects, up to a cap, likely to be set at £0.02 on the rate. 

The system of tariffs and top-ups designed to support areas with lower levels of business activity will be maintained in its present 
state.
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Deliverable Purpose Timing Status

Planning

Fee letter Communicate indicative fee for the audit year April 2015 Complete

External audit plan Outline our audit strategy and planned approach

Identify areas of audit focus and planned procedures

February 2016 Complete

Substantive procedures

Report to those 
charged with 
governance 
(ISA+260 report)

Details the resolution of key audit issues.

Communication of adjusted and unadjusted audit differences.

Performance improvement recommendations identified during our audit.

Commentary on the Council’s value for money arrangements.

September 2016 TBC

Completion

Auditor’s report Providing an opinion on your accounts (including the Annual Governance Statement).

Concluding on the arrangements in place for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of 
resources (the VFM conclusion).

September 2016 TBC

WGA Concluding on the Whole of Government Accounts consolidation pack in accordance with guidance issued by 
the National Audit Office.

September 2016 TBC

Annual audit letter Summarise the outcomes and the key issues arising from our audit work for the year. November 2016 TBC

Appendix 1 – 2015/16 Audit deliverables
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AGENDA ITEM 7A  
JOINT AUDIT RISK AND ASSURANCE COMMITTEE  

3 MARCH 2016 

JOINT AUDIT RISK AND ASSURANCE COMIITTEE  
3 MARCH 2016 

REPORT OF THE INTERNAL AUDITOR  

7A: INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2015/16 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 To receive a progress report from the internal auditors on their work to date 

this during this financial year. 

1.2 This report is in a new format which includes each audit report in full as an 

Annex, rather than under separate reporting cover. 

2. INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS 

Progress report  

2.1 As part of the management of the internal audit process, a progress report is 

provided to each meeting of the JARAC.  Attached at APPENDIX A to this 

report is the latest progress report dated February 2016.  

2.2 The report shows a summary of progress against the Internal Audit plan, 

including the status of the three audit assignment reports and the follow up 

report produced in this quarter. 

2.3 The opinions issued and the actions by priority are categorised into either 

Priority 1 (Fundamental), Priority 2 (Significant) or Priority 3 (Housekeeping).  

2.4 The table below shows a summary of the recommendations and overall 

assurance opinion for each of the assignment audits covered in this report. 

  

        Part I – 
     For Publication  
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AGENDA ITEM 7A  
JOINT AUDIT RISK AND ASSURANCE COMMITTEE  

3 MARCH 2016 

 

Annex to 
the report 

Name of audit 
undertaken Recommendations  Assurance 

Opinion  

Annex A Procurement 

P1 Fundamental   0 

Satisfactory P2 Significant       1 

P3 Housekeeping  0 

Annex B 
Proceeds of 
Crime Act cash 
seizures 

P1 Fundamental   0 

Satisfactory P2 Significant       3 

P3 Housekeeping 7 

Annex C Victims Code of 
Practice 

P1 Fundamental   0 

Satisfactory P2 Significant       2 

P3 Housekeeping 4 

Annex D Follow up Report   

 

2.5 Members are directed to reviewing the covering progress report, each 

detailed audit assignment and the follow up report.  

2.6 The committee can consider if it can take assurance that the controls upon 

which the organisation relies to manage each of the audit activities are 

suitably designed, consistently applied and effective as detailed in each of the 

Annexes to the report. 

2.7 The committee can consider if it can take assurance that the previous 

activities agreed by management in earlier audit reports have been carried out 

as planned and/or as reported in the follow up report, as detailed in Annex D 

to the report. 

2.8 The report will be presented by a representative from Mazars.  JARAC 

Members will then have the opportunity to question the internal auditor. 

2.9 There is an opportunity to review the content of the audit plan to ensure it 

continues to be fit for purpose. 
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3 MARCH 2016 

3. RECOMMENDATIONS 

i. That the Committee takes assurance that the internal audit plan 

addresses relevant matters and is being delivered as expected, as 

detailed in Appendix A to the report. 

ii. It is recommended that the committee take assurance that the controls 

upon which the organisation relies to manage procurement are suitably 

designed, consistently applied and effective as detailed in Annex A to 

the report. 

iii. It is recommended that the committee take assurance that the controls 

upon which the organisation relies to manage Proceeds of Crime Act 

cash seizures are suitably designed, consistently applied and effective, 

as detailed in Annex B to the report. 

iv. It is recommended that the committee take assurance that the controls 

upon which the organisation relies to manage Victims Code of practice 

activity are suitably designed, consistently applied and effective, as 

detailed in Annex C to the report. 

v. It is recommended that the committee take assurance that the previous 

activities agreed by management in earlier audit reports have been 

carried out as planned and/or as reported in the follow up report, as 

detailed in Annex D to the report. 

 

4. IMPLICATIONS 

All implications are assessed and scored to the table below.  
HIGH – supporting explanation and narrative required and to be contained 
within the report 
MEDIUM – narrative to be contained within the report at the discretion of the 
author  
LOW – no narrative required 
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 LOW MEDIUM HIGH 

Crime & Disorder X   

Environmental X   

Equality & Diversity X   

Financial X   

Health & Safety X   

Human Rights X   

Legal X   

Personnel X   

 

Contact details  
in the event  
of enquiries 

Name: Helen Boffy 
External telephone number: 0300 122 6005 
Email address: Helen.boffy.4808@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk    

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

1. Internal Audit Plan 2015/16  

ATTACHMENTS 

Appendix A. Internal Audit Progress Report February 2016, Mazars  

Annex A Procurement 

Annex B Proceeds of Crime and Cash Seizures  

Annex C  Victims Code 

Annex D Follow up report 
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1 

 

01  Introduction 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update the Joint Audit, Risk & Assurance Committee (JARAC) as to the progress in respect of the Operational Plan for the 

year ended 31st March 2016. The plan was considered and approved by the JARAC at its meeting on 16th July 2015.   
1.2 The Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable are responsible for ensuring that the organisations have proper internal control and management 

systems in place.  In order to do this, they must obtain assurance on the effectiveness of those systems throughout the year, and are required to make a 
statement on the effectiveness of internal control within their annual report and financial statements. 

1.3 Internal audit provides the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable, through the JARAC, with an independent and objective opinion on 
governance, risk management and internal control and their effectiveness in achieving the organisation’s agreed objectives.  Internal audit also has an 
independent and objective advisory role to help line managers improve governance, risk management and internal control.  The work of internal audit, 
culminating in our annual opinion, forms a part of the OPCC and Force’s overall assurance framework and assists in preparing an informed statement on 
internal control.    

1.4 Responsibility for a sound system of internal control rests with the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable and work performed by internal 
audit should not be relied upon to identify all weaknesses which exist or all improvements which may be made.  Effective implementation of our 
recommendations makes an important contribution to the maintenance of reliable systems of internal control and governance. 

1.5 Internal audit should not be relied upon to identify fraud or irregularity, although our procedures are designed so that any material irregularity has a 
reasonable probability of discovery.  Even sound systems of internal control will not necessarily be an effective safeguard against collusive fraud. 

1.6 Our work is delivered is accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). 
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02 Summary of internal audit work to date 
 

2.1 We have issued three final reports since the last progress report to the JARAC, these being in respect of Procurement, Proceeds of Crime and 
Victims Code of Practice. The following table provides a summary of assurances, including the number and categorisation of recommendations, 
in each report issued to the date. Further details, and scheduled work for the rest of the year, are provided in Appendices A1 and A2 respectively. 
 

Auditable 
Area 

Report 
Status 

Assurance 
Opinion  

Priority 1 
(Fundamental) 

Priority 2 
(Significant) 

Priority 3 
(Housekeeping) 

Total 

HR 
Transactional 

Final Satisfactory - 3 4 7 

Data Quality – 
Complaints 

Final Satisfactory - 3 4 7 

Regulatory Checks Final No opinion given - - - - 

Core Financials Final Satisfactory - 2 - 2 

Proceeds of Crime Final Satisfactory - 3 7 10 

Integrated Offender 
Management 

Final Satisfactory - 1 - 1 

Payroll – Advisory Final No opinion given - - - - 

Procurement Final Satisfactory - 1 - 1 

Victims Code of 
Practice 

Final Satisfactory - 2 4 6 

  Total - 15 19 34 

 



 

3 

 

2.2 In addition to the above, work in respect of Payroll and Commissioning has recently been completed and is currently being reviewed. As reported at the 
last meeting, due to the absence of a key person within the Estates Department, in liaison with management, it was agreed that the audit of Estates will 
be deferred to 2016/17.  

 
2.3 As reported in the last progress report, Baker Tilly had been commissioned to undertake assurance mapping exercises across a number of regional 

collaboration arrangements, the output of which would inform the internal audit plan. At the time of writing we have not had sight of the output from this 
work. However, the OPCC Chief Finance Officer group have requested that Internal Audit, in the meantime, undertake regional audits in the following 
areas: 

 

• Officers in kind 

• Forensics 

• Covert Payments 

• Terms of Reference for the PCC Board 

Audit are currently in discussions to agree the scope of each audit, with the aim of carrying out the work as part of the 2015/16 audit plan. 
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03  Performance 

3.1 The following table details the Internal Audit Service performance for the year to date measured against the key performance indicators that were set out 
within Audit Charter. This list will be developed over time, with some indicators either only applicable at year end or have yet to be evidenced. 

No Indicator Criteria Performance 

1 Annual report provided to the JARAC As agreed with the Client Officer N/A  

2 Annual Operational and Strategic Plans to the JARAC As agreed with the Client Officer Achieved 

3 Progress report to the JIAC 7 working days prior to meeting. Achieved 

4 Issue of draft report 
Within 10 working days of completion 
of final exit meeting. 

100% (9/9) 

5 Issue of final report 
Within 5 working days of agreement 
of responses. 

100% (9/9) 

6 Follow-up of priority one recommendations 
90% within four months. 100% within 
six months. 

N/A 

7 Follow-up of other recommendations 
100% within 12 months of date of 
final report. 

N/A 

8 Audit Brief to auditee 
At least 10 working days prior to 
commencement of fieldwork. 

100% (12/12) 

9 Customer satisfaction (measured by survey) 85% average of 3 or less N/A 
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Appendix A1 – Summary of Reports  

 

Brief outlines of the work carried out, a summary of our key findings raised and the assurance opinions given in respect 
of the reports issued to date are provided below: 

 

Procurement 

Assurance Opinion Satisfactory 

 

Recommendation Priorities 

Priority 1 (Fundamental) - 

Priority 2 (Significant)  1 

Priority 3 (Housekeeping) - 

 

The audit objectives were to provide assurance that: 

• Procurement activity is conducted within existing Contract Regulations and that these are available to all 

relevant staff. 

• Expenditure with regards to goods and services is incurred in accordance with Contract Regulations and best 

value principles, for example through the use of quotes, tenders, national and regional frameworks. 

• Requisitions and purchase orders are approved at the appropriate level and in accordance with approved 

delegated authorities. 

• Expenditure on goods and services is supported, where appropriate, by an approved purchase order. 

• Where there is a contract/ agreement in place, expenditure is only incurred with these suppliers. 

• There are effective goods receipting processes in place.  

 

In reviewing the above risks, our audit considered the following areas: 

• Policies and Procedures 

• Purchases Over £25,000 

• Purchases Under £25,000 

• Contracts and National Frameworks 

We raised one priority 2 recommendation where we believe there is scope for improvement within the control 
environment.   This is set out below: 

• The Forensics team should ensure that the Force Financial Regulations are adhered to within their purchasing 
processes. Orders should be raised to ensure appropriate approval and full tendering procedures should be 
followed for high value purchases, with consideration of OJEU regulations for expenditure exceeding £172,000. 
In addition, purchases which exceed £200,000 should be referred to the OPCC for approval in line with the 
Scheme of Delegation. 

Management have confirmed that the issue has been discussed with the relevant officer to ensure awareness and 
compliance going forward.  
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Proceeds of Crime Act Cash Seizures 

Assurance Opinion Satisfactory 

 

Recommendation Priorities 

Priority 1 (Fundamental) - 

Priority 2 (Significant)  3 

Priority 3 (Housekeeping) 7 

 
 

Our audit considered the following risks relating to the area under review: 

• Policies and procedures are in place to ensure that cash seized is dealt with in accordance with relevant 
legislation and the Force’s Proceeds of Crime – Seizure of Cash Policy. 

• Suitable training is provided to officers and staff to ensure they are aware of POCA requirements when seizing 
cash. 

• Cash seized during the arrest and investigation is recorded appropriately and consistently, and is subject to 
regular review. 

• Cash is stored securely, with restricted and controlled access to nominated officers and staff. 

• Cash is counted in a secure and controlled environment, with an appropriate level of independent verification. 

• Cash is banked in a timely manner into an interest bearing account, and not into general funds. 

• Cash held in this account is reconciled regularly and transferred within the agreed timescales. 

• Performance information regarding the number and amount of confiscation orders is managed and is accurate 
and up to date. 

In reviewing the above risks, our audit considered the following areas: 

• policies and procedures,  

• officers training,  

• recording and control of POCA cash, and  

• performance monitoring and management information.   

We raised three priority 2 recommendations where we believe there is scope for improvement within the control 
environment.   These are set out below: 

• Regular reconciliation’s by FIU should be carried out between POCA cash seizure postings to the bank account 
and the FIU internal database/ master spreadsheet. 
 
The cash detained should ideally only relate to cash relating to current investigations and payments pending to 
the Home Office.  These reconciliations should confirm that cash seized is accurately and timely deposited and 
also agree with the quarterly management information produced by the FIU. 
 

• A review of the records to support the POCA/ PACE bank account should be undertaken to establish which 
transactions and historic reserves relate to each income stream.  In addition, assurance should be gained that 
the Home Office is aware of all monies detained and that payments have been transferred to them where 
necessary.     
 

• Records to support the cash counting process should be signed by the two officers involved in the process to 
confirm a true and accurate total has been recorded and banked.   
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We also raised seven priority 3 recommendations of a more housekeeping nature. These related to: 

• Officer training 

• Banking processes 

• Guardian system recording 

• Out of hours safe log 

• Payments to the Home Office 

• Receipting of cash seizures 

• Performance monitoring 
 

Where it was agreed that further action was required, Management have confirmed that actions have been taken or will 
be implemented by March 2016. In a number of instances, however, Management have accepted the risk and have 
proposed no further action. 

 

Victims Code of Practice 

Assurance Opinion Satisfactory 

 

Recommendation Priorities 

Priority 1 (Fundamental) - 

Priority 2 (Significant)  2 

Priority 3 (Housekeeping) 4 

 

The audit objectives were to provide assurance that: 

• The requirements, as set out in the Code of Practice for Victims of Crime, are being complied with. 

• Policies and procedures have been put in place to support officers in complying with the Code.  Such guidance 
should include, but not be limited to:  

- Needs assessments 

- Crime reporting work sheets 

- Referral mechanisms 

- Communications with the victim 

- Personal statements 

- Complaints procedures 

 

• Performance information is available, and provided to the appropriate forum, in respect of compliance with the Code 

and action plans are in place to address areas of improvement. 

• Service user feedback is effectively utilised to inform and improve both police and wider partnership services on an 

ongoing basis.  

 

In reviewing the above risks, our audit considered the following areas: 

• Compliance with requirements of the Code 

• Policies and procedures 

• Performance Information 

• Service user feedback 
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We raised two priority 2 recommendations where we believe there is scope for improvement within the control 
environment.   These are set out below: 

• A crime contract should be completed for all crimes with supporting information in the form of the Investigation 
Template recorded in the Guardian system. Where a contract has not been issued, the crime contract field in 
Guardian should not be completed as this affects the accuracy of performance monitoring information.  
 
It should also be confirmed for the implementation of Niche that either documents can be scanned into the 
system or e-forms will exist for completion to ensure an adequate audit trail to confirm that this entitlement has 
been fulfilled. 
 

• Needs assessments should be carried out with all victims of crime and results recorded within the Crime 
Recording System.  This should then be used as the basis of support provision for the victim going forward. 

We also raised four priority 3 recommendations of a more housekeeping nature. These related to: 

• Telephone resolutions 

• Preferred method of contact 

• Victim information pack 

• Training 

Where it was agreed that further action was required, Management have confirmed that actions will be taken to address 
the issues raised in the report, with proposed implementation dates to September 2016. 
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Appendix A2  Internal Audit Plan 2015/16 

Auditable Area Planned 
Fieldwork Date 

Draft Report 
Date 

Final Report 
Date 

Target 
JARAC 

Comments 

Core Assurance 

Core Financials Oct 2015 A - Nov 2015 A – Nov 2015 Dec 2015 Final report issued. 

Payroll Jan 2015 P - Feb 2016 P - Mar 2016 June 2016 Fieldwork completed; being reviewed. 

Procurement Nov 2015 A - Dec 2015 A - Jan 2016 Mar 2016 Final report issued. 

HR – Transactional Aug 2015 A - Aug 2015 A - Sept 2015 Dec 2015 Final report issued. 

Regulatory Checks – Divisions On-going On-going On-going On-going First visits carried out in October. Further visits 
scheduled for March. 

Strategic & Operational Risk 

Integrated Offender Management Sept 2015 A - Oct 2015 A - Nov 2015 Dec 2015 Final report issued. 

Proceeds of Crime Sept 2015 A - Sept 2015 A - Dec 2015 Mar 2016 Final report issued. 

Commissioning Feb 2015 P - Feb 2016 P - Mar 2016 June 2016 Fieldwork completed; being reviewed. 

Code of Practice for Victims of Crime Nov 2015 A - Dec 2015 A - Jan 2016 Mar 2016 Final report issued. 

Estates VFM Jan 2016 P - Feb 2016 P - March 2016 April 2016 Due to ill health of auditee, agreed to defer to 
2016/17 

Data Quality – Complaints Aug 2015 A - Aug 2015 A - Sept 2015 Dec 2015 Final report issued. 

Governance – LLP Arrangements Feb 2016 P – Feb 2016 P - March 2016 June 2016  

Collaboration 
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Auditable Area Planned 
Fieldwork Date 

Draft Report 
Date 

Final Report 
Date 

Target 
JARAC 

Comments 

Collaboration On-going On-going On-going On-going See paragraph 2.3. 

Other 

Payroll – Advisory Oct 2015 A - Oct 2015 A - Oct 2015 Dec 2015 Audit memo issued. 

* P – Planned Date; A – Actual Date 
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Appendix A3 – Definition of Assurances and Priorities 

Definitions of Assurance Levels 

Assurance Level Adequacy of system 
design 

Effectiveness of 
operating controls 

Significant 
Assurance: 

There is a sound system 
of internal control 
designed to achieve the 
Organisation’s objectives. 

The control processes 
tested are being 
consistently applied. 

Satisfactory 
Assurance: 

While there is a basically 
sound system of internal 
control, there are 
weaknesses, which put 
some of the 
Organisation’s objectives 
at risk. 

There is evidence that 
the level of non-
compliance with some 
of the control processes 
may put some of the 
Organisation’s 
objectives at risk. 

Limited Assurance: Weaknesses in the 
system of internal 
controls are such as to 
put the Organisation’s 
objectives at risk. 

The level of non-
compliance puts the 
Organisation’s 
objectives at risk. 

No Assurance Control processes are 
generally weak leaving 
the processes/systems 
open to significant error 
or abuse. 

Significant non-
compliance with basic 
control processes 
leaves the 
processes/systems 
open to error or abuse. 

 

 

Definitions of Recommendations  

 

Priority Description 

Priority 1 
(Fundamental) 

Recommendations represent fundamental control 
weaknesses, which expose the organisation to a high 
degree of unnecessary risk. 

Priority 2 
(Significant)  

Recommendations represent significant control 
weaknesses which expose the organisation to a moderate 
degree of unnecessary risk. 

Priority 3 
(Housekeeping)  

Recommendations show areas where we have highlighted 
opportunities to implement a good or better practice, to 
improve efficiency or further reduce exposure to risk. 
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Appendix A4 - Contact Details 

 

Contact Details 

 

Mike Clarkson 
07831 748135 

Mike.Clarkson@Mazars.co.uk 

Brian Welch 

 

07780 970200 

Brian.Welch@Mazars.co.uk 
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A5  Statement of Responsibility  
 

Status of our reports 

The responsibility for maintaining internal control rests with management, with internal audit providing a 
service to management to enable them to achieve this objective.  Specifically, we assess the adequacy of the 
internal control arrangements implemented by management and perform testing on those controls to ensure 
that they are operating for the period under review.  We plan our work in order to ensure that we have a 
reasonable expectation of detecting significant control weaknesses.  However, our procedures alone are not a 
guarantee that fraud, where existing, will be discovered.                                                                                           

The contents of this report are confidential and not for distribution to anyone other than the Office of the Police 
and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Police.  Disclosure to third parties cannot be made 
without the prior written consent of Mazars LLP. 

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy group.  Mazars LLP is 

registered by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales to carry out company audit work. 
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01 Introduction 
As part of the Internal Audit Plan for 2015/16 for the Office of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Police, we have 
undertaken an audit of the controls and processes in place in respect of 
procurement.   

The specific areas that formed part of this review included: procurement 
regulations and processes; purchases between £5,000 and £25,000, 
purchases over £25,000; contracts and regional frameworks.    

We engaged with a number of staff members across the force during the 
review and are grateful for their assistance during the course of the audit.  

02 Background  
Procurement below £25,000 is carried out by Derbyshire Police officers and 
staff through the Agresso system, with orders being raised by the Finance & 
Business Support team under the responsibility of the Head of Finance.  
The Agresso system ensures appropriate approval of purchase orders and 
payments, which has recently been reviewed as part of the Derbyshire Core 
Financials audit in November 2015.   

In accordance with Contract Standing Orders, one quote is required for up 
to £5,000 and three quotes for between £5,000 and £25,000. For 
Procurement exceeding £25,000 Derbyshire OPCC and Derbyshire Police 
were previously part of the East Midlands Strategic Commercial Unit 
(EMSCU) Procurement Shared Service. This was intended to bring together 
commercial / procurement specialists to ensure that high value purchases 
were procured in compliance with force policy and relevant legislation.  
Additionally, the EMSCU was also in place in order to maximise value for 
money through collaboration, innovation and the management of supply 
markets for potential purchases greater than £25,000. 

 

Due to concerns with service delivery by EMSCU, procurement processes 
were largely brought back in-house from April 2015 and a central 
procurement team, consisting of the Head of Procurement and a 
Procurement Officer, introduced.  A limited amount of activity is now 
referred to EMSCU, with this arrangement currently under review.  

In scoping and delivering this audit, consideration has been given to the 
recent Core Financials audit to ensure there was no duplication of work 
undertaken.  One of the objectives was, however, found to overlap which 
was in respect of goods receipting processes for supplier payments.  It was 
identified that the Agresso system ‘auto approves’ goods received after 7 
working days if this is not confirmed manually by the order requisitioner. 
Audit considered that this presented the risk of payments being made for 
goods which had not actually been received and subsequently a finding was 
raised within the Core Financials report.  Management have responded to 
confirm that although an amendment to the existing workflow would be 
impractical, the current purchase to pay process is under review and that an 
exceptions report might be run and reviewed on a regular basis.  
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03 Key Findings 

Assurance on adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls:  
 

 

 Satisfactory Assurance 

 

Examples of areas where controls are operating reliably 

• Clear procurement policies, along with defined approval limits for purchases, 
are to be incorporated within the Force Financial Regulations which are 
currently being reviewed and updated.      

 

• A high volume of dedicated procurement work is ongoing within the central 
procurement team to drive improvements within current processes and also to 
ensure officers and staff have greater awareness of regulations and 
requirements to ensure compliance with procurement policies.  

 

• Any procurement activity referred to the East Midlands Strategic Commercial 
Unit is being closely monitored by the central procurement team to ensure 
effective service delivery and value for money.    

 

 

 

 

Priority Number of recommendations 

1 (Fundamental) - 

2 (Significant) 1 

3 (Housekeeping) - 

TOTAL 1 

 

Sector Comparison 

There is greater control over any process that is retained ‘in-house’ and although 
outsourcing can prove effective, confidence in the supplier and their systems of 
internal control must be instilled to ensure risks are appropriately managed and 
processes are in line with Force requirements and regulations.   

Reduced resources mean that organisations have to accept a certain degree of 
risk within processes and systems in place, ensuring that this risk is identified and 
managed as business as usual.   

 

Risk Management 

The audit noted some areas of non-compliance with the procurement policy in 
respect of obtaining three quotes to demonstrate value for money within the 
purchasing process.   

From sample testing undertaken, particularly around expenditure between £5,000 
and £25,000, ‘off contract’ spend is being incurred without three quotes being 
obtained to support the expenditure.    
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The procurement team, however, are fully aware of these issues are working with 
the individual departments and service areas to address control weaknesses and 
identify new contracts going forward. The objective is to significantly reduce the 
amount of off-contract spend and increase awareness of available controls and the 
requirements to obtain three written quotations where necessary.   

Above £25,000 expenditure is also being incurred without evidence of a formal 
tender process, however it is noted that this mainly relates to required buildings 
and maintenance work whilst the contract for outsourcing this to Derbyshire County 
Council is implemented.   

Non-compliance was also noted in the raising of purchase orders to support 
expenditure, however again it was noted that the procurement team are 
undertaking a significant amount of work in this area, which includes monitoring by 
the finance team and also production of agreed list where a purchase order is not 
actually required.  Assurance was given that this will improve compliance and 
transparency in this area.   

An issue is highlighted in this report in terms of adherence to procurement rules for 
expenditure which exceeds both the local tender limit of £25,000 and the OEJU 
threshold of £172,514.  Although this was initially driven by advice from EMSCU, 
there were weaknesses in the local purchasing process, including failure to raise a 
purchase order.  The Head of Procurement has now addressed this with the 
department concerned to ensure full compliance going forward.  

The Force Financial Regulations are currently being reviewed and are due for 
finalisation / approval by the end of December 2015.  As part of this work the Head 
of Procurement has reviewed and updated the procurement policies for 
incorporation in the regulations, which will then be further re-iterated to all staff. 

 

 

 

 

 

Value for money 

One of the reasons for reducing activity for EMSCU was concerns over value for 
money which is seen as key priority for the Force.  Many of the ongoing projects 
within Procurement are driven towards achieving value for money, for example, the 
ordering process is under review with the intention to reduce the requirements for 
purchase orders for certain categories of expenditure, including Grant Payments, 
Medical Services and Memberships and Subscriptions.    

In addition, the Force are implementing on-line catalogues within the Agresso 
system with the aim of securing efficiencies in both the ordering and payment 
process.  It is also the intention to significantly reduce ‘off-contract’ spend which 
again supports this priority.   
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04 Areas for Further Improvement and Action Plan 
Definitions for the levels of assurance and recommendations used within our reports are included in Appendix A1. 

We identified a number of areas where there is scope for improvement in the control environment. The matters arising have been discussed with management, 
to whom we have made recommendations. The recommendations are detailed in the management action plan below.  

 Observation/Risk Recommendation  Priority Management response Timescale/ 
responsibility 

4.1 Adherence to Procurement Regulations 

Observation: From testing undertaken on one 
payment which exceeded the OJEU tendering limit 
of £172,514 it was identified that the procurement 
rules had not been adhered to. 

The payment of £215,000 was in relation to a Rapid 
DNA Machine procured by the Forensics Team.  An 
order was not raised for this purchase, the 
tendering process was not followed and, in 
addition, no referral was made to the OPCC to sign 
off the decision to purchase (which is a requirement 
when a contract exceeds £200,000).   

Initial advice had been provided to the requisitioner 
from EMSCU to explore the existing contract with 
this supplier which had then formed the basis of the 
purchase.  However, it was noted that the contract 
in place with this supplier was for the provision of 
services rather than the purchase of equipment. 

 

 

 

 

 

The Forensics team should ensure 
that the Force Financial Regulations 
are adhered to within their 
purchasing processes. Orders 
should be raised to ensure 
appropriate approval and full 
tendering procedures should be 
followed for high value purchases, 
with consideration of OJEU 
regulations for expenditure 
exceeding £172,000. In addition, 
purchases which exceed £200,000 
should be referred to the OPCC for 
approval in line with the Scheme of 
Delegation. 

 

2 

 

This issue has been discussed with 
the relevant officer to ensure 
awareness and compliance going 
forward.  

 

Implemented / 
Head of 
Procurement 
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 Observation/Risk Recommendation  Priority Management response Timescale/ 
responsibility 

Risk: Failure to obtain value for money within the 
purchasing process and a breach of the force 
financial regulations and scheme of delegation.  In 
addition, this could leave the force open to 
challenge by alternative suppliers and potential 
penalties under OJEU procurement rules.  
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A1 Audit Information  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Audit Control Schedule 

Client contacts:  Daniel Fern, Head of Finance 

Ray Poxon, Head of Procurement 

Internal Audit Team: Mike Clarkson, Partner 

Brian Welch, Internal Audit  Senior Manager 

Rosie Watson, Internal Auditor  

Finish on Site \ Exit Meeting: 26th November 2015 

Draft  report issued: 18th December 2015 

Management responses received: 30th December 2015 

Final report issued: 8th January 2016 

Scope and Objectives 

Our audit considered the risks relating to the following areas under review: 

• Procurement activity is conducted within existing Contract Regulations and that 

these are available to all relevant staff. 

• Expenditure with regards to goods and services is incurred in accordance with 

Contract Regulations and best value principles, for example through the use of 

quotes, tenders, national and regional frameworks. 

• Requisitions and purchase orders are approved at the appropriate level and in 

accordance with approved delegated authorities. 

• Expenditure on goods and services is supported, where appropriate, by an 

approved purchase order. 

• Where there is a contract/ agreement in place, expenditure is only incurred with 

these suppliers. 

• There are effective goods receipting processes in place.  

 

In reviewing the above risks, our  audit considered the following areas: 

• Policies and Procedures 

• Purchases Over £25,000 

• Purchases Under £25,000 

• Contracts and National Frameworks 

Testing was carried out on a sample basis.  

Our work does not provide any guarantee against material errors, loss or fraud or provide an 

absolute assurance that material error, loss or fraud does not exist. 
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Definitions of Assurance Levels 

Assurance Level Adequacy of system 
design 

Effectiveness of 
operating controls 

Significant 
Assurance: 

There is a sound system of 
internal control designed to 
achieve the Organisation’s 
objectives. 

The control processes 
tested are being 
consistently applied. 

Satisfactory 
Assurance: 

While there is a basically 
sound system of internal 
control, there are 
weaknesses which put some 
of the Organisation’s 
objectives at risk. 

There is evidence that the 
level of non-compliance 
with some of the control 
processes may put some 
of the Organisation’s 
objectives at risk. 

Limited Assurance: Weaknesses in the system 
of internal controls are such 
as to put the Organisation’s 
objectives at risk. 

The level of non-
compliance puts the 
Organisation’s objectives 
at risk. 

No Assurance: Control processes are 
generally weak leaving the 
processes/systems open to 
significant error or abuse. 

Significant non-
compliance with basic 
control processes leaves 
the processes/systems 
open to error or abuse. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Definitions of Recommendations  

 

Priority Description 

Priority 1 
(Fundamental) 

Recommendations represent fundamental control 
weaknesses, which expose the organisation to a high 
degree of unnecessary risk. 

Priority 2 
(Significant)  

Recommendations represent significant control 
weaknesses which expose the organisation to a moderate 
degree of unnecessary risk. 

Priority 3 
(Housekeeping)  

Recommendations show areas where we have highlighted 
opportunities to implement a good or better practice, to 
improve efficiency or further reduce exposure to risk. 
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A2 Statement of Responsibility  

Status of our reports 

The responsibility for maintaining internal control rests with management, with internal audit providing a service to management to enable them to achieve this objective.  
Specifically, we assess the adequacy of the internal control arrangements implemented by management and perform testing on those controls to ensure that they are 
operating for the period under review.  We plan our work in order to ensure that we have a reasonable expectation of detecting significant control weaknesses.  
However, our procedures alone are not a guarantee that fraud, where existing, will be discovered.                                                                                            

The contents of this report are confidential and not for distribution to anyone other than the Office of the Derbyshire Police and Crime Commissioner.  Disclosure to third 
parties cannot be made without the prior written consent of Mazars LLP. 

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy group.  Mazars LLP is registered by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England 

and Wales to carry out company audit work. 
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01 Introduction 
As part of the Internal Audit Plan for 2015/16 for the Office of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner (PCC) for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Police, we have 
undertaken an audit of the controls and processes in place in respect of the 
Proceeds of Crime Act (POCA) cash seizures 

The specific areas that formed part of this review included: policies and 
procedures, officers training, recording and control of POCA cash and 
performance monitoring and management information.   

We engaged with a number of staff members across the force during the 
review and are grateful for their assistance during the course of the audit.  

 

02 Background  
The Proceeds of Crime Act (POCA) 2002 was enacted following the 
publication of new governance policy as set out in the Performance and 
Innovation Unit’s report “Recovering the Proceeds of Crime”.  It deals with a 
wide range of matters relevant to UK law on proceeds of crime issues.  
These include confiscation orders against convicted individuals 
(requirement payment to the State based upon the benefit obtained from 
their crimes), civil recovery of proceeds of crime from unconvicted 
individuals, taxation of profits generated from crime, UK anti-money 
laundering legislation, powers of investigation into suspected proceeds of 
crime offences, and internal co-operation by UK law enforcement agencies 
against money laundering.   

The Act has been implemented since 2002, most particularly by the Serious 
Organised Crime and Police Act 2005, the Serious Crime Act 2007 and the 
Serious Crime Act 2015.  The Act creates opportunities to remove cash 
(and other assets) from criminals.  , POCA contains powers for the search, 

seizure, detention and forfeiture of cash to the value of £1,000 or more, 
suspected of being the proceeds of crime, or intended for the use in criminal 
activity. 

The Derbyshire Police Financial Investigation Unit (FIU) is operated from 
three divisions across the county; being Chesterfield, Buxton and Derby.  
The Unit has a mandate to pursue, under POCA, individuals potentially 
benefiting from the proceeds of crime.  The Unit is led by a Detective 
Inspector (East Midlands Fraud and Financial Investigation Unit) and 
Financial Investigators, based across the three regions, headed by the 
Manager of the Financial Investigation Unit in Chesterfield Police Station. 

There is a Home Office incentive to seize cash, as the Force is able to 
retain 50% of the proceeds of cash seizures which in Derbyshire is spent 
across the divisions in areas directly related to improving the process for 
cash/ property seizures.   

Current performance information identifies the following number of cash 
seizures under POCA, and their related value, for the period 1.4.15 to 
31.8.15: 

Division Number of seizures Related value (£) 

Chesterfield 2 4,223 

Buxton 1 8,170 

Derby 27 110,045 

 

The number of seizures made across each division is influenced broadly by 
the demographics of each area, location in terms of rural and urban make 
up, criminal activity in each area and also the approach between seizures 
under POCA or those that are deemed to fall under the Police and Criminal 
Evidence Act (PACE). 
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03 Key Findings 

Assurance on adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls 
 

 Satisfactory Assurance 

 

Examples of areas where controls are operating reliably 

• A full record of all cash seizures and status of the current investigation is 
maintained within each division, with consistency noted in the recording of 
progress and assurance given that investigations are carried out in line with the 
relevant legislation.   

• A robust performance monitoring procedure and system is in place to enable 
management information to be readily available and consistent between the 
FIU  database and the Home Office Joint Asset Recovery Database (JARD).   

• Tracking of payments made to, and received from, the Home Office in terms of 
the incentivisation scheme is robust and supporting records are effectively 
maintained. 

• Expertise within the Unit is recognised and advice and guidance to Officers 
involved in the all aspects of the process is readily available. 

• Magistrate Court orders are timely obtained to ensure authority exists to detain 
cash under POCA for each seizure made. 

 

 

 

 

Priority Number of recommendations 

1 (Fundamental) - 

2 (Significant) 3 

3 (Housekeeping) 7 

TOTAL 10 

 

Sector Comparison 

 Reduction in resources brings increased challenges to the control 
environment particularly in terms of ensuring that processes for recording 
information and ensuring adequate audit trails exist to support movements of 
cash.  Common areas of risk and control weakness exist within financial 
management where the importance of maintaining separation of duties, 
which may require increased resource, can be overlooked.   

Any system or process that involves handling, control and recording physical 
cash presents high risk of fraud and/ or misappropriation and failure to 
implement appropriate controls may lead to this going undetected.    

Failure to input all required information to the Force’s Intelligence Systems 
(Guardian in the case of Derbyshire Police) is also a common area of 
weakness.  It is recognised that resources are limited, however information 
such as estimates of cash seized and seal reference numbers used to 
secure cash are key to ensuring an adequate audit trail in the control and 
monitoring of such assets.   

Areas of good practice were identified which stood in comparison to other 
organisations, particularly in terms of maintaining adequate records to 
identify all ongoing POCA cases and associated progress.   
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Risk Management 

Areas for improvement are identified in respect of reconciliations of records between 
the FIU and finance section alongside the need to evidence separation of duties in 
the cash counting process.  Overall a satisfactory assurance is given and 
implementation of the recommendations in this report will further strengthen the 
control environment.  

It was unclear at the time of the audit as to the nature of historic transactions (debits 
and credits) and balances of the POCA account and whether payments were due on 
these transactions to the Home Office or cash was due to be returned to persons 
subject of investigations.  It is recommended that a further piece of work be carried 
out to verify all transactions and balances to ensure correct usage of the account, 
accurate accounting treatment of balances and any payments due are actioned and 
any receipts collected.  

The Financial Investigation Unit need to take a more proactive role terms of gaining 
assurance that amounts of cash seized are independently verified and that the 
POCA account reserves/ cash detained agree with management information in the 
section.  This will improve the control environment and minimise the risks going 
forward.   

The management of the Unit outside these processes, however, was deemed 
effective and all investigations were logged and recorded along with regular 
progress updates and management information available.  Other risks are being 
relatively well managed.     

 

 

 

 

 

Value for money 

Value for money (VfM) considerations can arise in various ways and our audit 
process aims to include an overview of the efficiency of systems and processes in 
place within the auditable area.  

Updates are currently being made to the Cash Seizure Policy in terms of 
administrative forfeiture which brings authority for Senior Officers to issue forfeiture 
notices to criminals rather than have involvement by legal services and the courts. 
Once embedded, this process will bring efficiencies in terms of officer time and 
financial costs currently incurred via the legal process. 
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04 Areas for Further Improvement and Action Plan 
Definitions for the levels of assurance and recommendations used within our reports are included in Appendix A1. 

We identified a number of areas where there is scope for improvement in the control environment. The matters arising have been discussed with management, 
to whom we have made recommendations. The recommendations are detailed in the management action plan below.  

 Observation/Risk Recommendation Priority Management response Timescale/ 
responsibility 

4.1 Confirmation of POCA Cash movements 

Observation: A bank account exists for POCA cash 
seizure monies detained as part of ongoing 
investigations.   

This account is reconciled on a monthly basis by 
finance officers at Headquarters.  This involves 
agreement of bankings and payments logged in 
month by finance to the statements received from 
the bank.   

There is currently no reconciliation by FIU between 
postings to this account and the management 
information they maintain, both on their database of 
cash seizures and the JARD Home Office System.  

As a result, the figure for monies detained, as per 
the FIU management information, were not 
periodically agreed with POCA cash seizure 
balances in the account.  As a consequence the FIU 
would be unaware if any cash they request to be 
deposited in the account was not actually paid in or 
was misplaced as part of the counting/ banking 
process.   

Risk: Failure to reconcile these key systems 
resulting in errors and/ or omissions in the recording 

 

Regular reconciliation’s by FIU 
should be carried out between 
POCA cash seizure postings to the 
bank account and the FIU internal 
database/ master spreadsheet.   
 
The cash detained should ideally 
only relate to cash relating to 
current investigations and payments 
pending to the Home Office.  These 
reconciliations should confirm that 
cash seized is accurately and timely 
deposited and also agree with the 
quarterly management information 
produced by the FIU.  

 

2 

Copies of the POCA bank account 
statement and bank account 
reconciliation are now forwarded to FIU 
on a regular basis. 

 

Finance Support 

Manager/Manag

er EMSOU 

Fraud and 

Financial 

Investigation 

Unit 

Implemented 

November 2015. 
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 Observation/Risk Recommendation Priority Management response Timescale/ 
responsibility 

of cash seizures, counting and banking processes 
going unidentified.  In addition, if monies were 
deposited in an incorrect account or 
misappropriated by an officer this would go 
undetected by the FIU.  
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 Observation/Risk Recommendation Priority Management response Timescale/ 
responsibility 

4.2 POCA Bank Account 

Observation: A bank account exists for POCA cash 
seizure monies detained as part of ongoing 
investigations.  This bank account is also used for 
deposits of cash confiscations under the Police and 
Criminal Evidence Act (PACE).  From a review of 
the account at the time of the audit it was noted that 
transactions had been moving through this account 
but historic balances remained (yearly balances are 
in the process of being established/ confirmed by 
Finance Team).   

It could not be established within the time available 
as to what this balance related to, for example, the 
split between POCA cash seizure and PACE 
confiscations.  It was noted however that the 
Finance section are currently using historic paper 
records to confirm the nature of the transactions/ 
historic balances.  (Paper records were maintained 
historically by staff which are no longer in post prior 
to the spreadsheet system being introduced).  

A reconciliation has been provided to evidence that 
transactions had been agreed to the bank account 
on an annual basis.  However, due to limited 
resource within finance it could not be established 
by the close of the audit the actual balance of cash 
retained by year which remained in the account and 
was still awaiting repayment to the Home Office.  

Risk: if monies are held without payments made to 
the Home Office, penalties could be incurred in 
future or unexpected claims made.  Failure to utilise 

 

A review of the records to support 
the POCA/ PACE bank account 
should be undertaken to establish 
which transactions and historic 
reserves relate to each income 
stream.  In addition, assurance 
should be gained that the Home 
Office is aware of all monies 
detained and that payments have 
been transferred to them where 
necessary.     

 

2 

A separate bank account is maintained 
for cash seized under POCA legislation.  
Any cash seized under PACE legislation 
is paid into a different bank account. 

A spreadsheet is maintained, which 
details every transaction relating to 
POCA since the separate bank account 
was opened.  The Finance Support Team 
are currently reviewing the previous 
manual paper based system to ensure 
the more up to date spreadsheet system 
is complete as part of an ongoing drive to 
eradicate paper from the department. 

The spreadsheet and bank account 
reconciliation allows Strategic Finance to 
establish the balance of the account for 
year-end closedown purposes and 
preparation of the financial statements.  
Working papers confirming the balance 
are prepared for scrutiny by external 
audit.  Balances at the financial year-end 
for the past three years are as follows: - 

2014/15 £705,337.48 

2013/14 £422,172.03 

2012/13 £460,661.52 

Therefore, we do not consider that 
changes to the current systems and 
procedures are required, as internal 

 

 

 

 

 

Finance Support 

Manager 

31st March 2016 
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 Observation/Risk Recommendation Priority Management response Timescale/ 
responsibility 

available funds.  

 

controls provide good levels of assurance 
and adequately mitigate risk. 
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 Observation/Risk Recommendation Priority Management response Timescale/ 
responsibility 

4.3 Officer Training 

Observation:  At the scoping stage of the audit, 
management requested that proactive training 
arrangements be reviewed as part of this audit.   

Guidance in respect of the Cash Seizure process is 
available on the Force Intranet and the FIU provide 
training on an ongoing basis to ensure that front line 
officers are aware of the action to take should they 
be required to carry out a cash seizure under 
POCA.  

Due to reduced resources, training in Chesterfield 
and Buxton tends to be delivered by request from 
specialised teams and/ or individual officers rather 
than a formal proactive training plan being in place.   

Given that officers in these areas are not dealing 
with high volumes of cash seizures it was 
considered they may not routinely request training.  
It was therefore not possible to confirm that all new 
officers (and those which may require a refresh) 
have received dedicated training.  

Risk: New officers, or current officers who have not 
received training for a number of years, may be 
unaware of the procedures to follow for POCA cash 
seizures.  This could lead to failure to follow 
required processes/ legislation to enable timely 
court orders to be obtained and correct control and 
recording of cash seized.  

 

 

Consideration should be given to 
formulation and documentation of a 
proactive training plan to ensure 
that all new officers, or those that 
have not received training for a 
number of years, have received up 
to date POCA cash seizure training.   

 

3 

All new officers receive training on the 
Proceeds of Crime including cash 
seizure. In addition, Trainee Detectives 
are provided with more training during 
their attendance at the ICIDP Course.  

Training to operational staff is also 
catered for by utilising the Economic 
Crime Unit Financial Investigators based 
on the territorial divisions who will deliver 
tailored and specific Proceeds of Crime 
training.    

Therefore, it is considered that further 
training as suggested in this 
recommendation is not required.  Current 
arrangements already in place are more 
than adequate. 

N/A 
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 Observation/Risk Recommendation Priority Management response Timescale/ 

responsibility 

4.4 Cash Counting  

Observation: Following cash seizure, Financial 
Investigators transport cash to Derbyshire Police 
Headquarters Finance Section for banking.  Prior 
to the banking process the cash is counted by a 
finance officer to establish the amount of the 
seizure.  

Records to support this process are not currently 
signed by the person counting the money or the 
officer observing. Given the significant amounts of 
cash that move through the process it is 
considered that this control is significant in 
confirming that true and accurate amounts are 
being recorded.  

Although Finance Staff do provide confirmation to 
FIU via email that bankings have been made 
following the cash counting process, from a review 
of this email communication it is not deemed 
specific to confirm a secondary officer agreed the 
‘counting total’.   

Risk: Failure to evidence involvement of two 
officers in the counting process could result in 
increased risk of officer vulnerability in the event 
of errors, omissions and/ or misappropriation.   

 

Records to support the cash counting 
process should be signed by the two 
officers involved in the process to 
confirm a true and accurate total has 
been recorded and banked.   

 

 

 

2 

 

Cash is counted by the Finance Team at 
Force HQ, witnessed by Officers from 
FIU. 

Evidence and confirmation of the amount 
of cash counted and banked is emailed 
to the relevant officer by the Finance 
Team.  This is done because seizures 
often contain mutilated and counterfeit 
currency and the true figure is not known 
until after the monies have been verified 
by the bank.  

Therefore, we do not consider that there 
needs to be changes to the current 
systems and procedures, apart from the 
banking record is now initialled by the 
officers and staff who count the cash and 
witness the count.   

 

 

N/A 
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 Observation/Risk Recommendation Priority Management response Timescale/ 

responsibility 

4.5 Banking Process 

Observation: Following a cash seizure, cash is 
temporarily stored at one of the three divisional stations 
until the magistrate’s court detention order is obtained 
(within 48 hours of the seizure).  Following this, the 
cash is transported to Derbyshire Police Headquarters 
for banking.  The FIU advise that monies are banked as 
soon as the order is obtained, in addition there is a 
force wide directive that all cash held at any division 
should be banked within 7 days.    

Audit testing identified two cash seizures which had 
remained at the Derby Police Station for twelve and 
eight days respectively prior to banking.   

This was due to the requirement of two members of 
staff to transport the cash and a lack of available 
resource at the time.   

Risk: Failure to bank cash within 7 days leading to 
increased risk of unauthorised access and breach of 
Force directive/ policy.   

 

Cash should be banked on a 
timely basis and within 7 days of 
the seizure in line with Force 
Policy.  

 

3 

 

The seven days quoted in the policy is 
only guidance.  There will be always 
occasions when resources are not 
available to transport cash for banking.  
The risk described is equally relevant to 
cash being held within the seven day 
timescale.   

Therefore, we do not consider that 
changes to the current systems and 
procedures are required, as internal 
controls provide good levels of 
assurance and adequately mitigate risk. 

 

 

N/A 
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 Observation/Risk Recommendation Priority Management response Timescale/ 

responsibility 

4.6  Guardian System Recording 

Observation: Following a cash seizure, the individual 
police officer responsible is required to update details of 
the incident/ seizure on the Guardian system (the 
forces intelligence/ crime recording system).    
 
Details to be logged on the system include time and 
date of incident, amount of cash seized, seal numbers 
of the bags used to secure the cash and the current 
location of the cash.   
 
Audit sample testing identified that in two out of four 
cases the estimated value of the seizure had not been 
recorded.  In addition, in three out of four cases the 
seal number of the secure bags had not been recorded.   
 
Risk:  Failure to input all required detail to the system 
resulting in lack of an audit trail to confirm details of the 
initial seizure and increased risks of inability to 
establish a detailed log of cash movements and/ or 
location in the property stores.  

 

Operational officers should be 
reminded of the requirement and 
importance of logging full details 
of the cash seizure on the 
Guardian system, including value 
estimations and unique seal 
numbers.   

 

3 

In preparation for the implementation of 
Niche, the replacement for Guardian 
the Divisional Support Teams are 
currently undertaking an audit of all 
property to ensure we are only taking 
complete and accurate data across 
onto the new system. 

Following implementation of Niche 
controls built into the system make 
entering details of seized property 
much easier for officers.    

 

Divisional 
Support Team 

March 2016 
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 Observation/Risk Recommendation Priority Management response Timescale/ 

responsibility 

4.7 Out of Hours Safe Log 

Observation: When seizures are made out of office 
hours, access to general safes within the police stations 
may not be possible. Therefore, each division hold a 
‘night safe’ to enable deposits to be made following 
seizures at evenings or weekends.   

As part of this process, a cash book/ log should exist to 
enable officers to log details of the deposit, including 
their name, collar number, date/ location of seizure and 
estimated value.  This provides full details of the officer 
removing the cash for transfer to the general safe and 
the log should also evidence this movement.  (The cash 
book is considered an additional control, as full details 
should be recorded on the Guardian system, however 
weaknesses were identified in this process as outlined 
in finding 4) 

It was identified that this log is not maintained / 
available for completion at the Chesterfield station night 
safe or ‘tombola’ operation night safe at Buxton.       

Risk: Failure to record all cash movements and full 
details of the seizure resulting in increased risk of 
unrecorded access and subsequent lack of audit trail to 
locate cash in the event that this is misplaced.     

 

The cash log book should be 
reintroduced for Chesterfield and 
Buxton night safe deposits to 
ensure an adequate audit trail 
exists in terms of cash movement 
and officers depositing and 
removing cash.   

 

 

3 

 

Introducing a further paper based 
record of cash seizures is not deemed 
necessary.   

Currently the Constabulary require all 
seizures to be recorded on to Guardian.  
It is considered best practice only to 
have one record, allowing a second 
paper based system to be used is an 
inefficient duplication.   

On learning that the second system has 
been in operation at Derby, the paper 
based manual record has been 
withdrawn and a notice put in its place 
to remind officers to record seizures 
made out of office hours on to 
Guardian. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Head of Finance 

Implemented 
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 Observation/Risk Recommendation Priority Management response Timescale/ 

responsibility 

4.8 Payments to the Home office 

Observation: Following an investigation under POCA, if 
it is concluded that the cash seizure does in fact relate 
to the proceeds of crime and forfeiture is confirmed, this 
must be paid over to the Home Office.  The forfeiture is 
communicated to legal services who have to authorise 
this payment to be made.  Outstanding cases are then 
chased with legal services for progress on at least a 
quarterly basis by the Administrative Assistant in the 
Economic Crime Unit.    

Although there is no set timescales in which this should 
be paid over, it is good practice to do this timely to 
ensure financial incentives paid back to the force of 
50% are realised as soon as possible. 

Audit testing noted that payments waiting legal ‘sign off’ 
total approximately £170,000. Although it was 
acknowledged that legal services are suffering from 
lack of resource it was identified that recent payments 
had been approved which related to 2015, however 
four payments related to 2014 forfeitures (totalling 
£7,554). The reason for this could not be established at 
the time of the audit.  The pending payment which 
made up the majority of this balance was £101,340, for 
which forfeiture had been made in April 2015.   

Risk: Failure to timely action the legal sign off for 
forfeitures resulting in delays in both payments being 
made to the Home Office and subsequent incentive 
payments being made back to the force.    

 

Legal services should review 
current forfeitures awaiting sign off 
to establish why the 2014 cases 
remain outstanding.  In addition, 
consideration should be given to 
prioritising high value forfeitures to 
enable any significant amounts of 
incentive income to be realised at 
the earliest opportunity.  

 

 

3 

 

I can confirm that we have reviewed 
systems as to why there are still 
transfers outstanding from 2014. The 
detail related to the fact that the 
amounts for forfeiture were not the 
same as the amounts held in the POCA 
account and there was dialogue 
between Finance, Legal, and ECU 
about why this might be the case. This 
has now been resolved (banknotes had 
not been banked due to the need for 
forensic testing) and I understand the 
transfers have been made.  

There will be a priority for high value 
cases but this is subject to concurrent 
criminal investigations and the case law 
authorities that say that these should 
not go ahead where there is a risk that 
they may prejudice the criminal case.  

There is a new process where HO 
transfers will be completed by ECU 
officers which brings Derbyshire into 
line with the Region. 

 

 

Head of Legal 

Implemented. 
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 Observation/Risk Recommendation Priority Management response Timescale/ 

responsibility 

4.9 Receipting of Cash Seizures 

Observation: Derbyshire Police have set up an interest 
bearing bank account for depositing of POCA cash 
seizures to ensure this is adequately controlled, 
monitored and accounted for.  

All POCA cash seizures should be paid into this 
account, however it was noted that one seizure 
(estimated at £8,160) made by Buxton division had 
been incorrectly receipted in the divisional statement of 
receipt account. 

It was identified that the officer making the seizure had 
failed to inform property staff that this was POCA cash 
and therefore it was banked into the general account 
rather than transported to Headquarters for receipt into 
the POCA account.  

Risk: Failure to deposit POCA cash seizures in line with 
required policy leading to failure to adequately monitor 
and account for seizures in line with the agreed process 
and potential omissions from the management 
reporting process.  

  

 

All POCA cash seizures should be 
deposited in the dedicated bank 
account.  

Officers should be reminded of the 
importance of confirming with 
property/ finance staff of the 
nature of the cash to ensure it is 
receipted to the correct account.  

  

 

3 

 

The audit identified one occasion when 
an error was made.  There will always 
be the odd occasion when cash is paid 
into the incorrect bank account.  The 
important point is cash was timely 
banked in this instance. 

Therefore, we do not consider that 
changes to the current systems and 
procedures are required, as internal 
controls provide good levels of 
assurance and adequately mitigate risk. 

 

 

N/A 
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 Observation/Risk Recommendation Priority Management response Timescale/ 

responsibility 

4.10 Performance Monitoring 

Observation: Performance information is submitted by 
the FIU Manager to the Force’s Detective 
Superintendent on a quarterly basis to summarise the 
number of POCA cash seizures and monies currently 
detailed within ongoing investigations. In addition, 
separate incentivisation reports are received by the 
Detective Superintendent to detail the payments made 
to the Force as part of this scheme.  

The audit noted however that details of payments made 
to the Home Office are not included within the 
performance information. This could give an indication 
of incentive payments due in future months to assist the 
forecasting process.  POCA bank account actual 
reserves are currently unknown by the FIU and 
therefore this information is not communicated for 
investment planning purposes. Although cash detained 
figures are provided, these have not been reconciled to 
the bank account so could not be confirmed (please 
refer to finding 4.1).  

The FIU were currently unaware of any formal annual 
investment reports produced to outline the actual use of 
POCA monies, although it is understood an amount is 
utilised by the Force then allocated between the three 
FI divisions. 

Risk: Lack of planning and reporting on POCA activity 
and funds usage.  

 

Performance information 
submitted to management should 
include payments made to the 
Home Office and current bank 
reserves to inform the planning/ 
forecasting process.  

In addition, this information should 
be utilised for the purpose of 
annual investment reports to 
outline how POCA incentives 
received by the force have been 
utilised specifically and how this 
resource is planned to be 
allocated in future.  

 

3 

 

FIU routinely produce information on 
POCA activity for the Constabulary’s 
Director of Intelligence. 

Financial planning does not rely on 
POCA incentives to fund the 
Constabulary’s revenue budget, nor is it 
good practice to do so. 

Any funding received is treated as a 
‘one off’ and used to fund specific ad-
hoc police activity. 

 

N/A 
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A1 Audit Information  

 

 

 

Audit Control Schedule 

Primary Sponsors: Helen Boffy, OPCC Finance Director 

Terry Neaves, Force Finance Director 

Client contacts:  Rob King, Detective Inspector, East 

Midlands Fraud and Financial Investigation 

Unit 

Richard Land, Manager Financial 

Investigation Unit 

Julie Burton, Corporate Finance Manager 

Internal Audit Team: Mike Clarkson, Director 

Brian Welch, Internal Audit  Senior Manager 

Rosie Watson, Internal Audit Assistant 

Manager 

Finish on Site \ Exit Meeting: 17th September 2015 

Draft  report issued: 25th September 2015 

Management responses received: 8th December 2015 

Final report issued: 10th December 2015 

Scope and Objectives 

Our audit considered the following control objectives relating to the area under review: 

• Policies and procedures are in place to ensure that cash seized is dealt with in 

accordance with relevant legislation and the Force’s Proceeds of Crime – Seizure 

of Cash Policy. 

• Suitable training is provided to officers and staff to ensure they are aware of 

POCA requirements when seizing cash. 

• Cash seized during the arrest and investigation is recorded appropriately and 

consistently, and is subject to regular review. 

• Cash is stored securely, with restricted and controlled access to nominated 

officers and staff. 

• Cash is counted in a secure and controlled environment, with an appropriate level 

of independent verification. 

• Cash is banked in a timely manner into an interest bearing account, and not into 

general funds. 

• Cash held in this account is reconciled regularly and transferred within the agreed 

timescales. 

• Performance information regarding the number and amount of confiscation orders 

is managed and is accurate and up to date. 

In reviewing the above risks, our  audit considered the following areas: 

• policies and procedures,  

• officers training,  

• recording and control of POCA cash, and  

• performance monitoring and management information.   

Testing was carried out on a sample basis.  

Our work does not provide any guarantee against material errors, loss or fraud or provide an 

absolute assurance that material error, loss or fraud does not exist. 
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Definitions of Assurance Levels 

Assurance Level Adequacy of system 
design 

Effectiveness of 
operating controls 

Significant 
Assurance: 

There is a sound system 
of internal control 
designed to achieve the 
Organisation’s objectives. 

The control processes 
tested are being 
consistently applied. 

Satisfactory 
Assurance: 

While there is a basically 
sound system of internal 
control, there are 
weaknesses, which put 
some of the 
Organisation’s objectives 
at risk. 

There is evidence that 
the level of non-
compliance with some 
of the control processes 
may put some of the 
Organisation’s 
objectives at risk. 

Limited Assurance: Weaknesses in the 
system of internal 
controls are such as to 
put the Organisation’s 
objectives at risk. 

The level of non-
compliance puts the 
Organisation’s 
objectives at risk. 

No Assurance Control processes are 
generally weak leaving 
the processes/systems 
open to significant error 
or abuse. 

Significant non-
compliance with basic 
control processes 
leaves the 
processes/systems 
open to error or abuse. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Definitions of Recommendations  

 

Priority Description 

Priority 1 
(Fundamental) 

Recommendations represent fundamental control 
weaknesses, which expose the organisation to a high 
degree of unnecessary risk. 

Priority 2 
(Significant)  

Recommendations represent significant control 
weaknesses which expose the organisation to a moderate 
degree of unnecessary risk. 

Priority 3 
(Housekeeping)  

Recommendations show areas where we have highlighted 
opportunities to implement a good or better practice, to 
improve efficiency or further reduce exposure to risk. 
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A2 Statement of Responsibility  
 

Status of our reports 

The responsibility for maintaining internal control rests with management, with internal audit providing a service to management to enable them to achieve this objective.  
Specifically, we assess the adequacy of the internal control arrangements implemented by management and perform testing on those controls to ensure that they are 
operating for the period under review.  We plan our work in order to ensure that we have a reasonable expectation of detecting significant control weaknesses.  
However, our procedures alone are not a guarantee that fraud, where existing, will be discovered.                                                                                            

The contents of this report are confidential and not for distribution to anyone other than the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and Derbyshire 
Police.  Disclosure to third parties cannot be made without the prior written consent of Mazars LLP. 

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy group.  Mazars LLP is registered by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England 
and Wales to carry out company audit work. 

Chartered Accountants in England and Wales to carry out company audit work. 
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01 Introduction 
As part of the Internal Audit Plan for 2015/16 for the Office of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire (OPCC) and Derbyshire Police, we 
have undertaken an audit of the controls and processes in place in respect 
of the Victims Code of Practice.   

The specific areas that formed part of this review included: compliance with 
requirements of the Code, policies and procedures, performance 
information and service user feedback.  

We engaged with a number of staff members across the Force during the 
review and are grateful for their assistance during the course of the audit.  

02 Background  
The Code of Practice for Victims of Crime (which has recently been revised 
and reissued in October 2015) forms a key part of the wider Government 
strategy to transform the criminal justice system by putting victims first, 
making the system more responsive and easier to navigate. Victims of 
crime should be treated in a respectful, sensitive and professional manner 
without discrimination of any kind. They should receive appropriate support 
to help them, as far as possible, to cope and recover and be protected from 
re-victimisation. It is important that victims of crime know what information 
and support is available to them from reporting a crime onwards and who to 
request help from if they are not receiving it.   

The Victims’ Code sets out the services and information victims of crime are 
entitled to from criminal justice agencies — such as the police and courts — 
from the moment they report a crime to the end of the trial. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
The Code states that extra support should be given to three priority 
categories of victims — victims of the most serious crime, persistently 
targeted and vulnerable or intimidated victims. It also includes new sections 
aimed at businesses and young victims of crime. 
 
Derbyshire Police Criminal Justice Department are undertaking ongoing 
work around the Victims Code of Practice to highlight areas of improvement 
to ensure compliance going forward.  Action plans are in place to outline 
where gaps have been identified, with responsibility for improvement 
actions assigned and monitored on an ongoing basis.   
 
Derbyshire’s Crime Recording System, Guardian, has been in use for a 
number of years and is now due to be replaced with the Niche system.  
Improvements therefore are not expected to be made to Guardian in the 
interim. However, the introduction of Niche should present further 
opportunities for improvement in compliance, particularly around recording 
of victim contact and performance monitoring.  
 
For the purpose of the audit, a sample of twenty five crimes were selected 
for testing against VCOP entitlements, however two of these crimes were 
closed at source without a need for victim support and therefore results are 
reported on twenty three crimes.  
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03 Key Findings 

Assurance on adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls 
 

 Satisfactory Assurance  

 

Examples of areas where controls are operating reliably 

• Compliance with VCOP is monitored on an ongoing basis.  The Force 
recognise that there are improvements to be made, however plans are in place, 
and subject to regular monitoring, to drive improvements and increase levels of 
compliance.  

• Testing undertaken evidenced that Officers do remain in regular contact with 
Victims of Crime, with updates logged within the Guardian system. 

• Performance management information is routinely produced to monitor 
compliance in issuing Crime Contracts.  Systems are in place to report this to 
the Confidence and Ethics Board and also cascade to operational teams to 
highlight both effective and potentially poor practice and to subsequently drive 
improvements in the process.  

• Proactive interaction and feedback with victims was noted to ensure that 
feedback is regularly sought outside of the routine victim survey process.   

 

Priority Number of recommendations 

1 (Fundamental)  

2 (Significant) 2 

3 (Housekeeping) 4 

TOTAL 6 

 

 

Sector Comparison 

 From our experience across our client base, we are seeing pressure on resources 
and higher service demands have resulted in challenges to the existing control 
environment.  This often results in challenges in terms of availability of resources to 
record all required information within the administrative processes which support 
evidence of compliance, which can leave the organisation open to increased 
scrutiny and reputational risk.   

It is acknowledged that police officers and staff are required to carry out a 
significantly high volume of different processes and procedures in line with the 
different policies, law and legislation in operation. The need to be aware and 
understand all updates to legislation and ensuring these are put into practice can be 
challenging.   

Areas of good practice were identified and processes in place stood comparison 
with similar organisations. Recommendations are made to further drive 
improvements in the process and to address the identified risks.   
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Risk Management 

The current system in place does not allow for auditable evidence of a crime 
contract.  Although there is an indicator that the contract has been issued, no hard 
copy is available for audit purpose and lack of information in Guardian results in full 
details not being available and difficulties in evidencing compliance in certain areas, 
including a formal needs assessment process and establishing contact 
requirements with victims. 

Where it is not evident that a victim has had a full needs assessment and been 
provided with the required level of support as a result, this can lead to non 
compliance with the Victims Code of Practice.  In addition, failure to meet individual 
needs can lead to increased risk of re-victimisation of the victim and of scrutiny and 
reputational damage to the Force.   

The Force are due to replace the Guardian Crime Recording system with Niche in 
June 2016 and it is recognised that this will present opportunities for improvement in 
evidencing compliance with VCOP and allow performance monitoring in additional 
areas.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Value for money 

Value for money (VfM) considerations can arise in various ways and our audit 
process aims to include an overview of the efficiency of systems and processes in 
place within the auditable area.  

It is recognised that the Force and OPCC are undertaking dedicated work to identify 
and address improvements in compliance with the VCOP and ensure that the 
service provided to victims is efficient and effective.  This includes the ongoing 
‘Think Victim’ campaign and production and monitoring of a dedicated VCOP Action 
Plan.   

Although findings are raised within this report, sample testing undertaken did not 
raise any concerns that victims were not being referred for the required support or 
that officers were not in regular contact with them.  Findings are based around 
strengthening evidence to support this process, which will be assisted by the 
implementation of the Niche system.     

 



 

                                                                   OPCC for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Police – Victim Code of Practice (Final) – January 2016 Page 4  
   

04 Areas for Further Improvement and Action Plan 
Definitions for the levels of assurance and recommendations used within our reports are included in Appendix A1. 

We identified a number of areas where there is scope for improvement in the control environment. The matters arising have been discussed with management, 
to whom we have made recommendations. The recommendations are detailed in the management action plan below.  

 Observation/Risk Recommendation Priority Management response Timescale/ 
responsibility 

4.1 Crime Contract 

Observation: When a crime or incident is reported 
an officer should complete a Crime Contract with 
the victim to provide written acknowledgement of 
the crime and provide the officer details, incident/ 
crime reference, actions that will be taken, time/ 
date when they will updated and other contact 
details including victim support services.   

This supports the VCOP entitlement of the victim to 
receive a written acknowledgement that they have 
reported a crime. 

From testing of a sample of twenty three crimes it 
was identified that a crime contract had only been 
created in six cases. Of the seventeen without a 
contract, the ‘crime contract issued’ field within the 
Guardian system had been updated as issued, 
however the supporting notes made by the officer 
noted that this was not actually the case.  As 
performance information is drawn from this field 
within Guardian, such practice results in inaccurate 
performance information.   

The crime contract document is not actually evident 
within Guardian due to restrictions on system 

 

A crime contract should be 
completed for all crimes with 
supporting information in the form of 
the Investigation Template recorded 
in the Guardian system. Where a 
contract has not been issued, the 
crime contract field in Guardian 
should not be completed as this 
affects the accuracy of performance 
monitoring information.  

It should also be confirmed for the 
implementation of Niche that either 
documents can be scanned into the 
system or e-forms will exist for 
completion to ensure an adequate 
audit trail to confirm that this 
entitlement has been fulfilled. 

 

 

2 

 

The issue Crime Contracts will continue 
to be monitored by the Confidence and 
Ethics Board which is chaired by the 
DCC.  

The requirement to issue a Crime 
Contract and to complete the 
Investigation Template will be re-iterated 
through Chief Constables Orders. 

The NICHE Audit Trail to be explored by 
the NICHE project Team and addressed 
at the NICHE Project Board.    

 

January 2016  

Head of CJ   

 

 

 

September 2016 

NICHE Project 
Manager 
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 Observation/Risk Recommendation Priority Management response Timescale/ 
responsibility 

capability. As a compensating control, officers 
should complete an investigation sheet script and 
evidence this within Guardian to provide further 
details of the discussions with the Victim.  Out of the 
six cases where a crime contract had been issued, 
only two evidence full completion of the 
investigation sheet.    

Risk:  Failure to evidence that the victim has 
received all required information and related support 
leading to non-compliance with the Victims Code of 
Practice.  If fields are updated where actions have 
not actually taken place, this may lead to inaccurate 
performance information and weaknesses in 
performance not being reported and addressed.  
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 Observation/Risk Recommendation Priority Management response Timescale/ 
responsibility 

4.2 Needs Assessment 

Observation:  All victims of a criminal offence are 
entitled to an assessment by the police to identify 
any needs or support required.  The outcome of this 
needs assessment should be recorded and the 
officer should decide whether victims fall into one of 
the three priority categories (victims of the most 
serious crime, persistently targeted, and vulnerable 
or intimated) to ensure that any future support 
required can be tailored accordingly.   

From testing undertaken on the sample of crimes 
selected there was no evidence that this formal 
needs assessment process and outcome is 
recorded within the Guardian system.   

However, it is acknowledged that the Force now 
have a working group in place with the OPCC to 
oversee victim support and, as part of this, the 
consideration of needs assessments, including 
officer training and availability of specialist provider 
services, is to be a key item for this working group.   

Risk: Lack of identification of the support needs of 
the victim and subsequent failure to provide the 
required level of support resulting in increased 
vulnerability of victims and non compliance with the 
Victims Code of Practice.  

 

Needs assessments should be 
carried out with all victims of crime 
and results recorded within the 
Crime Recording System.  This 
should then be used as the basis of 
support provision for the victim 
going forward.  

 

2 

 

An assessment of vulnerability is made 
by Contact Management when an 
incident is initially reported using the 
THRIVE Model. The forces current policy 
is to refer all victims of crime to Victim 
Support, however, this will change in 
April 2016 with the Police & Crime 
Commissioner introducing an ‘opt in’ 
service through REMEDI.  

The working group will ensure that a 
specific VCOP compliant assessment is 
introduced into the THRIVE model and 
through a revised Crime Contract to 
ensure that the opt in services meets 
victim’s needs.  

The NICHE Audit Trail to be explored by 
the NICHE project Team and addressed 
at the NICHE Project Board.    

 

 

April 2016 

Head of 
Prosecutions  

and  

FOC Operations 
Manager  

 

 

 

September 2016 

NICHE Project 
Manager 
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 Observation/Risk Recommendation Priority Management response Timescale/ 
responsibility 

4.3 Telephone Resolutions 

Observation: Telephone resolutions are, on 
occasion, used to close a crime after consideration 
of the nature, victim status and seriousness.  If a 
satisfactory resolution can be given at this stage, 
officers do not have to visit the victim. 

In these cases, however, a crime contract is not 
formally issued by the call handler, although they do 
send a written acknowledgment by email or letter to 
the victim following the resolution.  From testing on 
twenty-three crimes, two had been resolved over 
the phone. However, the standard correspondence 
issued does not currently include reference to 
access to victim support services.  

Risk: Failure to evidence that the victim has 
received all required information and related support 
leading to no compliance with the Victims Code of 
Practice.   

 

 

The standard correspondence 
issued by call handlers after a 
telephone resolution should be 
updated to include reference to 
victim support services to ensure it 
mirrors information in the Crime 
Contract and to ensure that VCOP 
entitlements are met.  

 

3 

 

The standard letter sent to victims of 
crime subject to Telephone Resolution 
will be revised to include information 
about the victims services that are 
available and how these may be 
accessed.  

 

February 2016 

FOC Operations 
Manager  

and  

Service 
Improvement 
Officer 
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 Observation/Risk Recommendation Priority Management response Timescale/ 
responsibility 

4.4 Preferred Method of Contact 

Observation: Victim communication requirements 
should be established to fulfil their entitlements 
under VCOP and ensure they are supported 
following and throughout the crime reporting and 
investigation process. The victims preferred method 
and frequency of contact is established upon initial 
contact and should be recorded on the crime 
contract.   

As per finding 4.1, a crime contract was not issued 
in seventeen out of twenty-three cases tested 
therefore, was no evidence to confirm that this 
requirement had been met. As a consequence, it 
could not be established that any subsequent 
contact made with the victim was in line with their 
requirements.   

Due to the restrictions on the capability of the 
Guardian system, monitoring of compliance with 
contact requirements is not possible, however 
something that should be considered for the 
introduction of Niche in 2016.   

Risk: Failure to establish a victims preferred method 
of contact resulting in updates being made in a 
format which is not accessible/ understandable by 
the victim and non compliance with the Victims 
Code of Practice.  

 

Preferred method and frequency of 
contact should be established with 
each victim of crime to enable them 
to be updated on the progress of 
any ongoing investigation. This 
should be recorded on the Crime 
Recording system. 

Consideration should be given to 
introducing a monitoring procedure 
for victim updates upon 
implementation of the Niche 
system.  

 

 

3 

 

The requirement to issue a Crime 
Contract (which secures an agreement 
with the victim as to their 
communications requirements) and to 
complete the Investigation Template will 
be re-iterated through Chief Constables 
Orders. 

 

 

The NICHE Audit Trail to be explored by 
the NICHE project Team and addressed 
at the NICHE Project Board.    

 

 

January 2016  

Head of CJ   

 

 

 

September 2016 

NICHE Project 
Manager 
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 Observation/Risk Recommendation Priority Management response Timescale/ 

responsibility 

4.5 Victim Information Pack  

Observation: Audit noted that the majority of 
entitlements are met in terms of communication to 
victims of services and support available through a 
number of different sources, including Derbyshire 
Police internet pages.  Dedicated support packs also 
exist for certain categories of crime, including Burglary 
and Jigsaw (Justice Information Guide Supporting and 
Advising Witnesses) is available on the intranet or via 
DVD.  

It was noted, however, that the information available 
was through a number of different sources and within 
this information there was no reference to the 
complaints process or right to review policy (although 
these were separately available via the Derbyshire 
Police Website following a search of pages).   
 

It was considered good practice to provide an 
overarching victim information pack to cover all areas of 
entitlements, including complaints and right to review, 
to enable information to be made available through one 
single document.   

Risk: Failure to inform victims of all support available to 
them resulting in an ineffective service provision, 
increased risk of re-victimisation and non compliance 
with the Victims Code of Practice.  

 

Consideration should be given to 
a production of an overarching 
victims information pack to ensure 
that all victim entitlements are 
communicated and available in 
one document which can be made 
readily available. This should 
include details on right to review, 
complaints process, offer of a 
personal statement and 
restorative justice information. In 
addition, availability of specialist 
referral agencies/ mechanisms 
and links to existing support 
material (e.g., Jigsaw) and what to 
expect from the criminal justice 
system could be included.  

A link should then be provided to 
this pack on the Derbyshire Police 
website so victims can be easily 
referred to the required 
information. 

 

3 

 

As has been identified, the force utilises 
a number of dedicated support 
packages, along with the Crime 
Contract. We also have a policy in 
relation to the VRR and have recently 
introduced a RJ Contract.  

CJ have responsibility for delivering the 
VCOP Action Plan which incorporates 
the issues identified. The merits of a 
overarching victims information pack 
will be assessed as part of the VCOP 
Action Plan.  

 

April 2016 

Head of CJ 

 



 

                                                                   OPCC for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Police – Victim Code of Practice (Final) – January 2016 Page 10  
   

 Observation/Risk Recommendation Priority Management response Timescale/ 

responsibility 

4.6 Training 

Observation: Information on Victims Code of Practice is 
available on the Force intranet as guidance for officers 
and this information has been communicated following 
an update of the Code in October 2015.   

As part of the ‘Think Victim’ campaign, training had 
been provided to Sergeants recently to promote 
compliance with VCOP. However, no refresher training 
had been delivered formally to operational officers.    

Risk: Failure to deliver refresher training following 
update/ revisions to legislation leading to new 
requirements not being adhered to and non compliance 
with VCOP.    

 

Refresher training should be given 
to officers in respect of 
compliance with the Victims Code 
of Practice following its update 
and re-issue in October 2015.  

The possibility of an online 
learning module should be 
explored for efficiency purposes 
and to allow officers to complete 
at their discretion rather than incur 
the cost of a formal training event. 

 

3 

 

CJ have responsibility for delivering the 
VCOP Action Plan.  

A programme of monthly e-learning 
packages is agreed through the Force 
Training Commissioning Group and the 
feasibility of developing a VCOP 
training package will be assessed as 
part of the VCOP Action Plan. 

In the longer term the force will 
consider the outcome and 
recommendations of research which is 
being conducted by Derby University 
into the experience of victims of crime 
and any learning for officers from the 
victims perspective.  

 

April 2016 

Head of CJ 
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A1 Audit Information  

 

 

 

Audit Control Schedule 

Client contacts:  ACC Gary Knighton 

Mary Bosworth OPCC Head of 

Commissioning 

Superintendent Paul Callum 

 

Internal Audit Team: Mike Clarkson, Partner 

Brian Welch, Internal Audit  Senior Manager 

Rosie Watson, Internal Audit Assistant 

Manager 

Finish on Site \ Exit Meeting: 11th December 2015 

Draft  report issued: 22nd December 2015 

Management responses received: 29th December 2015 

Final report issued: 8th January 2016 

Scope and Objectives 

Our audit considered the following control objectives relating to the areas under review: 

• The requirements, as set out in the Code of Practice for Victims of Crime, are being 

complied with. 

• Policies and procedures have been put in place to support officers in complying with the 

Code.  Such guidance should include, but not be limited to:  

- Needs assessments 

- Crime reporting work sheets 

- Referral mechanisms 

- Communications with the victim 

- Personal statements 

- Complaints procedures 

• Performance information is available, and provided to the appropriate forum, in respect 

of compliance with the Code and action plans are in place to address areas of 

improvement. 

• Service user feedback is effectively utilised to inform and improve both police and wider 

partnership services on an ongoing basis.  

In reviewing the above risks, our  audit considered the following areas: 

• Compliance with requirements of the Code 

• Policies and procedures 

• Performance Information 

• Service user feedback 

Testing was carried out on a sample basis.  

Our work does not provide any guarantee against material errors, loss or fraud or provide an 

absolute assurance that material error, loss or fraud does not exist. 
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Definitions of Assurance Levels 

Assurance Level Adequacy of system 
design 

Effectiveness of 
operating controls 

Significant 
Assurance: 

There is a sound system 
of internal control 
designed to achieve the 
Organisation’s objectives. 

The control processes 
tested are being 
consistently applied. 

Satisfactory 
Assurance: 

While there is a basically 
sound system of internal 
control, there are 
weaknesses which put 
some of the 
Organisation’s objectives 
at risk. 

There is evidence that 
the level of non-
compliance with some 
of the control processes 
may put some of the 
Organisation’s 
objectives at risk. 

Limited Assurance: Weaknesses in the 
system of internal 
controls are such as to 
put the Organisation’s 
objectives at risk. 

The level of non-
compliance puts the 
Organisation’s 
objectives at risk. 

No Assurance Control processes are 
generally weak leaving 
the processes/systems 
open to significant error 
or abuse. 

Significant non-
compliance with basic 
control processes 
leaves the 
processes/systems 
open to error or abuse. 

Definitions of Recommendations  

 

Priority Description 

Priority 1 
(Fundamental) 

Recommendations represent fundamental control 
weaknesses, which expose the organisation to a high 
degree of unnecessary risk. 

Priority 2 
(Significant)  

Recommendations represent significant control 
weaknesses which expose the organisation to a moderate 
degree of unnecessary risk. 

Priority 3 
(Housekeeping)  

Recommendations show areas where we have highlighted 
opportunities to implement a good or better practice, to 
improve efficiency or further reduce exposure to risk. 
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A2 Statement of Responsibility  

 

Status of our reports 

The responsibility for maintaining internal control rests with management, with internal audit providing a service to management to enable them to achieve this objective.  
Specifically, we assess the adequacy of the internal control arrangements implemented by management and perform testing on those controls to ensure that they are 
operating for the period under review.  We plan our work in order to ensure that we have a reasonable expectation of detecting significant control weaknesses.  
However, our procedures alone are not a guarantee that fraud, where existing, will be discovered.                                                                                            

The contents of this report are confidential and not for distribution to anyone other than the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and Derbyshire 
Police.  Disclosure to third parties cannot be made without the prior written consent of Mazars LLP. 

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy group.  Mazars LLP is registered by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England 

and Wales to carry out company audit work. 



OPCC for Derbyshire & Derbyshire Police 

Follow up of Audit Recommendations February 2016 

01 – Introduction 

In line with the commitment to follow up Internal Audit Recommendations made, this report gives an overview of activity undertaken to verify implementation of audit 

recommendations made as a result of 2015/16 audits to date.  The review focused on audits where agreed implementation dates for all recommendations had now passed.   

A summary of audits finalised in the period, alongside accepted audit recommendations, is as follows. 

Audit Area Overall 
Assurance 

Recommendations Furthest Agreed implementation date 

P1 – Fundamental P2 - Significant P3 – Housekeeping 

Proceeds of Crime Satisfactory 1 March 2016 

Victims Code of Practice Satisfactory 2 4 September 2016 

Data Quality Complaints Satisfactory 3 4 December 2015 

Core Financials Satisfactory 2 September 2016 

Procurement Satisfactory 1 December 2015 

Integrated Offender Management Satisfactory 1 May 2016 

HR Transactional Satisfactory 3 4 12-36 months from report date of Sept 15 

The approach taken was to follow up all recommendations made to Derbyshire OPCC and Derbyshire Police which were assigned a priority 1 (fundamental control weaknesses, 

which expose the organisation to a high degree of unnecessary risk) and priority 2 (represent significant control weaknesses which expose the organisation to a moderate degree 

of unnecessary risk).    

Annex D
Agenda Item 7A

JARAC
3 March 2016



This follow up work revisited the Data Quality Complaints and Procurement audits given that the implementation date for associated recommendations had passed.  Follow up 

activity consisted of discussions with ‘action owners’ and testing of supporting records and documentation to gain assurance that actions had been implemented or were 

progressing within agreed timescales. The aim will be to follow-up each audit report when the recommendations become due, with follow-up reports brought to 

the relevant JARAC meeting. 

02 – Follow-Up Results  

Data Quality Complaints (Final Report September 2015) 

Finding Recommendation Initial Management 
Comments 

Follow Up Result Result/  
Timeframe of Risk 
Exposure 

Observation: In accordance with IPCC statutory 
guidance, terms of reference should be issued to 
all interested parties to outline the focus, direction 
and scope of the investigation. 

If a complaint is referred for investigation by PSD, 
terms of reference are documented to outline the 
scope and objectives of the investigation based on 
the complaint received.  This is then retained within 
the FIS Centurion system.   

It was noted by sample testing of five 
investigations, and confirmed by PSD staff, that 
terms of reference are not formally issued at the 
outset of the investigation.  It is only communicated 
as part of the final decision/ outcome report once 
the investigation has concluded 

The documented terms of 
reference should be issued to 
all interested parties at the 
outset of each investigation to 
ensure they are fully informed 
and satisfied with the intended 
approach. 
 
Priority 2 

The standard letter 
template has been 
amended to include the 
provision of this 
information. 
 
Investigative Support 
Manager 
 
Implemented September 
2015 -  

A meeting was held with the 
Head of PSD and the lead 
Investigator.  From discussion 
and a review of supporting 
documentation in a sample of 
investigations it was confirmed 
that the standard letter 
template has been amended to 
include a terms of reference.  
This is issued at the outset to 
all interested parties to outline 
the focus, direction and scope 
of the investigation.   

Satisfactory 
implemented within 
the agreed 
timescale.  

In accordance with IPCC statutory guidance, where 
a complaint is referred for investigation by PSD, the 
Investigating Officer should be able to demonstrate 
that steps were taken to understand the complaint 
and the views of the complaint.  

At the outset of an 
investigation, the Investigating 
Officer should send a copy of 
the complaint received to the 
complainant to verify that this is 

The standard letter 
template has been 
amended to include a 
request for this information. 
 

A meeting was held with the 
Head of PSD and the lead 
Investigator.  From discussion 
and a review of supporting 
documentation in a sample of 

Satisfactory 
implemented within 
the agreed 
timescale. 



Finding Recommendation Initial Management 
Comments 

Follow Up Result Result/  
Timeframe of Risk 
Exposure 

 
From discussion with the Investigative Support 
Manager it was noted that the investigation process 
requires the Investigating Officer to check with the 
complainant that the details submitted is a full 
account of everything that the person wishes to 
complain about. 
 
Although standard letters to support this process 
were provided at the time of the audit, sample 
testing on five investigations highlighted this 
process had not been followed routinely. In all five 
cases the standard letters were not on file or 
evidenced as being sent to the complainant.   
 

a full account of everything they 
wish to raise.  Evidence of this 
should be retained within the 
investigation file and any 
additional information received 
as a result incorporated into the 
investigation immediately. 
 
Priority 2 

Investigative Support 
Manager 
 
Implemented – September 
2015 

investigations it was confirmed 
that the standard letter 
template has been amended 
and now a copy of the record of 
complaint is sent to the 
complainant as part of 
acknowledgement of receipt 
with a request to ‘confirm that 
the record of complaint is an 
accurate summary of your 
complaint’.  

Investigations should be concluded on a timely 
basis and in line with both IPCC and local 
performance targets. 

The IPCC advise that investigations are concluded 
within 120 days. The internal target for Derbyshire 
Police is 90 days.  

Audit tested a sample of five investigations by PSD 
and found that in three cases it had exceeded the 
IPCC target, having durations between 150 and 
375 days.  An additional, in one instance it had 
exceeded the local target, with a duration of 102 
days.  

There was no documented reason on file to provide 
a formal justification for this delay or any resulting 
‘lessons learnt’ recorded to ensure steps were 

Further monitoring should take 
place to ensure that 
investigations are concluded 
on a timely basis and 
Investigating Officers reminded 
that where delays have been 
experienced, reasons for this 
should be documented on file.  
In addition, any ‘lessons 
learned’ resulting from lengthy 
investigations should be 
documented and be 
communicated to Investigating 
Officers to minimise the risk of 
delays in future. 
 
Priority 2 

Each new case will have a 
90 day progress reminder 
entered at the time of 
recording. PSD Admin will 
monitor this and b/f and 
highlight any cases 
exceeding this time limit. 
Further reminders can then 
be entered until the case is 
closed, with 120 days being 
the maximum. 
 
PSD Admin 
 
Implemented – September 
2015  
 

From a meeting with the Head 
of PSD and lead investigator it 
was confirmed that all cases 
have a 90 day progress 
reminder and those still 
ongoing at this time are flagged 
to management for review.   
 
Audit verified from published 
IPCC data that Derbyshire 
performance is actually 
exceeding the IPCC 
performance statistics, in 
addition based on IPCC data 
published up to September 
2015 Derbyshire’s 
performance is above both the 

Satisfactory 
implemented within 
the agreed 
timescale. 



Finding Recommendation Initial Management 
Comments 

Follow Up Result Result/  
Timeframe of Risk 
Exposure 

taken to minimise lengths of similar investigations 
in future.  

From a review of the IPCC performance statistics 
up to March 2015, Derbyshire’s average 
performance was published as 112 days.  The 
investigations sampled at the time of the audit had 
concluded after this date and therefore would not 
be included in these performance statistics.  

 

Most Similar Force (MSF) and 
national average in this area.  

 

Procurement (Final Report January 2016) 

Finding Recommendation Initial Management 
Comments 

Follow Up Result Result/  
Timeframe of Risk 
Exposure 

Observation: Observation: From testing 
undertaken on one payment which exceeded the 
OJEU tendering limit of £172,514 it was identified 
that the procurement rules had not been adhered 
to. 

The payment of £215,000 was in relation to a Rapid 
DNA Machine procured by the Forensics Team.  An 
order was not raised for this purchase, the 
tendering process was not followed and, in 
addition, no referral was made to the OPCC to sign 
off the decision to purchase (which is a requirement 
when a contract exceeds £200,000).   

The Forensics team should 
ensure that the Force Financial 
Regulations are adhered to 
within their purchasing 
processes. Orders should be 
raised to ensure appropriate 
approval and full tendering 
procedures should be followed 
for high value purchases, with 
consideration of OJEU 
regulations for expenditure 
exceeding £172,000. In 
addition, purchases which 
exceed £200,000 should be 

This issue has been 
discussed with the relevant 
officer to ensure awareness 
and compliance going 
forward. 
 
Head of Procurement 
 
Implemented – December 
2015 

It was verified at the time of the 
initial audit from discussion with 
the Head of Procurement that 
this recommendation had been 
implemented.  A meeting had 
been held between the Head of 
Procurement and the Head of 
Forensics to remind them of the 
procurement limits and 
approach to take for purchases 
which exceed designated 
limits. 
 

Satisfactory 
implemented within 
the agreed 
timescale.  



Finding Recommendation Initial Management 
Comments 

Follow Up Result Result/  
Timeframe of Risk 
Exposure 

Initial advice had been provided to the requisitioner 
from EMSCU to explore the existing contract with 
this supplier which had then formed the basis of the 
purchase.  However, it was noted that the contract 
in place with this supplier was for the provision of 
services rather than the purchase of equipment. 

referred to the OPCC for 
approval in line with the 
Scheme of Delegation. 
 
Priority 2 

Audit are also due to carry out 
an audit of Forensics Financial 
Management in March 2016 
which will also consider how 
they now monitor and ensure 
compliance with Financial 
Regulations.   

 

03 – Conclusion 

Audit concluded that all priority 2 recommendations had been satisfactorily implemented in line with agreed timescales and there was no unnecessary extended 
exposure to risk as a result.  Although no detailed testing was undertaken on the priority 3 (best practice) recommendations made within the final audit report, 
these were also discussed with management at the time of the review and assurance was taken that these best practice points had also been adopted and controls 
were operating effectively.  
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JOINT AUDIT RISK AND ASSURANCE COMMITTEE 
3 MARCH 2016 

JOINT REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND THE TREASURER  
 

7B: STRATEGY FOR INTERNAL AUDIT 2016/17: INTERNAL AUDIT 
ASSIGNMENTS 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 To review and advise on the draft annual internal audit plan for 2016/17, 

ensuring that this : 

• is consistent with professional standards; 

• meets the audit needs of the PCC and the Chief Constable; and 

• provides the JARAC with adequate coverage for the purpose of obtaining 

appropriate levels of assurance over the adequacy of the risk 

management, governance and internal control environment of both the 

PCC and Chief Constable.  

2. INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS 

2.1 The Police Reform & Social Responsibility Act introduced in November 2012 

the legal concept of 2 corporations sole for the Police and Crime 

Commissioner and the Chief Constable with two Annual Governance 

Statements to support the relevant statements of accounts and the group 

accounts.   

2.2 As part of a robust risk management process, internal controls are reviews in 

several ways; one such assurance is provided by the work of the internal audit 

function.   

2.3 Given that the systems and process for both corporations sole are aligned, it 

has been agreed, in consultation with both internal and external auditors, that 

there will be one common audit strategy addressing all internal control review 

requirements. 

        Part I -                 
For Publication  
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2.4 Our internal audit is currently provided by Mazars as part of a regional 

contract.  

2.5 Each year an annual audit plan is compiled which the JARAC will review and 

approve.  It is an important feature of the governance function that this 

Committee, with the advice of the Treasurer and the Director of Finance, can 

influence and direct those areas of review which it thinks are appropriate. 

2.6 The work of External Audit is dependent to a certain extent on the assurances 

provided by internal audit, especially on the key financial controls in place in 

both the organisations.  This avoids duplication of cost and effort.  

Attached at APPENDIX A to this report is the Plan for Internal Audit 

Assignments for 2016/2017.  The plan has been complied for the first time to 

reflect the outcome of the assurance review that Mazars have undertaken for 

the Commissioner and the Chief Constable.  

2.7 The proposed strategy covers  

• The scope and purpose of Internal Audit and a statement of 

Responsibility 

• The audit approach 

Consultation arrangements with External Audit  

• The detailed plan for 2016/17 including the number of days allocated to 

each audit 

• The strategic plan up to 2019 

• Levels of assurance and opinions 

2.8 The JARAC is required to consider 

• if the detailed internal audit plan for the coming financial year (see 

Appendix A) reflects the areas that the Committee believes should be 

covered as a priority, taking into account the assurance work that been 

carried out 

• if the audit strategy includes all those areas that the Committee would 

expect to be subject to internal audit coverage for both the Chief 

Constable and the Police and Crime Commissioner, in terms not only of 
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professional responsibilities but also covering areas of concern flagged 

by management 

• if the level of audit resource is accepted by the Committee and agreed 

as appropriate, given the level of assurance required 

• the detailed audit plan at Appendix A. 

2.9 Members are requested to consider the proposals and to make any changes 

they think are appropriate before recommending the 2016/2017 audit plan to 

the Chief Constable and the Police and Crime Commissioner for their 

respective approvals.  

2.10 From time to time, it may be appropriate to amend the audit plan or to 

commission work within the plan from any pooled resource/contingency 

allocation.  Where this might need to be actioned outside the cycle of JARAC 

meetings, the Treasurer or the Director of Finance will make minor changes to 

the audit plan.  Changes will be reported through the audit update. 

3. RECOMMENDATIONS 

i. To review and make comments on the adequacy of the proposed Strategy for 

Internal Audit 2016/2017 

ii. To recommend, subject to any amendments, the final plan to the Chief 

Constable and the Police and Crime Commissioner for their respective 

approvals.  

4. IMPLICATIONS 

All implications are assessed and scored to the table below.  
HIGH – supporting explanation and narrative required and to be contained 
within the report 
MEDIUM – narrative to be contained within the report at the discretion of the 
author  
LOW – no narrative required 
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 LOW MEDIUM HIGH 

Crime & Disorder √   

Environmental √   

Equality & Diversity √   

Financial  √  

Health & Safety √   

Human Rights √   

Legal  √  

Personnel √   

 

 

Contact details  
in the event  
of enquiries 

Name: Helen Boffy 
External telephone number: 0300 122 6005 
Email address:  helen.boffy.4808@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk  

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None 

ATTACHMENTS 

Appendix A. Internal Audit Plan 2016/17 
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Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Police 

Draft Internal Audit Strategy 2016/17 to 2018/19 and 2016/17 Internal Audit 
Plan 

January 2016 

This report has been prepared on the basis of the limitations set out on page 13. 

This report and the work connected therewith are subject to the Terms and Conditions of the Framework Agreement dated 21 April 2015 between The Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Nottinghamshire and Mazars LLP and Order Form dated 12 May 2015 between Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and Mazars LLP.  This report 
is confidential and has been prepared for the sole use of Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire.  This report must not be disclosed to any third party or reproduced in 
whole or in part without our prior written consent.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we accept no responsibility or liability to any third party who purports to use or rely, for 
any reason whatsoever, on this report, its contents or conclusions. 
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1. Introduction 
1.1 A three-year proposed Strategic Audit Plan has been prepared on behalf of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Police 

(the OPCC and Force) for the period 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2019.   
 

1.2 As part of fulfilling the Joint Audit, Risk & Assurance Committee’s (JARAC) responsibilities, the JARAC require assurance that it is focusing its 
attention on the key risks to the OPCC and Force and that it is receiving timely and effective assurance with regards the management of those risks. 
As Internal Audit is a one source of this assurance, Internal Audit were requested to carry out an assurance mapping exercise which would identify 
where the OPCC / Force obtains this assurance and that the Internal Audit plan is suitably focused and aligned with other sources of assurance. The 
results of this exercise were considered when drawing the audit plan. 
 

1.3 Appendix A  contains our proposed Annual Audit Plan 2016 – 2017 . 

1.4 Appendix B  sets out our proposed Strategic Audit Plan 2016 – 2019 .  

 

2. The Scope and Purpose of Internal Audit 
2.1 Internal Audit’s primary role is to provide the organisation’s management with independent assurance on the effectiveness of the internal control 

systems that contribute to the achievement of the organisation’s business objectives.  In so doing, this will support the OPCC and Force in signing the 
Annual Governance Statement.  It is also Internal Audit’s role to provide the OPCC and Force with assurance that they have in place effective 
processes for the management of risk.   

2.2 In drawing up the internal audit work programme it should be noted that: 

• The OPCC and Force are accountable for internal control.  The OPCC and Force are responsible for maintaining a sound system of internal 
control that supports the achievement of the organisation’s objectives, and for reviewing its effectiveness; 

• The system of internal control is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve these objectives; 

• The system of internal control can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness; and 

• The system of internal control is based on an on-going risk management process designed to identify the principal risks to the achievement of the 
organisation’s objectives; to evaluate the nature and extent of those risks; and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 
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2.3  As set out in the Audit Charter, Internal Audit fulfils it’s role by: 

• Coordinating assurance activities with other assurance providers (such as the external auditors and HMIC) such that the assurance needs of the 
OPCC and Force, regulators and other stakeholders are met in the most effective way. 

• Evaluating and assessing the implications of new or changing systems, products, services, operations and control processes. 

• Carrying out assurance and consulting activities across all aspects of the OPCC and Force’s business based on a risk-based plan agreed with 
the Joint Audit, Risk & Assurance Committee (JARAC). 

• Providing the Police & Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as to the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the key controls associated with the management of risk in the area being audited. 

• Issuing periodic reports to the JARAC and Senior Management Team summarising results of assurance activities. 

• Re-enforcing an anti-fraud, anti-bribery and anti-corruption culture within the OPCC and Force to aid the prevention and detection of fraud. 

• Assisting in the investigation of allegations of fraud, bribery and corruption within the OPCC and Force and notifying management and the 
JARAC of the results. 

• Assessing the adequacy of remedial action to address significant risk and control issues reported to the JARAC.  Responsibility for remedial 
action in response to audit findings rests with line management. 

 

3. Approach 
3.1 As part of fulfilling the Joint Audit, Risk & Assurance Committee’s (JARAC) responsibilities, the JARAC require assurance that it is focusing its 

attention on the key risks to the OPCC and Force and that it is receiving timely and effective assurance with regards the management of those risks. 
As Internal Audit is only one source of this assurance, we carried out an assurance mapping exercise which identified where the OPCC / Force 
obtains this assurance and that the Internal Audit plan is suitably focused and aligned with other sources of assurance. The results of the assurance 
mapping exercise were presented to the JARAC on 17th December 2015. 
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3.2 The Assurance Framework provides a top-down identification and analysis of the assurance needs of the JARAC, and aims to provide a co-ordinated 
view of the activity of the various assurance providers and therefore the right combination of direct, risk and independent assurance activities as 
shown below: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.3 In drawing up the operational and strategic audit plan, the assurance mapping exercise  identified where the OPCC / Force obtained assurance it was 
managing its key risks, with the aim of aligning the Internal Audit plan with other sources of assurance. The review was carried out through 
discussions with appropriate staff and review of documents to confirm the adequacy of the assurance processes in place. In particular we: 

� Agreed the key strategic risks (OPCC and Force) that the JARAC require assurance on. 

� Identified and met with the nominated risk owners. 

� Through discussions and the review of relevant documents, using the ‘three lines of defence’ model referred to above, determined the key 
sources of assurance that the risks are being effectively managed. 

� Identified and agreed gaps in assurance. 

� Agreed whether the gaps should be addressed and, if so, the likely sources of assurance available. 
 
In determining Internal Audit’s current and future role in the ‘assurance landscape’, we noted that Internal Audit has a wider remit than purely focusing 
on just those risks set out in the Strategic Risk Registers of the OPCC and Force, and is required to provide assurance on the systems of internal 
control, risk management and governance arrangements. For this reason, we also considered other key areas of assurance including those relating to 
Finance, Governance, Procurement, Information Technology and Risk Management. 
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3.4 Through a focused approach to assurance, the internal audit service can be utilised to provide the right level of assurance, it can avoid unnecessary 
use of its finite resources and it can support the OPCC and Force in maintaining an effective Assurance Framework. Internal Audit, through its support 
for the Assurance Framework, should: 

 
• support the OPCC and Force in managing its risks through the establishment (and, more importantly, the maintenance) of an Assurance 

Framework that is fit for purpose;  
• look to other sources of assurance and assurance providers, including third party assurance, to supplement the resources of the internal 

audit team; 
• work along side other assurance providers, such as External Audit, to more effectively provide assurance and avoid duplication; and 
• through risk-based auditing, focus internal audit resource on what is really important to each organisation. 

 
3.5 Further to the above risk identification process, it should also be remembered that Derbyshire form part of the East Midlands Policing Region and, as 

such, collaborate on a wide variety of services. The aim will therefore be to, wherever possible, align the audit plans across the region in order to 
secure efficiencies through collaborative auditing. 
 

4 External Audit Consultation 
4.1 We liaise closely with your external auditors in preparing, and then delivering, a co-ordinated approach to the provision of assurance.  

4.2 We speak regularly with the External Auditors to consult on audit plans; discuss matters of mutual interest; discuss common understanding of audit 
techniques; methods and terminology; and to seek opportunities for co-operation in the conduct of audit work.  In particular, we will offer the External 
Auditors the opportunity to rely on our work where appropriate, provided this does not prejudice our independence. 

4.3 Internal audit forms a significant part of the organisation’s governance arrangements and it is therefore also important that Internal and External Audit 
have an effective working relationship.  To facilitate this relationship we included in the Audit Charter liaison arrangement with the external auditors 
under the Public Internal Audit Standards. The key principles behind this agreement are: 

• a willingness and commitment to working together; 

• clear and open lines of communication; and 

• avoidance of duplication of work where possible. 
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Appendix A – Annual Audit Plan 2016-17  

AUDITABLE AREA PROPOSED 
TIMING 

JARAC PLAN 
DAYS 

RISK REF / 
CAT. 

Commentary on Coverage 

Core Assurance 

Core Financial Systems 
Assurance: 

• General Ledger 
• Cash, Banking & Treasury 

Management 
• Payments & Creditors 
• Income & Debtors 

Oct 2016  13 Core 

To provide assurance with regards the adequacy and effectiveness of the systems 
of internal control in operation to manage the core financial systems. The scope of 
the work will include, but not be limited to: 

• Policies and procedures 
• Access controls 
• Amendments to standing data 
• Reconciliations 
• Authorisation routines 
• Reporting 

Payroll  Jan 2017  5 Core 

To provide assurance that there are effective controls in place for delivering the 
payroll service. Testing will be primarily be carried out on site at Leicestershire 
Police, who deliver the service on behalf of Derbyshire. However, we also cover 
‘front end’ processes at Derbyshire and arrangement in place within the payroll 
bureau, Kier, in respect of access controls, payroll reporting and approval / sign-off 
routines. 

Regulatory Checks - Divisions 
Aug 2016 & 
Feb 2017 

 6 Core 
We will undertake regulatory checks with the aim of providing assurance with 
regards the maintenance and security of cash at a divisional level. The allocation 
of days will be spread across the year. 

Risk Management June 2016  5 

 

Core 

To provide assurance that the Force and OPCC have effective risk management 
policies and procedures in place. The audit will review the strategic risk registers 
for adequacy and reasonableness of risk scoring, documented mitigation and 
action plans. We will select a sample of risks and provide a critical challenge with 
regards the documented mitigation. 
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AUDITABLE AREA PROPOSED 
TIMING 

JARAC PLAN 
DAYS 

RISK REF / 
CAT. 

Commentary on Coverage 

Governance Jan 2017  4 Core 
Time has been set aside to revisit the Assurance Mapping exercise carried out in 
2015/16 and will contribute to Internal Audit’s requirement to provide an annual 
opinion on Governance. 

Strategic & Operational Risk Assurance  

IT Security Dec 2016  8 
STR1033, 

1032 & 
1909 

The audit will aim to review the systems and controls in place with regards IT 
security and, in particular, risk STR1033 in the Force risk register which refers to 
‘data, IT and communications integrity’. Additionally, the audit would support the 
Force’s assurance requirements in respect of PCN compliance. 

Firearms Licensing May 2016  6 National 
To provide assurance that the Force has effective controls in place for the 
management / issue of licences and the holding of firearms. 

Partnerships Nov 2016  7 

 

 

PCC2.6 & 
STR1092 

The audit will provide assurance with regards how the Force and OPCC work with 
their key strategic partners.  

The audit will focus on, for a sample of strategic partnerships, the governance 
arrangements underpinning the partnership, including the rationale / aims of the 
partnership, decision-making, objectives, budget implications, performance and 
risk management.   

Estates Management July 2016  5 
STR1035 & 

1023 

To provide assurance that the OPCC / Force have effective controls in place to 
manage the estate, particularly in view of the transfer of responsibilities to the 
County. The audit will review the extent to which the Estates Strategy is being 
delivered and how it contributes to the strategic and medium / long term objectives 
of the OPCC / Force. 

National Undercover Policing 
Enquiry 

June 2016  7 Request 
To provide assurance that the Force has effective controls in place to manage the 
arrangement. The scope will include the management of funds, recovery of costs, 
apportionment, agreements and monitoring arrangements. 
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AUDITABLE AREA PROPOSED 
TIMING 

JARAC PLAN 
DAYS 

RISK REF / 
CAT. 

Commentary on Coverage 

Workforce Planning July 2016  7 
STR1833, 

1098 

To provide assurance that key controls in place with regards Workforce Planning 
are in place and are operating as intended. The scope will include, but not be 
limited to, how such planning contributes to the delivery of savings targets, the 
effective focus of resources, opportunities for recruitment and workforce 
projections.  

Collaboration 

Collaboration 
Sept 2016 & 

Jan 2017 
 8 

STR1105 & 
1742l 

Resources have been allocated across each OPCC / Force in order to provide 
assurance with regards the systems and controls in place to deliver specific 
elements of regional collaboration.  

Consideration will be given to assessing whether the area of collaboration is 
delivering against its original objectives and what arrangements are in place, from 
an OPCC / Force perspective, for monitoring and managing the service. 

 Other 

Audit Management Ongoing 
 

14  
This includes audit planning, production of progress and annual reports, and 
attendance at progress and JARAC meetings. Time will also be set aside to 
provide training to JARAC members. 

Follow Up of 
Recommendations 

  5  
To provide assurance that management have implemented audit 
recommendations. 

 TOTAL    100  
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Appendix B – Strategic Audit Plan 2016-19  

Audit Assignment 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 
RISK REF / 

CAT. 

Core Assurance 

Core Financials Systems � � � Core 

Payroll � � � Core 

Regulatory Checks - Divisions � � � Core 

Risk Management �  � Core 

Governance �  � Core 

Procurement  �  STR1555 

Strategic & Operational Risk 

IT Security �   
STR1033, 1032 

& 1909 

Business Continuity & Disaster Recovery  �  
OPS1090 & 
STR1089 

IT Strategy   � STR1046 & 
1048 

Firearms Licencing �   National 

Integrated Control & Communication System  �  CONM1787 
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Audit Assignment 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 
RISK REF / 

CAT. 

Partnerships �  � PCC2.6 & 
STR1092 

Performance Management  �  
STR1046 & 

1060 

Human Resources   � STR1422 & 
1095 

Estates Management �   STR1035 & 
1023 

Joint Working Arrangements with the Fire Service  �  STR1832 

National Undercover Policing Enquiry �   Request 

Workforce Planning �   
STR1833 & 

1098 

Proceeds of Crime   � National 

Financial Planning & Budget Management  �  STR1192 

Fleet Management   � STR1091 

Contract Management – Victims Services  �  PCC1.4 

Commissioning   � PCC2.3 & 2.6 

Collaboration 

Collaboration � � � STR1105 & 
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Audit Assignment 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 
RISK REF / 

CAT. 

1742 

Other 

Contingency � � � General 

Follow-up of Recommendations � � �  

Audit Management � � �  
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Appendix C – Levels of Assurance & Opinions 
 

Definitions of Assurance Levels 

Assurance Level Adequacy of system design Effectiveness of operating 
controls 

Significant 
Assurance: 

There is a sound system of internal 
control designed to achieve the 
Organisation’s objectives. 

The control processes tested are being 
consistently applied. 

Satisfactory 
Assurance: 

While there is a basically sound 
system of internal control, there are 
weaknesses which put some of the 
Organisation’s objectives at risk. 

There is evidence that the level of non-
compliance with some of the control 
processes may put some of the 
Organisation’s objectives at risk. 

Limited Assurance: Weaknesses in the system of internal 
controls are such as to put the 
Organisation’s objectives at risk. 

The level of non-compliance puts the 
Organisation’s objectives at risk. 

No Assurance: Control processes are generally weak 
leaving the processes/systems open 
to significant error or abuse. 

Significant non-compliance with basic 
control processes leaves the 
processes/systems open to error or 
abuse. 

 

Definitions of Recommendations  

 

Priority Description 

Priority 1 
(Fundamental) 

Recommendations represent fundamental control weaknesses, which expose 
the organisation to a high degree of unnecessary risk. 

Priority 2 
(Significant)  

Recommendations represent significant control weaknesses which expose the 
organisation to a moderate degree of unnecessary risk. 

Priority 3 
(Housekeeping)  

Recommendations show areas where we have highlighted opportunities to 
implement a good or better practice, to improve efficiency or further reduce 
exposure to risk. 
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Appendix D – Contact Details 

 

 

Contact Details 

 

Mike Clarkson 
07831 748135 

Mike.Clarkson@mazars.co.uk 

Brian Welch 

 

07780 970200 

Brian.Welch@mazars.co.uk 

 

 



OPCC for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Police - Draft Report for discussion purposes only 

 

Page 13 
 

Statement of Responsibility 
We take responsibility for this report which is prepared on the basis of the limitations set out 
below. 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of 
our work and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or 
all improvements that might be made.  Recommendations for improvements should be assessed 
by you for their full impact before they are implemented.  The performance of our work is not and 
should not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound 
management practices.  We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of internal 
controls and the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities rests with management 
and work performed by us should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses in 
internal controls, nor relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity.  Even sound 
systems of internal control can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance and may not 
be proof against collusive fraud.  Our procedures are designed to focus on areas as identified by 
management as being of greatest risk and significance and as such we rely on management to 
provide us full access to their accounting records and transactions for the purposes of our work 
and to ensure the authenticity of such material.  Effective and timely implementation of our 
recommendations by management is important for the maintenance of a reliable internal control 
system. 

Mazars LLP 

London 

January 2016 

This document is confidential and prepared solely for your information.  Therefore you should 
not, without our prior written consent, refer to or use our name or this document for any other 
purpose, disclose them or refer to them in any prospectus or other document, or make them 
available or communicate them to any other party.  No other party is entitled to rely on our 
document for any purpose whatsoever and thus we accept no liability to any other party who is 
shown or gains access to this document. 

Registered office: Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, London E1W 1DD, United 
Kingdom.  Registered in England and Wales No 4585162. 

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy group.  Mazars 
LLP is registered by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales to carry out 
company audit work. 
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JOINT AUDIT RISK AND ASSURANCE COMMITTEE  
3 MARCH 2016 

JOINT REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND THE TREASURER 

8A  HMIC VALUE FOR MONEY PROFILES 2015 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 To provide an update on the Value for Money Profiles for Derbyshire 

Police. 

2 INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS 

2.1 Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary produces detailed value for 

money profiles to assess how well each police force is managing their 

reduced resources. 

2.2 These profiles make comparisons at a National level with all other police 

forces in England.   

2.3 More controversially, they also make comparisons with ‘similar’ forces, 

although there has been considerable criticism over their identification.  

For example Derbyshire was previously compared with a number of 

‘similar’ forces who were all coastal forces. 

2.4 The detailed assessment for Derbyshire is available on the HMIC website 

together with a less detailed summary. A copy of the summary of the 2015 

report is appended at APPENDIX A.  Members of the JARAC have been 

provided with a copy of the full set of profiles for 2015, for background 

information. The full profiles for 2015 can be accessed online 

at https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmic/wp-

content/uploads/derbyshire-2015-value-for-money-profile.pdf  

2.5 Overall the assessment shows that Derbyshire Police is a relatively low 

cost force that focusses resources in those areas that make the most 

impact in policing our county:- 

• Spend on PCSO’s is lower than peer average. This has always been the 

case due to previous decisions taken by the force and previous 
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government funding allocations that helped meet the cost of PCSOs.  

These allocations were not spread evenly across the country. 

• Earned income relates to collaboration activities and is not generally non-

police income. 

• Spending on non-staff costs is predominantly relating to PFI expenditure. 

• Derbyshire is at about the peer average on both on officer and staff costs. 

• The Force spends higher than its peers on Frontline support  

2.6 This reflects current Police and Crime Plan and Chief Constable priorities 

as well as the emergence of new more complex crime.  It also 

demonstrates the Constabulary’s long term commitment to maintain the 

highest standards of integrity. 

2.7 Overall spending for the Constabulary is lower than the national average.    

2.8 This has meant that the caseload of ‘traditional’ crime per officer is slightly 

below the peer average.  This in turn explains how Derbyshire 

Constabulary is able to focus more of its resources towards new and 

emerging crime than other forces, even during this period of austerity. 

2.9 These profiles provide useful context when considering future spending 

and savings plans and provide further reassurance that Derbyshire 

Constabulary continues to provide an effective service, when compared to 

other Police Forces. 

2.10 It is also relevant to note that there is very little change between years.  

3 RECOMMENDATION 

To determine if the JARAC can gain direct assurance that this area of 

business is being managed efficiently and effectively. 
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4 IMPLICATIONS 

All implications are assessed and scored to the table below.  
HIGH – supporting explanation and narrative required and to be 
contained within the report 
MEDIUM – narrative to be contained within the report at the discretion of 
the author  
LOW – no narrative required 

 

 LOW MEDIUM HIGH 
Crime & Disorder x     
Environmental x   
Equality & Diversity x   
Financial x   
Health & Safety x   
Human Rights x   
Legal x   
Personnel x   

 

Contact details  
in the event  
of enquiries 

Name: Helen Boffy  
External telephone number: 0300 122 6005 
Email 
address:helen.boffy.4808@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk 

Background papers: none 
Appendix A: HMIC Value for Money Profiles 2015 summary 
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HMIC Summary Value for Money Profile 2015

Derbyshire Constabulary

compared with:

Wiltshire, Kent, Essex, Northamptonshire, Cheshire, Avon & Somerset, Staffordshire and Derbyshire.

How to use this summary

Net revenue 

expenditure
£32m

Victim-based 

crime
-1,200

On the final page of this summary, we provide a list of all of the categories from the full VfM profile in which the force's spend is an outlier. The force's figures are 

compared to the spend of other forces. To be flagged as an outlier, the spend must be one of the highest 10 percent or lowest 10 percent of any force, and the effect of 

the difference must be at least £1 per head of population.

Comparisons are one of the most powerful ways of making data about the police service transparent. They expose important differences between forces and enable those 

without specialist knowledge of policing to find answers to questions and understand how the service provides value for public money.

HMIC’s Value for Money (VfM) profiles provide comparative data on a wide range of policing activities.  Rather than showing all of the details, this summary profile is 

designed to show you how this force differs from other similar forces. Does it spend more or less than the average? How differently does it invest its resources? Does it 

face greater or fewer demands? How does the crime rate differ from from those in comparable force areas?

From these starting points, the full profiles allow you to investigate further those differences identified by this summary and we encourage readers to probe further in areas 

of data where the information prompts particular questions.  However, the full profiles also raise additional questions. Why are some forces spending over four times more 

per head of population on criminal justice than others? Why does one force have a noticeably greater number of officers working in business support, compared to similar 

forces?

Bar charts show the percentage difference between your force’s income, expenditure or demand (known as the value), and the average for those forces which are most 

similar to it (known as its peers). The figures to the left or right of the bars are not the values themselves; rather they show the net 'cost' or impact of the variation. For 

example, they show the number of additional 999 calls a 10% difference to the average rate makes or how many fewer recorded crimes visible officers are dealing with in 

the force. Two illustrative examples (for a 'dummy' force) are shown below:

In all cases, details of the data used and relevant caveats can be found in the full profiles document (available from HMIC’s website, 

http://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmic/ ).

This force's net revenue expenditure per head of population is 25% above the average of its 

peers. This difference equates to a cost of £32m compared to if the force was spending the 

average of its peers.

This force's level of recorded victim-based crime is 10% lower than the average of its peers. 

This equates to 1,200 fewer victim-based crimes compared to if the force had the average 

recorded crime rate of its peers.

-30% -20% -10% 0% 10% 20% 30% 

% difference from peer average (illustrative example) 

-30% -20% -10% 0% 10% 20% 30% 

% difference from peer average (illustrative example) 
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Net revenue 

expenditure 

per head 

population

0 £0.4m Visible frontline 0 £1.2m

  Officers 0 £4.2m
Non-visible 

frontline
-£0.1m 0

  Staff 0 £0.4m
Frontline 

support
0 £1.1m

  PCSOs -£0.9m 0
Business 

support
-£2.2m 0

Non-staff 

costs
0 £2.5m

Earned 

income*
0 -£5.9m

For more information on the data used here, please see 'Income & Expenditure - Overview'.

Central funding 0 £8.0m

Local funding -£2.1m 0

1. How does the force's income and expenditure compare with peers? 2. Where is the force spending money compared with peers?

The chart belows shows how total net revenue expenditure, and spending on staff costs (police officers, staff, 

PCSOs), non staff costs and earned income compares with other forces in its most similar group.

The chart below shows how the proportion of the force's spend across frontline, frontline support and business 

support functions compares with the average of its peer group of forces:

For more information on the data used here, please see 'Income & Expenditure - Spend by function' in the full 

profile document.

POA estimates are used for all cost and workforce data unless stated otherwise. These data are 

taken as a snapshot as at 22 October. Any updates to the data made after this time will not be 

reflected in the profile. 

Income and expenditure in Derbyshire
Force's estimated expenditure and income in 2015/16.

The chart below shows how the local policing body's funding per head of population compares with the 

average of its peer group of forces:

* When considered next to areas of expenditure, below average income can be considered as a 

net cost to the force compared to other forces. Similarly, above average income can be 

considered as a net saving to the force compared to elsewhere.

For more information on the data used here, please see 'Income and expenditure - Financing' in the full profile 

document.

3. How is the local policing body funded compared with peers?

% difference from peer average 

-10% -5% 0% 5% 10% 

-10% -5% 0% 5% 10% 

-80% -60% -40% -20% 0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 

% difference from peer average 

% difference from peer average 
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999 calls -6.8k 0
Victim-based 

crime
-5.0k 0

Emergency 

incidents
0 49.7k

Other crimes 

against society
-0.6k 0

Priority 

incidents
0 30.9k

Victim-based 

crime
-6.2 0

Suspect 

identified
-6.7k 0

Other crimes 

against society
-0.7 0 Action taken -1.5k 0

4. Is the force experiencing higher demand than peers? 6. How does the level of recorded crime in the force compare with peers?

The chart below shows how the number of 999 calls received and emergency and priority incidents recorded 

by the force per head of population compares with its peer group of forces:

The chart below shows how the number of recorded crimes per head of population in the force compares with 

the average of its peer group of forces:

The chart below compares formal investigative outcomes per crime for crimes (excl fraud) in the force with the 

average of its peer group of forces, taking into account differences in the mix of crime between forces. 

For more information on the data used here (including a break down by crime type), please 'Offences and 

Outcomes' in the full profile document.

5. Are the force's police officers dealing with more crimes compared with peers? 7. How do the investigative outcomes in the force compare with peers?

Only victim-based crime is included in this chart.

Thirty forces provided tracked outcome data and "n/a" means the force have not provided 

tracked outcome data.

Demand in Derbyshire Crime in Derbyshire
Demands on the force in 2014/15. Crimes and outcomes recorded in the force in 2014/15.

For more information on the data used here, please see 'Demand 999 calls/Emergency & Priority incidents'. 

Note that these categories do not cover all of the demands on the force.

For more information on the data used here, please see 'Demand - Recorded crimes per visible officers' in the 

full profile document. For more information on the data used here, please see 'Offences and Outcomes' in the full profile document.

The chart below shows how the number of recorded crimes and charges per visible officer in the force 

compares with the average of its peer group of forces:

-20% -15% -10% -5% 0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 

% difference from peer average % difference from peer average 

% difference from peer average 

-40% -30% -20% -10% 0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 

-20% -15% -10% -5% 0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 

-100% -75% -50% -25% 0% 25% 50% 75% 100% 

% difference from peer average 
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Outliers

OVERALL COSTS     

  PCSOs 5.0 4.9 6.7 -1.9 

          

Staffing FTE (POA) FTE/1000 Avg Diff £m      

    PCSOs 166.0 0.2 0.2 -1.8      

          

COSTS BY OBJECTIVE £m £/head Avg Diff £m      

NRE by objective group          

  Dealing with the public 8.7 8.5 10.8 -2.5      

          

Local policing          

  Neighbourhood policing 12.8 12.4 24.6 -12.6      

Dealing with the public          

  Dealing with the public 9 8.5 10.8 -2.5      

Support functions          

  ICT 6.5 6.2 8.6 -2.4      

  Performance review 1.2 1.2 2.3 -1.1      

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

     

      

This page provides the areas in which the force is an outlier in costs. The force's figures are compared to the spend of other forces. To be flagged as an outlier, the spend must be one of the highest 10% or lowest 10% of 
any force and the effect of the difference is greater than £1 per head of population. The difference (Diff) calculations are the net cost of the difference in spend to the average per head of all forces. 
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JOINT AUDIT RISK AND ASSURANCE COMMITTEE 
3 MARCH 2016 

REPORT OF THE TREASURER  

9A: SUMMARY OF REVENUE BUDGET AND PRECEPT PROCESS 2016/17 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 To provide an outline of the Commissioner’s  

2. INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS 

2.1 The Police Reform & Social Responsibility Act introduced in November 2012 

the legal concept of 2 corporations sole for the Police and Crime 

Commissioner and the Chief Constable.  Working in consultation with the 

Chief Constable and having due regard for partners’ plans, the Commissioner 

issues a Police and Crime Plan.  

2.2 Under the new regime, the Commissioner retains responsibility for all funding 

– government grant, police precept and income streams.  Working closely 

with the Chief Constable and his Chief Officer team, a draft budget to deliver 

the Police and Crime Plan is compiled for initial internal consideration in 

December.  

2.3 Throughout 2015, the Commissioner and the Chief Constable were 

anticipating further cuts in police funding, heralded as being as high as 40%.  

Working on the basis of this, the Constabulary continued to plan its services 

and through the Priority Based Budgeting programme sought to plan for cuts 

between 2015 and 2020 of up to £32m.  After realised PBB savings of £7m, 

and a further £7m of projected savings to be achieved, there remained a 

projected budget gap of £18m.  This was the situation right up to 25 

November 2015. 

2.4 On 13 November the terrible atrocities in Paris brought into stark focus the 

impact that terrorism could have on a community.  The Chancellor in his 

Comprehensive Spending Review and Autumn Statement, delivered on 25th 

November 2015, indicated that police budgets would be protected and there 
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would be no cuts.  This ‘protection’ is, however, predicated on Police & Crime 

Commissioners raising the local policing precept by the maximum allowed for 

the remainder of the Government’s term in office.  

2.5 In the week before Christmas, the government issued its consultation on the 

police funding settlement and this then informs the final draft budget, which 

was considered in its full version at the Strategic Governance Board meeting 

on 26 January 2016.  

2.6 A budget consultation exercise on precept levels for 2016/17 was carried out 

with a closing date of 22 January to inform the Strategic Governance Board 

meeting.  The results were that 80% of respondents thought the 

Commissioner should increase the police precept by at least the 2% assumed 

by the Chancellor of the Exchequer.    

2.7 The Police and Crime Panel met on 28 January to consider the report of the 

Commissioner and consider his proposals for the level of precept for the 

2016/17 financial year.  The meeting of the Police and Crime Panel approved 

the Commissioner’s precept proposals.    

2.8 Unfortunately, the government’s final grant announcements takes place 

during the first week of February and is not compatible with the panel 

timescale.  Furthermore, the referendum principles which restrict the increase 

in the level of council tax are not announced until after the panel has to 

receive the Commissioner’s precept proposals. 

2.9 The government confirmed the revenue grant allocation for 2016/17 and the 

referendum limits in February.  Therefore a final budget and precept report 

was prepared for consideration by the Commissioner.  

2.10 In order assist the billing authorities, the Commissioner considered and 

approved the final budget for 2016/17 of £167,521,907, a council tax 

requirement of £53,585,007 and a Band D council tax of £177.07, an increase 

of 1.99% on 16 February.  

2.11 The precept letters to the billing authorities were then issued. 
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2.12 All papers relating to the setting of the budget and the precept are available 

on the Commissioner’s website.  

2.13 As this process and its satisfactory outcome is fundamental to an efficient and 

effective force, it was considered that the JARAC may wish to be advised of 

the process and final outcome.   

3. RECOMMENDATIONS 

i. To gain assurance that due process has been completed in the revenue 

budget and precept report process. 

4. IMPLICATIONS 

All implications are assessed and scored to the table below.  
HIGH – supporting explanation and narrative required and to be contained 
within the report 
MEDIUM – narrative to be contained within the report at the discretion of the 
author  
LOW – no narrative required 
 

 LOW MEDIUM HIGH 

Crime & Disorder √   

Environmental √   

Equality & Diversity √   

Financial   √ 

Health & Safety √   

Human Rights √   

Legal   √ 

Personnel √   
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Contact details  
in the event  
of enquiries 

Name: Helen Boffy 
External telephone number: 0300 122 6005 
Email address:  helen.boffy.4808@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk  

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS: NONE 

ATTACHMENTS :NONE 
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 JOINT AUDIT, RISK AND ASSURANCE COMMITTEE (JARAC) 
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JOINT REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND TREASURER 

9B: 2015/16 YEAR END ACCOUNTING ARRANGEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING 
 POLICIES 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 To advise of changes to the final accounts process both nationally and locally 

with particular emphasis on the role of the Committee. 

2. BACKGROUND 

2.1 Introduction of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 (PRSR 

Act 2011) changed the way in which the police in England and Wales are 

governed and held accountable. 

2.2 Under the PRSR Act 2011 Police and Crime Commissioners and the Chief 

Constable were established as separate bodies. 

2.3 The primary function of the body headed by the Chief Constable is the 

exercise of operational policing duties under the Police Act 1996.  One of the 

Commissioner’s function is to hold the Chief Constable to account for the 

exercise of these duties, thereby securing the maintenance of an efficient and 

effective police service in Derbyshire. 

3. INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS 

Preparation of the 2015/16 Accounts 

3.1 The 2015/16 Statement of Accounts is prepared in accordance with the 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of 

Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2015/16.  The Accounts reflect the 

current legislative framework as well as the local arrangements operating in 

practice.  Key elements of this framework include: - 
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• The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 (the Act) 

• Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (as amended) 

• The Home Office Financial Management Code of Practice for the Police 

Service of England and Wales 2013 

• Joint Corporate Governance Framework – Scheme of Delegation and 

Consent between the Commissioner and Chief Constable 

• The Financial Handbook of the Commissioner and Chief Constable 

3.2 Each year a timetable is prepared setting out the key processes that must be 

followed and respective deadlines to ensure the accounts are prepared in 

accordance with the above framework (paragraph 3.1) and by the statutory 

deadline.   

3.3 From 2017/18 the deadline for preparing and approving accounts will be 

brought forward to 31 May.  This is a significant change and will require more 

estimation within the accounts and even earlier preparation.  The Finance 

Team is trying to prepare for this earlier closure by bringing forward the 

timetable for accounts preparation this year.   A copy of the 2015/16 timetable 

is attached at Appendix A. 

3.4 Every year we are required, under statue, to produce and publish an annual 

statement of accounts before the end of September of the following financial 

year.  The primary financial statements within this document comprise:- 

• Movement in Reserves Statement 

• Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

• Balance Sheet 

• Cash Flow Statement 

3.5 In addition to these primary statements the accounts include an Explanatory 

Foreword providing context and explanations of key issues, and a series of 

Notes providing further detail to the primary statements. 

3.6 The Annual Governance Statements (AGS) also accompany the statements 

of accounts.  The AGS sets out the management’s view of its governance 
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arrangements, issues to be addressed and actions to be taken to strengthen 

governance. 

3.7 Since the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 (the Act) came 

into effect, we have to publish two sets of financial statements: - 

• The Commissioner’s Statement of Accounts (including Group Accounts). 

• The Chief Constable’s Statement of Accounts. 

3.8 This requirement was brought about by the creation of two separate legal 

entities under the Act. 

3.9 Even though the Commissioner receives all income and funding and makes 

all payments from the Police Fund it is necessary to publish two sets of 

financial statements.  This is because we are required to apply the accounting 

principle of ‘Substance Over Form’.  The accounting principle is used to 

ensure that financials statements present a complete, relevant and accurate 

picture of transactions and events by accounting for the financial reality (the 

‘economic substance’) rather than the legal form of a transaction. 

 
Accounting Policies  
 

3.10 Accounting policies are the specific principals, conventions, rules and 

practices that are applied in preparing and presenting the annual accounts. 

The Commissioner and Chief Constable follows broadly the standards and 

policies contained in the Code when preparing their final accounts.   

3.11 The only change to the Accounting Policies for 2015/16 relates to the 

introduction to the Code of International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 

13 Fair Value Measurement.  The introduction of IFRS 13 has brought about a 

change to the definition of fair values and requires an additional accounting 

policy and disclosures in the notes to the primary financial statements if there 

is a material difference between these and the carrying amounts.  The carry 

amount being the cost of an asset minus any accumulated depreciation.  The 

definition of fair value is complex and further guidance will need to be 
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published by CIPFA in order to fully understand the manner in which fair 

values should be measured to ensure compliance with the Code.    

3.12 However, there are new Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 that will require 

changes to the statements by the introduction of a narrative statement to sit 

alongside the Statements, and amendments to the inspection and notice 

procedure for the public rights which specify the process and key dates.   

3.13 It is recommended that the Accounting Policies are approved by the Joint 

Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee, so setting the framework for final 

accounts to be prepared and the Statements produced by June ready for 

audit.  Attached at the Appendices B and C are the Statements of Accounting 

Policies for the 2015/16 Statement of Accounts for the Committee’s approval.   

4. RECOMMENDATIONS 

4.1  That the Committee can take assurance that plans, including the draft 

timetable, for the closure of accounts and the production of the Statements for 

2015/16 are robust  

4.2 The Statements of Accounting Policies for the Chief Constable and for the 

Police & Crime Commissioner are approved. 

5. IMPLICATIONS 

 LOW MEDIUM HIGH 

Crime & Disorder X   

Environmental X   

Equality & Diversity X   

Financial X   

Health & Safety X   

Human Rights X   

Legal X   

Personnel X   
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Contact details  
in the event  
of enquiries 

Name: Chief Superintendent Sunita Gamblin  
External telephone number: 0300 122 4196 
Email address: sgbenquiries@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice 
on Local Authority Accounting 2015/16 

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 
Code of International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 

ATTACHMENTS 

Appendix A. 2015/16 Year-end closedown plan 

Appendix B. Statement of Accounting Policies for the Police and Crime 

Commissioner for Derbyshire 

Appendix C. Statement of Accounting Policies for the Chief Constable for 

Derbyshire 

 

 

5 
 



Draft Final Accounts Closedown Plan for the Chief Constable and Police and Crime Commissioner 2015/16

Page 1 of 10 22/02/2016

Day Date Leave Task/Comment Responsible Task Complete

Nov/Dec We provide GAD with formal Commissioning Letter (ensure they do work on injury payments) PS
Jan/Feb Review Code of Practice for new requirements JB

Feb/Mar
Put Payments in advance, receipts in advance into system where possible. Raise debtor invoices for 2015/16 where 
possible Strat Finance

Feb/Mar Ensure any miscodings are corrected, orders closed etc… Strat Finance
Thursday 11-Jan Set up proforma accounts for 2015/16  for completion by 29 Jan FS
Friday 15-Jan
Saturday 16-Jan
Sunday 17-Jan
Monday 18-Jan
Tuesday 19-Jan

Wednesday 20-Jan
Meeting with CW to go over closedown dates & tidying ledger for year end eg outstanding crs,drs and aged 
registrations JB/CW

Thursday 21-Jan
Friday 22-Jan
Saturday 23-Jan
Sunday 24-Jan
Monday 25-Jan
Tuesday 26-Jan
Wednesday 27-Jan
Thursday 28-Jan Meeting with Strategic Finance re Final Accounts Timetable Strat Finance
Friday 29-Jan GAD send out demographic assumptions by this date GAD

Email to IS re asset disposals - deadline for return 26 February JB/SM
List of aged orders and registrations to be sent out to check if any need closing/chasing MC
Email to Finance Support re lump sum payments JB

Saturday 30-Jan
Sunday 31-Jan
Monday 01-Feb Finance Support/Legal to review debtor invoices for write off during February - deadline for return 26 February CW

Written Instructions issued to users re year end procedures JB
Tuesday 02-Feb Finance Support to review old registrations to clear by 26 February Fin Supp
Wednesday 03-Feb Strategic Finance to review old orders and close by 26 February Strat Finance
Thursday 04-Feb
Friday 05-Feb
Saturday 06-Feb
Sunday 07-Feb
Monday 08-Feb
Tuesday 09-Feb Scan all grant notifications & precepts for final accounts working papers FS
Wednesday 10-Feb
Thursday 11-Feb Check debtors reconciliation of 0325 in anticipation of year end JB/FS

Appendix A 
Agenda Item 9B 

JARAC
3 March 2016



Draft Final Accounts Closedown Plan for the Chief Constable and Police and Crime Commissioner 2015/16

Page 2 of 10 22/02/2016

Day Date Leave Task/Comment Responsible Task Complete

Friday 12-Feb Deadline for JARAC - Accounting Policies DF
KPMG Final Accounts Workshop JB/MC
Deadline for acceptance of demographic assumptions to GAD PS

Saturday 13-Feb
Sunday 14-Feb
Monday 15-Feb MC Send out emails re leases and embedded arrangements to IS, Assets Team and Procurement. JB
Tuesday 16-Feb MC Emails Assets Team (SS) re new leases or terminated leases in 2015/16 KB
Wednesday 17-Feb MC Email LLP (Derbyshire Fire) re deadlines for accruals and other information JB
Thursday 18-Feb MC
Friday 19-Feb MC Assets registers to be complete for start of year position SM/TW/JB

GAD issues user instructions & cash flow data collection spreadsheets by this date GAD
Saturday 20-Feb
Sunday 21-Feb
Monday 22-Feb Interim Audit for 2 weeks Ext Audit

Closing down timetable issued to External Auditors. JB

Tuesday 23-Feb
Written request sent to Finance (CW) & Divisions & CTIU for Petty Cash Imprest Account Reconciliations and a request 
to bank income on 31 March JB/MC
Written request sent to Business Services Support (EW) and Legal for Vehicle and Liability Insurance Claims deadline 5 
April SK

Wednesday 24-Feb
Thursday 25-Feb Balance all reconciliation accounts in anticipation of year end (eg collection accounts, salaries Interims etc) LS

Friday 26-Feb
Written request to Lampton Smith Hamptons and Head of Assets about assets to be valued, surplus assets and 
impairments DF/JB
List of Debtors to be written off/credited to be established CW
Deadline for DCC IAS19 information PS/MC
Period 11 Monitoring reports run JPJ
Deadline for return of lists for IS Disposals SM/TW/JB

Saturday 27-Feb
Sunday 28-Feb
Monday 29-Feb Strategic Finance to work on Draft Outturn this week for Carry Forward meetings w/c 07 March Strat Finance
Tuesday 01-Mar Email to Matthew Hennell re TOIL, Annual Leave for Police Officers and Staff on DMS system as at 31/03/16 MC
Wednesday 02-Mar Send email to Claire for information on Police Property Fund Balances as at 31/03/16 AC 
Thursday 03-Mar Action write off any items in collection accounts and salaries interims (04's) LS/JB/CW

JARAC
Friday 04-Mar Email to District/Borough Councils re Accounting for Council Tax MC
Saturday 05-Mar
Sunday 06-Mar
Monday 07-Mar Draft outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations DF/Strat Fin

Send out email re CDC % to staff deadline 8 April MC
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Check that monies have been received from Region re pensions deficit TW
Tuesday 08-Mar Draft outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations DF/Strat Fin

Email to Assets Team (TH) re reports from Vehicle Management System re purchases and disposals up to 31/03/16. 
Deadline 5 April 2016. FS
Remind DCC to send debt charges and early retirement invoices before 31 March 2016 FS/PS

Wednesday 09-Mar Draft outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations DF/Strat Fin
Email Business Support (EW) re deadlines (11 April) for Fuel and Hire Cars (14 April) JPJ
Email Finance Support (CW) re deadlines (14 April) for Barclaycard JPJ
Email Finance Support (CW) re deadlines (11 April) for POCA information KB

Thursday 10-Mar Draft outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations DF/Strat Fin
Friday 11-Mar Draft outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations DF/Strat Fin

Action Debtor Write offs (JB) and credit notes (CW) by this date JB/CW
GAD completes data checks and signs off data to use for the2015/16 pension disclosures GAD

Saturday 12-Mar
Sunday 13-Mar
Monday 14-Mar JB Draft outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations DF/Strat Fin
Tuesday 15-Mar JB Draft outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations DF/Strat Fin
Wednesday 16-Mar JB Draft outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations DF/Strat Fin
Thursday 17-Mar JB Draft outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations DF/Strat Fin

Review out of date cheques and write-off actioned by 29 March.                                                                                         LS
Friday 18-Mar JB Draft outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations DF/Strat Fin

Last day for virement requests from Divisions/Departments to be actioned by 24 March. Strat Finance
Deadline for Divisions/Departments/Strat Finance to send any invoices they might receive to Finance Support Divs/Depts/Strat Fin

Saturday 19-Mar
Sunday 20-Mar
Monday 21-Mar DF Email to Leicestershire/Business Support re salaries over £45,000 and P11D information. JB

Email Finance Support (CW), Divisions and CTIU to remind about banking on 31 March 2016 JB
Deadline for Divisional Petty Cash to be received by Finance Support Divisions/Fin Supp

Tuesday 22-Mar DF Cheque/BACS run to pick up most invoices Fin Supp
BACS run for Widows payments required Fin Supp
Last day for debtor invoice details to reach Finance Support for input deadline 31 March 2016 Divs/Depts/Strat Fin

Wednesday 23-Mar DF Email Assets Team re assets held for sale, surplus assets and impairments JB
Thursday 24-Mar DF Email to Sheila Sismey re Derby PFI CCR's PS
Friday 25-Mar
Saturday 26-Mar
Sunday 27-Mar
Monday 28-Mar
Tuesday 29-Mar Extra Cheque/BACS run if required Fin Supp

Out of date cheques In Agresso LS
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Wednesday 30-Mar

Thursday 31-Mar Income (cash receipts)  to be banked. Divisions to send Statement of Receipts and Banking slip to Fin Supp by 2.30pm Div / Fin Supp
Cash Receipts to be registered in Agresso for HQ and Divisions. Fin Supp
Debtor invoices to be input. Fin Supp
All handdrawn cheques to be posted (Manual Payments) Fin Supp
Last Cheque/BACS run for 2015/16 and HQ Petty Cash. Fin Supp
Period/Year end routines and Agresso system default period changed to 201601. MC/JPJ
Run report of invoices registered but not approved (posted) plus other year end reports JB

Friday 01-Apr Open Purchase Orders as at 31 March carried forward to 201601 MC/JPJ
Police Officer/staff TOIL,RDIL, Flexi and Annual Leave to be obtained from HR system (DMS Staff only) MC
Check all Cash Receipts input JB/CW
Strategic Finance can input Year End Journals from this date to 22 April 2016
Auditors to request third-party verifications for bank balances. FS to send letters for investments as at 31 March 2016 to 
be returned to auditors- schedule to be sent to Auditors

Saturday 02-Apr
Sunday 03-Apr
Monday 04-Apr

Tuesday 05-Apr
Income banked (Manual Credits and Debits) up to 31 March 2016 posted within Agresso. Manual Receipts to be 
posted. Fin Supp
Finance Support to send overtime submission to Strategic Finance Fin Supp
Deadline for vehicle and legal claims information Bus Ser/Legal
Send Information to LSH re capital spend JB/SM
Email PFI provider about lifecycle expenditure - capital/revenue PS
Email to Chief offIcers and Office of PCC re related party transactions MC
Email to Force Solicitor, Director of Finance and Office of PCC (Treasurer & Chief Executive) re contingent liabilities MC

Wednesday 06-Apr Check with Director of Finance any changes to Chief Officer scheme MC
Final reconcilation of Account code 0325 - debtors income - Liase with Finance Support if necessary FS
Emails sent to Force Managers re force assets as at 31/03/2016 due back 15 April JB
Email sent re capital orders to accrue JB
Overtime and 10% allowance submission to Mouchel - CW to check deadline with Leicestershire JPJ
DCC IAS19 reports available to employers DCC

Thursday 07-Apr Final Bank Reconciliation for 2015/16 completed. Save copy in excel (closedown folder) LS
Send out Bad Debt Provision information to Fin Support (CW) deadline for return 15 April MC/JB/CW

Friday 08-Apr Deadline for CDC% information MC
Deadline for Petty Cash Reconciliation Information Fin/Bus Supp/MC
Additional Cashflow data and membership summary information to be sumitted to GAD, send copy to auditors PS/SK
Cancelled cheques (no reissue) relating to old year to be posted CW

Saturday 09-Apr
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Sunday 10-Apr
Monday 11-Apr Balance System Debtors and Creditors and summarise in different formats MC

Deadline for Fuel recharges Bus Supp
Tuesday 12-Apr Send email out re Grants to be checked for conditions JB

Fuel Charges to be input into Agresso JPJ
Reconcile POCA to Finance Support records and post journals KB/Fin Supp

Wednesday 13-Apr Run report of invoices posted in 2016/17 to check which need accrueing into 2015/16. Send out to Strategic Finance JB/SM
Thursday 14-Apr Download Year End PWLB Information from internet FS

Deadline for Long/Short term hire vehicles for March transactions Bus Supp
Deadline for Barclaycard Expenditure spreadsheet to be received for March transactions Fin Supp
Internal Revenue Recharges actioned (Cleaning,additional vehicles etc) SM/MC

Friday 15-Apr Bad Debt provision deadline CW
Finalise system accruals spreadsheet & input into Agresso SM/JB
Hire Cars and Barclaycard Expenditure to be input into Agresso JPJ

Saturday 16-Apr
Sunday 17-Apr
Monday 18-Apr Vehicle Reconciliation to be completed FS
Tuesday 19-Apr
Wednesday 20-Apr

Thursday 21-Apr
Amounts for Police Officers' &staff overtime/10% allowances in April 2016 payroll posted to period 201513. Also accrue 
March registered Overtime. JPJ
Amounts for Travel Expenses in April 2016 Police Officer and Police Staff payrolls posted to period 201513 JPJ
Pensions Deficit information input into Agresso JPJ
Final reconciliation of salaries interims/collection accounts LS

Friday 22-Apr Last journal entries to revenue codes  (Final outturn position) by 4pm Strat Fin
Excelerator Reports run for final outturn position JPJ/MC
Information provided to Treasurer re Police Property Fund for Treasurer to prepare report CW

Saturday 23-Apr
Sunday 24-Apr
Monday 25-Apr Check Final Outturn Reports and send out Strat Fin

Capital Accounting 25 April to 12 May JB/SM
Collaboration Accounting 25 April to 13 May  TW/SL/SK

Tuesday 26-Apr Balance Manual Debtors and Creditors and analyse for Debtor/Creditors note Deadline 17 May KB
Wednesday 27-Apr Sponsorship balances in ledger balanced to Sponsorship register AC
Thursday 28-Apr Annual Pensions return to DCC (financial penalty if not received) CW
Friday 29-Apr Deadline for Provisional Outturn Figures for TN to report to PCC & Treasurer MC/DF

Information back from DCC - all other  IAS19 information DCC
Saturday 30-Apr
Sunday 01-May
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Monday 02-May
Tuesday 03-May Review Partnerships re Group accounts JB/TW
Wednesday 04-May

Thursday 05-May
Friday 06-May GAD to send IAS19 Disclosures GAD

Accounting for Council Tax Information received from Councils MC
Lead Force Information to be sent/received from region re collabaration TW/SL/SK

Saturday 07-May
Sunday 08-May
Monday 09-May IAS19 figures to be posted in ledger PS/MC

Accounting for Council Tax Information posted in ledger MC
Deadline for Outturn Reports (Revenue & Capital) for SGB on 27 June DF/JB
Deadline for Treasury Management Annual Report SGB 29 June FS/JB

Tuesday 10-May
Wednesday 11-May
Thursday 12-May Final day for Capital journal entries JB/SM
Friday 13-May Last journal entries for contributions to/from Reserves and Balance Sheet (final position) JB/PS

Information required for Chief Officer renumeration note re P11D information CW/MC
Last day for our share of EMSOU/Collaborations to be entered into Derbyshire's Accounts TW

Saturday 14-May
Sunday 15-May
Monday 16-May Reconciliation of Balance Sheet Codes complete Strat Fin
Tuesday 17-May Information for Debtors/Creditors note complete KB

Preparation of Statement of Accounts including POA JB/PS/TW/MC
Wednesday 18-May Preparation of Statement of Accounts including POA JB/PS/TW/MC
Thursday 19-May Preparation of Statement of Accounts including POA JB/PS/TW/MC
Friday 20-May Preparation of Statement of Accounts including POA JB/PS/TW/MC
Saturday 21-May
Sunday 22-May
Monday 23-May Preparation of Statement of Accounts including POA JB/PS/TW/MC
Tuesday 24-May Preparation of Statement of Accounts including POA JB/PS/TW/MC
Wednesday 25-May Preparation of Statement of Accounts including POA JB/PS/TW/MC
Thursday 26-May Preparation of Statement of Accounts including POA JB/PS/TW/MC

Preparation of Statement of Accounts including POA JB/PS/TW/MC
Friday 27-May Preparation of Statement of Accounts including POA JB/PS/TW/MC
Saturday 28-May
Sunday 29-May
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Monday 30-May
Tuesday 31-May MC Draft Statement of Accounts Finalised including Group Accounts -sent to be checked JB/PS

MC Internal Audit Report required from Auditors on Governance
Wednesday 01-Jun MC Draft Statement of Accounts Checked TN/DF/HB/PS
Thursday 02-Jun MC Changes to Statement of Accounts finalised JB/PS
Friday 03-Jun MC Statement of Accounts completed JB/PS
Saturday 04-Jun
Sunday 05-Jun
Monday 06-Jun Prepare Annual Governance Statement - Chief Constable and PCC for Audit Committee (JARAC) on 30 June DF/HB

Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist JB/PS/TW/MC
Tuesday 07-Jun Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist JB/PS/TW/MC
Wednesday 08-Jun Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist JB/PS/TW/MC
Thursday 09-Jun Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist JB/PS/TW/MC
Friday 10-Jun Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist JB/PS/TW/MC
Saturday 11-Jun
Sunday 12-Jun
Monday 13-Jun Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist JB/PS/TW/MC

Start WGA Return - for completion by 8 July? JB/MC/KF
Tuesday 14-Jun Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist JB/PS/TW/MC
Wednesday 15-Jun Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist JB/PS/TW/MC
Thursday 16-Jun Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist JB/PS/TW/MC
Friday 17-Jun Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist JB/PS/TW/MC

Deadline for Annual Debtors report for SGB 25 July 2016 FS/JB
Saturday 18-Jun
Sunday 19-Jun
Monday 20-Jun
Tuesday 21-Jun
Wednesday 22-Jun
Thursday 23-Jun
Friday 24-Jun
Saturday 25-Jun
Sunday 26-Jun
Monday 27-Jun DF,KF Strategic Governance Board

Treasurer/Director of Finance to sign off Accounts following SGB approval of Outturn HB/TN
Tuesday 28-Jun DF,KF
Wednesday 29-Jun DF,KF
Thursday 30-Jun DF/KF JARAC
Friday 01-Jul DF/KF Set of sign Accounts to be provided to Auditors after accounts scrutinised at JARAC JB

Completion of CO Forms (Deadline 08 July) SM/JB
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Saturday 02-Jul
Sunday 03-Jul
Monday 04-Jul DF/JB
Tuesday 05-Jul JB
Wednesday 06-Jul JB
Thursday 07-Jul JB
Friday 08-Jul JB Completion of RO Forms PS

Deadline for WGA submission ? KF/MC
Saturday 09-Jul
Sunday 10-Jul
Monday 11-Jul JB
Tuesday 12-Jul JB
Wednesday 13-Jul JB
Thursday 14-Jul JB
Friday 15-Jul JB
Saturday 16-Jul
Sunday 17-Jul
Monday 18-Jul Accounts open to public inspection - to be notified by Auditor???
Tuesday 19-Jul Any Grant claims to auditors if need auditing Strat Fin
Wednesday 20-Jul
Thursday 21-Jul
Friday 22-Jul All debtor invoices that relate to old year to be sent to Finance Support Strat Finance
Saturday 23-Jul
Sunday 24-Jul
Monday 25-Jul Strategic Governance Board
Tuesday 26-Jul
Wednesday 27-Jul
Thursday 28-Jul
Friday 29-Jul
Saturday 30-Jul
Sunday 31-Jul
Monday 01-Aug Audit of 2015/16 Accounts. Electronic working papers to be ready to give to auditors
Tuesday 02-Aug Audit of 2015/16 Accounts. 
Wednesday 03-Aug Audit of 2015/16 Accounts. 
Thursday 04-Aug Audit of 2015/16 Accounts. 
Friday 05-Aug Audit of 2015/16 Accounts. 
Saturday 06-Aug
Sunday 07-Aug
Monday 08-Aug Audit of 2015/16 Accounts. 
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Tuesday 09-Aug Audit of 2015/16 Accounts. 
Wednesday 10-Aug Audit of 2015/16 Accounts. 
Thursday 11-Aug Audit of 2015/16 Accounts. 
Friday 12-Aug Audit of 2015/16 Accounts. 
Saturday 13-Aug
Sunday 14-Aug
Monday 15-Aug Audit of 2015/16 Accounts. 
Tuesday 16-Aug Audit of 2015/16 Accounts. 
Wednesday 17-Aug Audit of 2015/16 Accounts. 
Thursday 18-Aug Audit of 2015/16 Accounts. 
Friday 19-Aug Audit of 2015/16 Accounts. 
Saturday 20-Aug
Sunday 21-Aug
Monday 22-Aug Section 13 Day - to be notified by Auditor
Tuesday 23-Aug
Wednesday 24-Aug
Thursday 25-Aug
Friday 26-Aug
Saturday 27-Aug
Sunday 28-Aug
Monday 29-Aug
Tuesday 30-Aug JB
Wednesday 31-Aug JB
Thursday 01-Sep JB
Friday 02-Sep JB
Saturday 03-Sep
Sunday 04-Sep
Monday 05-Sep KF
Tuesday 06-Sep KF
Wednesday 07-Sep KF Deadline for Audited SOA for JARAC plus report in September?? DF
Thursday 08-Sep KF
Friday 09-Sep KF
Saturday 10-Sep
Sunday 11-Sep
Monday 12-Sep
Tuesday 13-Sep
Wednesday 14-Sep
Thursday 15-Sep
Friday 16-Sep
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Saturday 17-Sep
Sunday 18-Sep
Monday 19-Sep Any completed Grant Claims to be sent back to grant awarding authority
Tuesday 20-Sep
Wednesday 21-Sep
Thursday 22-Sep JARAC Accounts signed off. 
Friday 23-Sep
Saturday 24-Sep
Sunday 25-Sep
Monday 26-Sep
Tuesday 27-Sep
Wednesday 28-Sep Audited WGA sent off
Thursday 29-Sep
Friday 30-Sep Public notice of closure of audit

Weekend
Bank Holiday
Annual leave
High risk - management attention required
Medium risk - review by management required
Low risk - no action required
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POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER AND GROUP 
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 
Accounting Policies 
 
General Principles 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice (the Code) on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (as amended) and the Service 
Reporting Code of Practice for Local Authorities 2015/16 (SeRCOP).  The accounting policies contained 
in the Code apply International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adapted for the public sector by 
the International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). 
 
The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis using an historic cost convention, modified 
to account for the revaluation of certain categories of tangible fixed assets and financial liabilities. 
 
With the introduction of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 on 22 November 2012 two 
‘corporation sole’ bodies, the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and the Chief Constable 
for Derbyshire were formed.  Both bodies are required to prepare separate Statements of Accounts. 
 
The Financial Statements included here represent the accounts for the Commissioner and also those for 
the Group.  The financial statements cover the 12 months to 31 March 2016.  The term ‘Group’ is used 
to indicate individual transactions and policies of the Commissioner and Chief Constable for the year 
ended 31 March 2016.  The identification of the Commissioner as the holding organisation and the 
requirement to produce group accounts stems from the powers and responsibilities of the Commissioner 
under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011. 
 
The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below: - 
 
Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made and 
received.  Whilst all expenditure is paid for by the Group including the pay costs of police officers and 
staff, the actual recognition in the respective Commissioner and Chief Constable Accounts is based on 
economic benefit. 
 
Debtors – these are recognised in the accounts when the ordered goods or services have been 
delivered or rendered by the Group in the financial year but the income has not yet been received. 
Income has only been included in the accounts when it can be realised with reasonable certainty. Where 
there is evidence that the Group may not be able to collect all amounts due to it, a provision for bad 
debts is established. The provision made is the difference between the current carrying value of the debt 
and the amount likely to be collected. These amounts are set on an individual debtor basis. The 
provision for bad debts is recognised as a charge to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement for the income that might not be collected. 
 
Creditors – these are recorded where goods or services have been supplied to the Group by 31 March 
but payment is not made until the following financial year. 
 
Fair Value Measurement 
Some of the non-financial assets, such as surplus assets and some financial instruments are measured 
at fair value at each reporting date.  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  
The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes 
place either: - 
 
• In the principal market for the assets or liability; or 
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 
 
The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would 
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic interest. 
 
When measuring a non-financial asset, the market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by 
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use 
the asset in its highest and best use is taken into account. 
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Valuation techniques used are those appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is 
available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable 
inputs. 
 
Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or 
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, as follows: - 
 
• Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that can be 

accessed at the measurement date. 
• Level 2 – inputs other than quoted process included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset 

or liability, either directly or indirectly. 
• Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the assets or liability. 
 
Accounting for Local Taxes  
The collection of council tax is, in substance, an agency arrangement with the Derbyshire District and 
Derby City Authorities (billing authorities) collecting council tax on behalf of the Commissioner (the 
Police Precept). 
 
The council tax income is included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an 
accruals basis and includes the precept for the year plus a share of Collection Fund surpluses and 
deficits from the billing authorities. 
 
The difference between the income reported in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the General Reserve shall be taken to the 
Collection Fund Adjustment Account through the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
The year-end Balance Sheet includes the share of year end debtors (arrears and collection fund 
surpluses) and creditors (prepayments, overpayments and collection fund deficits) attributable to the 
Group 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term 
commitments rather than for investment or other purposes.  The following have been classed as cash 
and cash equivalents: 
 
• Cash on hand. 
• Cash in bank (Current Account, Call Account and Business Premium Account). 
• Temporary investments with instant access and no penalties. 
 
Exceptional Items 
When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed separately, either 
on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the accounts, 
depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of the Group’s financial performance. 
 
Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors 
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material 
error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future 
years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 
 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the 
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and 
conditions on the Group’s position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied 
retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for 
the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied. 
 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening 
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 
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Employee Benefits 
The Accounts are prepared in accordance with IAS19 Employee Benefits. This is a complex accounting 
standard but it is based on a simple principle that: 
 
“An organisation should account for employment and post-employment benefits when employees earn 
them and the authority is committed to give them, even if the actual giving will be many years into the 
future”. 
 
IAS 19 applies to all types of employee benefits paid including benefits payable during employment, 
termination benefits and post-employment benefits. 
 
Benefits Payable During Employment 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year end. They 
include such benefits as salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, expenses, bonuses and non-
monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in 
the year in which employees render service to the Group.  An accrual is made for the cost of holiday 
entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the 
year end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is charged to 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, but then reversed out through the Movement in 
Reserves Statement to the Short Term Accumulating Compensated Absences Account so that holiday 
benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs but have no 
impact on the level of council tax. 
 
Termination Benefits  
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Group to terminate 
employment before the normal retirement date or a decision to accept voluntary redundancy and when 
the Group is demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment of an individual or group or 
making an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy. 
 
Post-employment Benefits (Pensions) 
The main effect of IAS19 in relation to post-employment benefits is the recognition of the net liability and 
a pensions reserve in the Balance Sheet and entries in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement for movements in the liability relating to the employee pension schemes in which the Group 
participates (with reconciling entries in the Movement in Reserves Statement back to the true cost of 
pensions for the purposes of grant and local taxation).  
  
IAS19 relies on the recognition of pension’s liabilities (being the retirement benefits promised measured 
on an actuarial basis) and assets (being the Group’s share of investments (if any)). 
 
The Group participates in two different pension schemes both of which are “defined benefit schemes” as 
they are both based on employees earning benefits from years of service; 
 
a) Police Officers 
This scheme is unfunded. This means it provides pensions and other retirement benefits for police 
officers based on final salaries but there are no investment assets built up to meet the pensions 
liabilities.   
 
The funding arrangements for the police officers pension scheme changed on 1 April 2006. Before April 
2006 each Police Authority was responsible for paying the pensions of its former officers on a “pay as 
you go” basis. From April 2006 there is now an employer’s contribution instead (currently 24.2% of 
pensionable salary) which is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
The Group is required by legislation to operate a Pension Fund Account and the amounts that must be 
paid into and paid out of the Pension Fund are specified by regulation. Officer’s contributions and the 
employer’s contribution are paid into the pension’s account from which pension payments are then 
made. This will be topped up as necessary by the Home Office if the contributions are insufficient to 
meet the cost of pension’s payments. Any surplus will be recouped by the Home Office. Injury awards 
and ill health retirements will continue to be paid from the Group’s Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 
 
The pension fund account does not take account of the obligation to pay pensions and benefits which 
fall due after the end of the financial year.  
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b) Police Staff and PCSO’s 
Police staff and PCSO’s, subject to certain qualifying criteria, are eligible to join the Local Government 
Pension Scheme administered by Derbyshire County Council. It is a defined benefit occupational 
pension scheme.  Pensions and other retirement benefits earned prior to 1 April 2014 are based on final 
salaries, benefits earned after that date are calculated on earnings accrued in a scheme year. 
Employers and employees make regular contributions into the fund, which are invested in various types 
of asset, so that the liabilities are paid for evenly over the employment period. Actuarial valuations of the 
fund are undertaken every three years to determine the contributions rates needed to meet its liabilities. 
 
For both schemes the liabilities are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the 
projected unit method (an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement 
benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover 
rates, etc., and projections of projected earnings for current employees). Liabilities are discounted to 
their value at current prices, using a discount rate. The Discount Rate used is based on the ‘current rate 
of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent currency and term to the scheme liabilities’, 
which is often referred to as AA Corporate Bond Rate.  
 

 Assets in the Local Government Pension scheme are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value: - 
 

• Quoted and Unitised Securities – Current Bid Price. 
• Unquoted Securities – Professional Estimate. 
• Property – Market Value. 
 
The changes in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components: 
 
• Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of one additional year of service earned 

this year – allocated to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
• Past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect relates 

to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of non-distributed costs. 

• Interest cost – the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year as they move 
one year closer to being paid - debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

• Expected return on assets – the annual investment return on the fund assets attributable to the 
year, based on an average of the expected long term return – credited to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

• Gains/losses on settlements and curtailments – the result of actions to relieve the liabilities or 
events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of employees – debited or 
credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as part of non-distributed costs. 

• Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have 
not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have 
updated their assumptions – debited to the Pensions Reserve. 

• Contributions paid to the pension fund. 
 

Discretionary Benefits 
The Group also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event 
of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are 
accrued in the year of the decision to make the award. 
 
Events after the Balance Sheet Date 
These are events that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the financial 
statements are authorised for issue.  The Group will report these in the following way if it is determined 
that the event has had a material effect on the Group’s financial position: - 

• Events which provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period will be 
adjusted and included within the figures in the accounts. 

• Events that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting will be reported in the narrative 
notes to the accounts. 

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of 
Accounts. 
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Financial Instruments - Liabilities and Assets 
Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Group becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and carried at 
their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying 
amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the 
borrowings that the Group has, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the 
outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest) and interest charged to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year in the loan agreement. 
 
The Group has not undertaken any repurchasing or early settlement of borrowing. 
 
Financial assets are classified into two types: - 
• Loans and receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted in an 

active market. 
• Available-for-sale assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or 

determinable payments. 
 
The Group only has financial assets based on the first category of loans and receivables. 
 
Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Group becomes party to the 
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and carried at 
their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying 
amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the loans 
that the Group has made, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding 
principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 
 
Government Grants & Contributions 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, Government Grants and third party contributions 
and donations are recognised as due to the Group when there is reasonable assurance that: - 
 
• The Group will comply with the conditions attached to the payments. 
• The grants or contributions will be received 
 
Amounts recognised as due to the Group are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution has been satisfied. 
Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefit or service potential embodied in 
the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as 
specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. 
 
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in 
the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the 
Net Cost of Services (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant 
Income (non ring fenced grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. Revenue grants are recognised in full in the year of their receipt. The impact on the General 
Reserve is negated by a transfer to Earmarked Reserves in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are 
reversed out of the General Reserve Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant 
has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. 
Where it is applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants 
Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to 
fund capital expenditure. 
 
Non-Current Assets - Property, Plant and Equipment 
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the provision of services or for 
administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financial year are 
classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. 
 
Recognition and Measurement 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of assets is capitalised on an accruals basis, 
provided that it yields benefits to the Group and the services it provides for more than one financial year 
and that the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  

PCC and PCC Group for Derbyshire Statement of Accounts                                                      16 
 



Appendix B 
Agenda Item 9B 

JARAC 
3 March 2016 

 
 
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising the purchase price and any costs attributable to 
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 
intended by management. Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following 
measurement bases: 
 
• Land, property and other operational assets are included in the Balance Sheet at fair value (existing 

use value). Operational assets can either be specialised or non-specialised. Specialised Assets, 
where there is no particular market or demand for their specific use, are valued at Depreciated 
Replacement Cost (DRC) as an estimate for fair value. The only assets to be classified as 
specialised property relate to the operational custody suites situated within the various properties. 
In cases where there is only a small number of cells, or where cells are now out of use, these have 
not been treated as specialised properties.  

• Surplus assets are included at the current value measurement base (fair value), estimated at 
highest and best use from a market participant’s perspective. 

• Assets under construction are held in the Balance Sheet at historical cost until completed, 
whereupon they will be valued and included in the Balance Sheet as operational assets.  

 
Where non property assets have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical cost 
basis is used as a proxy for fair value e.g. Vehicles, IT and Communications equipment and other 
equipment. 
 
Revaluation 
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that the 
carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value but as a minimum every five years. 
Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised 
gains. Occasionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
where they arise from the reversal of an impairment loss previously charged to the account. 
 
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: - 
 
• Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying 

amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated 
gains) 

• Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its 
formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital 
Adjustment Account. 
 
Impairments 
Assets are assessed at each year end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the 
asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. Where impairment losses are identified, they 
are accounted for by: 

 
• Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying 

amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated 
gains). 

• Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that 
would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised. 
 
Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis for on all Property, Plant Vehicles and Equipment 
assets by the systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives, as advised by a 
suitably qualified advisor. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. 
freehold land) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction).   
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Component Accounting – where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components 
whose cost is significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated 
separately.  The component is judged to be significant were the replacement value is above £0.5m or 
25% of the asset. It applies to new expenditure from 2010/11 and any subsequent revaluations.  
 
It is the Group’s policy not to charge depreciation in the year of acquisition but a full year’s charge is 
made in the year of disposal.  Depreciation is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement and is reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement.  
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value 
depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their 
historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment 
Account. 
 
Disposals and Assets held for sale 
When a non-current asset is planned to be disposed of, it is reclassified as an Asset held for sale. To be 
reclassified it must meet the following criteria: - 
 
• The asset must be available for immediate sale in its present condition subject to terms that are 

usual and customary for sales of such assets. 
• The sale must be highly probable (with management commitment to sell and active marketing of the 

asset initiated). 
• It must be actively marketed for a sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair 

value. 
• The sale should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year. 
 
The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount 
and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, 
the loss is posted to the Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous losses in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. 
 
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to 
non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held 
for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had 
they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to 
sell. 
 
Assets that are abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale. 
 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance 
Sheet is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals are credited to 
the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on 
disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of the disposal). Any 
revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital 
Adjustment Account.  
 
Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. The balance 
of receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used to 
finance new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Group’s underlying need to borrow (the capital 
financing requirement). Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Reserve Balance in 
the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
The written off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets is fully 
provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital 
Adjustment Account from the General Reserve Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
Non-Current Assets - Intangible Assets 
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and 
controlled by the Group as a result of past events (e.g. software licences), are capitalised when it is 
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expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the 
Group. 
 
Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily 
intended to provide information on policing matters. 
 
Intangible assets are measured at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of the assets 
held by the Group can be determined by reference to an active market. In practice, no intangible asset 
held by the Group meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised cost. The depreciable 
amount of an intangible asset is amortised to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
over its useful life. Amortisation, as with depreciation, commences in the financial year following that in 
which they are received. Amortisation is not permitted to have any impact on the General Reserve 
Balance; it is therefore reversed through the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the 
Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets 
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is debited with the following amounts to record 
the cost of holding non-current assets during the year:  - 
 
• Depreciation attributable to the assets used. 
• Revaluation and impairment losses on assets where there are no accumulated gains in the 

Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off. 
• Amortisation of intangible fixed assets. 
 
The Group is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses 
or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual provision from revenue to contribute towards 
the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement (Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)). An annual 
statement for the policy on making MRP is required in accordance with statutory guidance; this should 
be calculated on a prudent basis.  The policy for Derbyshire is: - 
 
• For Supported Capital Expenditure, the MRP Policy will be based on the Capital Financing 

Requirement at 4% of the opening balance  
• For unsupported borrowing the MRP policy will be based on the Asset Life Method, equal 

instalment over the life of the asset   
• For PFI contracts and leases that are deemed to be on Balance Sheet, the MRP requirement would 

be regarded as met by a charge equal to the element of the charge that goes to write down the 
Balance Sheet liability. 
   

Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by revenue 
provision in the Movement in Reserves Statement, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital 
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two. 
 
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but does not 
result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the Group has determined to meet the cost of 
this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement from the General Reserve Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the 
amounts charged so there is no impact on the level of council tax. 
 
Leases 
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks 
and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, vehicles, plant or equipment from the lessor 
(landlord) to the lessee (tenant). All other leases are classified as operating leases.  
 
The Group has looked at material property leases over £10,000 and for more than 10 years.  IAS 17 
‘Leases’ includes indicators for the classification of leases as a finance lease.  Material leases have 
been judged against these indicators. 
 
a) Finance Leases 
i) Lessee – Property, Vehicles, Plant & Equipment  
An asset identified as a finance lease and where the Group is the lessee will be recognised on the 
Balance Sheet at an amount equal to the fair value of the asset, or if lower, the present value of the 
minimum lease payments, determined at the inception of the lease. 
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The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. This liability is reduced 
as lease payments are made. Minimum lease payments are to be apportioned between the finance 
charge (interest) and the reduction of the deferred liability. 
 
The finance charge (interest) will be charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
(Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line). 
 
Finance lease assets recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and depreciated in the same way 
as property, plant and equipment owned by the Group. Depreciation to be charged over the lease term if 
this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life.  
 
ii) Lessor – Property, Vehicles, Plant & Equipment 
An asset identified as a finance lease and where the Group is the lessor will be recognised on the 
Balance Sheet as a debtor at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease.  The lease payment is 
treated as repayment of principal and finance income (interest). 
 
Initial direct costs are included in the initial measurement of the debtor and recognised as an expense 
over the lease term on the same basis as the income. 
 
Rental income from finance leases entered into after 1 April 2010 should be treated as a capital receipt. 
 
b) Operating Leases 
i) Lessee – Property, Vehicles, Plant & Equipment 
An asset identified as an operating lease and where the Group is the lessee, the rentals will be charged 
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Charges are made on a straight line basis 
over the term of the lease. 
 
ii) Lessor – Property, Vehicles, Plant & Equipment 
An asset identified as an operating lease, and where the Group is the lessor, shall be retained in the 
Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
Credits are made on a straight line basis over the term of the lease. 
 
Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and Similar Contracts  
The Group has entered into two PFI arrangements, Ilkeston Police Station and D Divisional HQ at 
Derby.  The first affected the accounts from 1998/99, the second from 2000/01. Both have a continuing 
commitment by the Group for 30 years. PFI contracts are agreements to receive services, where the 
responsibility for making available the non-current assets needed to provide the services passes to the 
PFI contractor. As the Group is deemed to control the services that are provided under its PFI schemes 
and has control over the residual interest in the property at the end of the arrangement, the Group 
carries the non-current assets under the contracts on the Balance Sheet as part of Property, Plant and 
Equipment. 
 
The original recognition of these assets at fair value was balanced by the recognition of a liability for 
amounts due to the scheme operator to pay for the capital investments. 
 
PFI assets recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and depreciated in the same way as property, 
plant and equipment owned by the Group.  
 
The amounts payable to the PFI operators each year should be analysed into five elements: - 
 
• Fair value of the services received during the year – debited to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement.  
 
• Finance cost – an interest charge of 9.114% for Ilkeston PFI and 7.917% for Derby PFI on the 

outstanding Balance Sheet Liability, debited to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
• Contingent rent – increases in the amount to be paid for the property arising during the contract. For 

both the Group’s PFI schemes there is no contingent rent as the property element of the fee paid to 
the PFI operator is not indexed. 

 
• Payment towards liability – applied to write down the Balance Sheet liability towards the PFI 

operator. This is also the MRP charge for PFI schemes. 
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• Lifecycle replacement costs – recognised as fixed assets on the Balance Sheet if the costs are of a 

capital nature or if the costs are revenue debited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement.     
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Overheads and Support Services 
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the supply or 
service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice 
2015/16 (SeRCOP).  The full cost of overheads and support services are shared between users in 
proportion to the benefits received, with the exception of: 
 
• Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the Group’s status as a multi-functional 

democratic organisation.  
• Non Distributed Costs – the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring early and 

impairment losses chargeable on Assets Held for Sale.  
 
These two cost categories are defined in SeRCOP and accounted for as separate headings in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, as part of Net Expenditure on Continuing Services. 
 
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
Provisions – these are required for liabilities that have been incurred, but are of uncertain timing or 
amount. There are three criteria: 
 
• The Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event. 
• It is more likely than not that money will be needed to settle the obligation. 
• A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
 
Provisions are charged as an expense to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the 
year that the Group becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the 
Balance Sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks 
and uncertainties.  
 
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. 
Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – where it becomes less than 
probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated 
is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be met by another party 
(e.g. from an insurance claim), the income is only recognised as income if it is virtually certain that 
reimbursement will be received when the obligation is settled.   
Provisions contained within the Balance Sheet are split between current liabilities (those which are 
estimated to be settled within the next 12 months) and non-current liabilities (those which are estimated 
to be settled in a period greater than 12 months). 
  
Contingent Liabilities – this arises where an event has taken place that gives the Group a possible 
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the Group. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where 
a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts. 
 
Contingent Asset – this arises where an event has taken place that gives the Group a possible asset 
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the Group. 
 
Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts 
where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential. 
 
Reserves  
Usable Reserves - the Group’s General Revenue Balances are held in the General Reserve to 
generally support the budget. The Group also maintains a number of specific ‘earmarked’ reserves for 
future expenditure on either policy purposes or to cover contingencies. Reserves are created by 
appropriating amounts out of the General Reserve Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
When revenue expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the 
General Reserve Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge 
against Council Tax for the expenditure. 
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Also held under usable reserves are those that support the financing of capital (Capital receipts reserve 
and Capital Grants unapplied).  
 
Unusable Reserves - certain reserves/accounts are kept to manage the accounting processes for non- 
current assets (Capital Adjustment Account, Revaluation Reserve, Deferred Capital Receipts), 
retirement and employee benefits (Pensions Reserve, Short term Accumulating Compensated 
Absences Account) and Accounting for local taxes (Collection Fund Adjustment Account). These do not 
represent usable resources for the Group.  
 
Value Added Tax (VAT) 
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement excludes any amounts related to VAT, as all 
VAT collected is payable to HM Revenue and Customs and all VAT paid is recoverable from them.  
 
Jointly Controlled Operations  
Jointly controlled operations are activities undertaken by the Group in conjunction with other venturers 
that involve the use of the assets and resources of the venturers rather than the establishment of a 
separate entity. The Group recognises on its Balance Sheet the assets that it controls and the liabilities 
that it incurs and debits and credits the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement with the 
expenditure its incurs and the share of income it earns from the activity of the operation.  
 
Joint Ventures  
Joint Ventures are arrangements under which two or more parties have contractually agreed to share 
control, such that decisions about activities that significantly affect returns require the unanimous 
consent of the parties sharing control, and joint ventures have rights to the net assets of the 
arrangement.  Joint Ventures have their own legal entity. They are accounted for using the equity 
method.  
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CHIEF CONSTABLE 
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 
Accounting Policies 
 
General Principles 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice (the Code) on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (as amended) and the Service 
Reporting Code of Practice for Local Authorities 2015/16 (SeRCOP).  The accounting policies contained 
in the Code apply International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adapted for the public sector by 
the International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). 
 
The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis using an historic cost convention, modified 
to account for the revaluation of certain categories of tangible fixed assets and financial liabilities. 
 
The Accounting Policies below also reflect the powers and responsibilities of the Chief Constable as 
designated by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 and the Home Office Financial 
Management Code of Practice for the Police Service, England and Wales 2013.  The Accounting 
policies defined here are consistent with local regulations, local agreement and practice as well as the 
PCC Group policies. 
 
The Accounts cover the 12 months to 31 March 2016. 
 
Cost Recognition 
All expenditure is paid for by the Commissioner including the wages of police officers and staff and no 
actual cash transactions or events take place between the two entities.  Costs are however recognised 
within the Chief Constable’s Accounts to reflect the financial resources consumed at the request of the 
Commissioner and the economic benefit this brings about.  For instance an economic benefit is 
recognised to reflect the utilisation of the Commissioner owned Estate, which mirrors depreciation of 
property. 
 
Accruals of Expenditure 
Activity is accounted for in the year it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made: - 
 
• Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed. 
• Expenses in relation to services received (included services provided by employees) are recorded 

as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made. 
• Short term compensated absences are recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement in the 

period in which officers or staff render the service which entitles them to the benefit, not necessarily 
when they receive the benefit.  The cost of leave earned, but not taken at the end of the financial 
year is recognised in the financial statements of the Chief Constable to the extent that staff are 
entitled to carry forward a limited amount of leave into the following year. 

 
Fair Value Measurement 
Some of the non-financial assets, such as surplus assets and some financial instruments are measured 
at fair value at each reporting date.  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  
The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes 
place either: - 
 
• In the principal market for the assets or liability; or 
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 
 
The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would 
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic interest. 
 
When measuring a non-financial asset, the market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by 
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use 
the asset in its highest and best use is taken into account. 
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Valuation techniques used are those appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is 
available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable 
inputs. 
 
Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or 
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, as follows: - 
 
• Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that can be 

accessed at the measurement date. 
• Level 2 – inputs other than quoted process included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset 

or liability, either directly or indirectly. 
• Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the assets or liability. 
 
Exceptional Items 
When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed separately, either 
on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the accounts, 
depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of the Chief Constable’s financial 
performance. 
 
Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors 
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material 
error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future 
years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 
 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the 
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and 
conditions on the Chief Constable’s position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is 
applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative 
amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied. 
 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening 
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 
Employee Benefits 
The Accounts are prepared in accordance with IAS19 Employee Benefits. This is a complex accounting 
standard but it is based on a simple principle that: 
 
“An organisation should account for employment and post-employment benefits when employees earn 
them and the authority is committed to give them, even if the actual giving will be many years into the 
future”. 
 
IAS 19 applies to all types of employee benefits paid including benefits payable during employment, 
termination benefits and post-employment benefits. 
 
Benefits Payable During Employment 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year end. They 
include such benefits as salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, expenses, bonuses and non-
monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in 
the year in which employees render service to the Chief Constable.  An accrual is made for the cost of 
holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken 
before the year end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is 
charged to Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, but then reversed out through the 
Movement in Reserves Statement to the Short Term Accumulating Compensated Absences Account so 
that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs. 
 
Termination Benefits 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Chief Constable to terminate 
employment before the normal retirement date or a decision to accept voluntary redundancy and when 
the Chief Constable is demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment of an individual or 
group or making an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy. 
 
Post-employment benefits 
The main effect of IAS19 in relation to post-employment benefits is the recognition of the net liability and 
a pensions reserve in the Balance Sheet and entries in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement for movements in the liability relating to the employee pension schemes in which the Chief 
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Constable participates (with reconciling entries in the Movement in Reserves Statement back to the true 
cost of pensions).  
  
IAS19 relies on the recognition of pension’s liabilities (being the retirement benefits promised measured 
on an actuarial basis) and assets (being the Chief Constable’s share of investments (if any)). 
 
The Chief Constable participates in two different pension schemes both of which are “defined benefit 
schemes” as they are both based on employees earning benefits from years of service. 
 
a) Police Officers 
This scheme is unfunded. This means it provides pensions and other retirement benefits for police 
officers based on final salaries but there are no investment assets built up to meet the pensions 
liabilities.   
 
The funding arrangements for the police officers pension scheme changed on 1 April 2006. Before April 
2006 each Police Authority was responsible for paying the pensions of its former officers on a “pay as 
you go” basis. From April 2006 there is now an employer’s contribution instead (currently 24.2% of 
pensionable salary) which is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
The Chief Constable is required by legislation to operate a Pension Fund Account and the amounts that 
must be paid into and paid out of the Pension Fund are specified by regulation. Officer’s contributions 
and the employer’s contribution are paid into the pension’s account from which pension payments are 
then made. This will be topped up as necessary by the Home Office if the contributions are insufficient 
to meet the cost of pension’s payments. Any surplus will be recouped by the Home Office. Injury awards 
and ill health retirements will continue to be paid from the Chief Constable’s Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 
 
The pension fund account does not take account of the obligation to pay pensions and benefits which 
fall due after the end of the financial year.  
 
b) Police Staff and PCSO’s 
Police staff and PCSO’s, subject to certain qualifying criteria, are eligible to join the Local Government 
Pension Scheme administered by Derbyshire County Council. It is a defined benefit occupational 
pension scheme.  Pensions and other retirement benefits earned prior to 1 April 2014 are based on final 
salaries, benefits earned after that date are calculated on earnings accrued in a scheme year. 
Employers and employees make regular contributions into the fund, which are invested in various types 
of assets, so that the liabilities are paid for evenly over the employment period.  Actuarial valuations of 
the fund are undertaken every three years to determine the contributions rates needed to meet its 
liabilities. 
 
For both schemes the liabilities are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the 
projected unit method (an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement 
benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover 
rates, etc., and projections of projected earnings for current employees). Liabilities are discounted to 
their value at current prices, using a discount rate. The Discount Rate used is based on the ‘current rate 
of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent currency and term to the scheme liabilities’, 
which is often referred to as AA Corporate Bond Rate.  
 

 Assets in the Local Government Pension scheme are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value: - 
 

• Quoted and Unitised Securities – Current Bid Price. 
• Unquoted Securities – Professional Estimate. 
• Property – Market Value. 
 
The changes in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components: 
 
• Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of one additional year of service earned 

this year – allocated to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
• Past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect relates 

to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of non-distributed costs. 

• Interest cost – the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year as they move 
one year closer to being paid - debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
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• Expected return on assets – the annual investment return on the fund assets attributable to the 
year, based on an average of the expected long term return – credited to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

• Gains/losses on settlements and curtailments – the result of actions to relieve the liabilities or 
events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of employees – debited or 
credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as part of non-distributed costs. 

• Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have 
not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have 
updated their assumptions – debited to the Pensions Reserve. 

• Contributions paid to the pension fund. 
 
The Chief Constable’s accounts include the pension costs, assets and liabilities for all staff, including 
those employed directly by the Commissioner.  The scheme assets and liabilities for the two corporation 
soles are pooled, any pro rota would not be accurate as valuing the fund is based on various 
assumptions.  The effect of including all of the pension figures in the Chief Constable’s accounts has no 
material effect on the accounts. 
 
Discretionary Benefits 
The Chief Constable also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in 
the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of 
staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award. 
 
Events after the Balance Sheet Date 
These are events that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the financial 
statements are authorised for issue.  The Chief Constable will report these in the following way if it is 
determined that the event has had a material effect on the Chief Constable’s financial position: - 

• Events which provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period will be 
adjusted and included within the figures in the accounts. 

• Events that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting will be reported in the narrative 
notes to the accounts. 

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of 
Accounts. 
 
Non-Current Assets – Vehicles, Plant, Furniture, Equipment and Assets under 
Construction 
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the provision of services or for 
administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financial year are 
classified as Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment. 
 
Recognition and Measurement 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of assets is capitalised on an accruals basis, 
provided that it yields benefits and the services it provides for more than one financial year and that the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably.  
 
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising the purchase price and any costs attributable to 
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 
intended by management.  
 
Assets under construction are held in the Balance Sheet at historical cost until completed, whereupon 
they will be valued and included in the Balance Sheet as operational assets.  
 
Where assets have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical cost basis is used as 
a proxy for fair value e.g. vehicles, IT and communications equipment. 

Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided for on all Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment assets on a straight line 
basis by the systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives, as advised by a 
suitable qualified advisor. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
It is policy not to charge depreciation in the year of acquisition but a full year’s charge is made in the 
year of disposal.  Depreciation is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
and is reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement.  
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Disposals 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance 
Sheet is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal 

 
Non-Current Assets - Intangible Assets 
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and 
controlled by the Chief Constable as a result of past events (e.g. software licences), are capitalised 
when it is expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset 
to the Chief Constable. 
 
Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily 
intended to provide information on policing matters. 
 
Intangible assets are measured at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of the assets 
held can be determined by reference to an active market. In practice, no intangible asset held meets this 
criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible 
asset is amortised to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement over its useful life. 
Amortisation, as with depreciation, commences in the financial year following that in which they are 
received. Amortisation is not permitted to have any impact on the General Reserve Balance; it is 
therefore reversed through the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment 
Account. 
 
Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets 
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is debited with the following amounts to record 
the cost of holding non-current assets during the year:  - 
 
• Depreciation attributable to the assets used. 
• Amortisation of intangible fixed assets. 
 
The Chief Constable is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or amortisations.  

Leases 
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks 
and rewards incidental to ownership of the vehicles, plant or equipment from the lessor (landlord) to the 
lessee (tenant). All other leases are classified as operating leases.  
 
a) Finance Leases 
i) Lessee – Vehicles, Plant & Equipment  
An asset identified as a finance lease and where the Chief Constable is the lessee will be recognised on 
the Balance Sheet at an amount equal to the fair value of the asset, or if lower, the present value of the 
minimum lease payments, determined at the inception of the lease. 
 
The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. This liability is reduced 
as lease payments are made. Minimum lease payments are to be apportioned between the finance 
charge (interest) and the reduction of the deferred liability. 
 
The finance charge (interest) will be charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
(Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line). 
 
Finance lease assets recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and depreciated in the same way 
as vehicle, plant and equipment owned by the Chief Constable. Depreciation to be charged over the 
lease term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life.  
 
ii) Lessor – Vehicles, Plant & Equipment 
An asset identified as a finance lease and where the Chief Constable is the lessor will be recognised on 
the Balance Sheet as a debtor at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease.  The lease 
payment is treated as repayment of principal and finance income (interest). 
 
Initial direct costs are included in the initial measurement of the debtor and recognised as an expense 
over the lease term on the same basis as the income. 
 
Rental income from finance leases entered into after 1 April 2010 should be treated as a capital receipt 
and recognised in the accounts of the Commissioner and Group. 
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b) Operating Leases 
i) Lessee – Vehicles, Plant & Equipment 
An asset identified as an operating lease and where the Chief Constable is the lessee, the rentals will be 
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Charges are made on a straight line 
basis over the term of the lease. 
 
ii) Lessor – Vehicles, Plant & Equipment 
An asset identified as an operating lease, and where the Chief Constable is the lessor, shall be retained 
in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. Credits are made on a straight line basis over the term of the lease. 

Overheads and Support Services 
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the supply or 
service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice 
2015/16 (SeRCOP).  The full cost of overheads and support services are shared between users in 
proportion to the benefits received, with the exception of: 
 
• Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the Chief Constable’s status as a multi-

functional democratic organisation.  
• Non Distributed Costs – the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring early.  
 
These two cost categories are defined in SeRCOP and accounted for as separate headings in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, as part of Net Expenditure on Continuing Services. 

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
Provisions – these are required for liabilities that have been incurred, but are of uncertain timing or 
amount. There are three criteria: 
 
• The Chief Constable has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event. 
• It is more likely than not that money will be needed to settle the obligation. 
• A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
 
Provisions are charged as an expense to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the 
year that the Chief Constable becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate 
at the Balance Sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account 
relevant risks and uncertainties.  
 
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. 
Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – where it becomes less than 
probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated 
is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be met by another party 
(e.g. from an insurance claim), the income is only recognised as income if it is virtually certain that 
reimbursement will be received when the obligation is settled.   
Provisions contained within the Balance Sheet are split between current liabilities (those which are 
estimated to be settled within the next 12 months) and non-current liabilities (those which are estimated 
to be settled in a period greater than 12 months). 
  
Contingent Liabilities – this arises where an event has taken place that gives the Chief Constable a 
possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the Chief Constable. Contingent liabilities also arise in 
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts. 
 
Contingent Asset – this arises where an event has taken place that gives the Chief Constable a 
possible asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the Chief Constable. 
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Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts 
where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential. 
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Reserves  
Unusable Reserves - certain reserves/accounts are kept to manage the accounting processes for non- 
current assets (Capital Adjustment Account and Revaluation Reserve), retirement and employee 
benefits (Pensions Reserve, Short term Accumulating Compensated Absences Account.  These do not 
represent usable resources for the Chief Constable.  
 
Value Added Tax (VAT)  
The Chief Constable does not submit a VAT return as the Commissioner submits a single VAT return on 
behalf of the Group.  Expenditure in the Chief Constable’s Income and Expenditure Statement excludes 
any amounts relating to VAT as all VAT is remitted to/from HM Revenue and Customs. 

Jointly Controlled Operations  
Jointly controlled operations are activities undertaken in conjunction with other venturers that involve the 
use of the assets and resources of the venturers rather than the establishment of a separate entity. The 
Balance Sheet of the Group recognises the assets that it controls and the liabilities that it incurs. The 
Chief Constable Accounts include Derbyshire’s share of running these operations as part of the Income 
and Expenditure Statement.  
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	The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year:  -
	 Depreciation attributable to the assets used.
	 Revaluation and impairment losses on assets where there are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off.
	 Amortisation of intangible fixed assets.
	Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

	Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where...
	Leases
	Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and Similar Contracts
	Overheads and Support Services
	Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

	Provisions – these are required for liabilities that have been incurred, but are of uncertain timing or amount. There are three criteria:
	Reserves

	Unusable Reserves - certain reserves/accounts are kept to manage the accounting processes for non- current assets (Capital Adjustment Account, Revaluation Reserve, Deferred Capital Receipts), retirement and employee benefits (Pensions Reserve, Short t...
	Value Added Tax (VAT)
	Jointly Controlled Operations

	Jointly controlled operations are activities undertaken by the Group in conjunction with other venturers that involve the use of the assets and resources of the venturers rather than the establishment of a separate entity. The Group recognises on its ...
	Joint Ventures

	Joint Ventures are arrangements under which two or more parties have contractually agreed to share control, such that decisions about activities that significantly affect returns require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control, and joint ...
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	CHIEF CONSTABLE
	STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
	General Principles
	Cost Recognition
	Accruals of Expenditure
	Fair Value Measurement
	Exceptional Items
	When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an ...
	Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors
	Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do not g...
	Employee Benefits

	The Accounts are prepared in accordance with IAS19 Employee Benefits. This is a complex accounting standard but it is based on a simple principle that:
	“An organisation should account for employment and post-employment benefits when employees earn them and the authority is committed to give them, even if the actual giving will be many years into the future”.
	Benefits Payable During Employment

	Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year end. They include such benefits as salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, expenses, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and...
	Termination Benefits

	Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Chief Constable to terminate employment before the normal retirement date or a decision to accept voluntary redundancy and when the Chief Constable is demonstrably committed to ...
	Post-employment benefits

	IAS19 relies on the recognition of pension’s liabilities (being the retirement benefits promised measured on an actuarial basis) and assets (being the Chief Constable’s share of investments (if any)).
	The Chief Constable participates in two different pension schemes both of which are “defined benefit schemes” as they are both based on employees earning benefits from years of service.
	a) Police Officers
	b) Police Staff and PCSO’s
	The changes in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components:
	 Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of one additional year of service earned this year – allocated to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
	 Past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Exp...
	 Interest cost – the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year as they move one year closer to being paid - debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure St...
	 Expected return on assets – the annual investment return on the fund assets attributable to the year, based on an average of the expected long term return – credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive In...
	 Gains/losses on settlements and curtailments – the result of actions to relieve the liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of employees – debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of...
	 Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions – debited to the Pensions R...
	 Contributions paid to the pension fund.
	The Chief Constable’s accounts include the pension costs, assets and liabilities for all staff, including those employed directly by the Commissioner.  The scheme assets and liabilities for the two corporation soles are pooled, any pro rota would not ...
	Depreciation
	Disposals

	The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year:  -
	 Depreciation attributable to the assets used.
	 Amortisation of intangible fixed assets.
	Leases
	Overheads and Support Services
	Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

	Provisions – these are required for liabilities that have been incurred, but are of uncertain timing or amount. There are three criteria:
	Reserves
	Value Added Tax (VAT)
	Jointly Controlled Operations

	Jointly controlled operations are activities undertaken in conjunction with other venturers that involve the use of the assets and resources of the venturers rather than the establishment of a separate entity. The Balance Sheet of the Group recognises...


